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Foreword by the Chairman of the Management Board

Significant (Considerable) increase in the income from the sales in the country are mostly the result of contract 

realization with the company HŽ Putnički prijevoz (HŽ Passenger Transport) including the delivery of low-floor 

electric and diesel electric trains. Regarding the export, there was a growth of one percent despite very 

unfavourable geopolitical situation.

With the aim of decreasing negative influences of the economic and financial crisis, assuring business stability 

and maintaining and strengthening the market position, KONČAR Group companies adopted a number of 

measures. First of all, the range of offers was expanded and the efforts to open new markets were made, 

measured for greater synergy within the systems were carried out, as well as the measures for decreasing 

business costs. All these measures resulted in the continuation of profitable business operations and Group’s 

financial stability.

In 2015 KONČAR Group achieved a positive financial result. Group’s consolidated profit before taxation was 

HRK 169.5 million, which is 7.5% higher than planned. Profit tax was calculated in the amount of HRK 18.2 

million, and the profit after taxation was HRK 151.3 million, of which HRK 23.7 million belongs to the non-

controlling interest, and the shareholder of the Group’s mother company HRK 127.6 million or 17.5% more than 

planned. In 2015 the income from the sales of products and services amounted to HRK 3,049 million which is 

15.1% more than the achieved in 2014.

The group has a stable balance sheet. The balance of total consolidated funds and source funds on 31 December 

2015 was HRK 3,650 million. In the structure of source funds, registered capital, reserves, retained profit, the 

profit in current year and non-controlling (minority) interest amounted to HRK 2,321.5 million, which is HRK 

36.5 million more in relation to the balance on 31 December 2014 and makes up 63.6% of total sources.

In 2015 new projects in the total value of HRK 2,961.6 million were contracted. At the end of 2015 the contracted 

projects amounted to HRK 3,630.2 million.

Good business results were obtained and were based on the Group’s own product development and production, 

while the research projects remained KONČAR’s permanent feature and are continued in the following period 

through innovations and development which should result in new products and the expansion of business 

activities.

The cooperation with academic institutions was continued through the realization of common projects. In 2015 

the agreements with the University of Zagreb, the Faculty of Humanities and Social Studies in Zagreb and the 

Despite challenging macroeconomic circumstances that 
the companies in KONČAR Group faced with on the 
majority of markets, the business results for 2015 show 
the continuation in business stability. Stable business 
operations and continuous growth are the results of a 
systematic work on the development of new products and 
the improvement of market positions. 

FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
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Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computing in Zagreb was signed which market the beginning of the 

project “Knowledge Management“. This project will enable efficient management of all intellectual capital 

elements in a certain organization, which will result in the efficiency increase, and market competitiveness.

KONČAR Group systematically fosters and supports the system of values in which the culture of work, creation 

and excellence acquires a more significant place in all societies. Social responsibility in KONČAR is a part of 

everyday work process in all segments of business operations process and it relies on the human potential as 

the bearers of company development. Furthermore, regarding the responsibility towards its working 

environment, KONČAR established the environmental management as one of its business priorities, and the 

result can be visible in customer satisfaction, as well as in the increasing number of certificates proving the 

compliance with the most important standards. Therefore, besides the certificates ISO 9001 and OHSAS 

18001, together with many other special authorizations, as many as seventeen KONČAR Group companies 

hold the ISO 14001 certificate.

Owing to a relatively high number of contracts and additional efforts placed in finding new markets it is expected 

that KONČAR Group companies will achieve set business plans for 2016 and continue with positive business 

trends.

Chairman of the Management Board
Darinko Bago

FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
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The Report by the Supervisory Board to
the General Assembly of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc.

In the period from 1 January 2015 until 31 December 2015, the Supervisory Board consisted of the following members:

Chairman of the Supervisory Board:  Nenad Filipović

Deputy Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board:  Jasminka Belačić

Members of the Supervisory Board:   Petar Mišura, Nikola Plavec, Petar Vlaić, Vicko Ferić, Boris 

Draženović, Ivan Rujnić, Dragan Marčinko.

In 2015, the Supervisory Board held eleven sessions and discussed numerous Company operation-related issues.

Supervisory Board sessions are attended by members of the Management Board of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc., 

who within their own competencies report on specific issues and provide the Supervisory Board with all additional 

explanations serving as the basis for their detailed discussions on all the agenda topics and expressing their opinion 

i.e. making necessary decisions

The Management Board submitted regular reports to the Supervisory Board on all important business events, op-

erations delivery, income and expenses as well as the general condition of the Company. The Management Board 

submitted regular quarterly, semiannual and annual business reports to the Supervisory Board, which adopted them 

without qualifications. In that regard, the Supervisory Board assessed its cooperation with the Management Board as 

very successful.

Two committees were established as part of the Supervisory Board to facilitate its work. These were the Audit Com-

mittee and the Strategic Development Committee.

The Audit Committee consists of 4 members, all of whom are also the members of the Supervisory Board. The Com-

mittee is presided by the deputy chairwoman of the Supervisory Board Jasminka Belačić. Other members are Vicko 

Ferić, Boris Draženović and Ivan Rujnić.

The Audit Committee held three sessions. They discussed and reached decisions within their competences and re-

sponsibilities set under the Audit Act.

The Strategic Development Committee has five members, all of whom are also members of the Supervisory Board. 

The Committee is presided by the chairman of the Supervisory Board Nenad Filipović. Other members are Petar 

Mišura, Petar Vlaić, Nikola Plavec and Dragan Marčinko.

The Strategic Development Committee held one session. It discussed topics set under the Rules of Procedure of the 

Strategic Development Committee.

In line with its obligations, the Supervisory Board conducted the supervision and reviewed Company’s business 

books and documentation. It concluded that KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. performed its business activities in 

During 2015, the Supervisory Board of KONČAR - Electrical 

Industry Inc. conducted its activities set under the law and 

the Company’s Articles of Association.

THE REPORT BY THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
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accordance with the law, the Articles of Association and other Company acts as well as decisions adopted by the 

General Assembly.

The Supervisory Board reviewed the 2015 Financial Statements together with the report by its certified auditors 

Pricewaterhouse Coopers d.o.o. from Zagreb, Ulica kneza Ljudevita Posavskog 31/VI, and Reconsult d.o.o. from 

Zagreb, Trg hrvatskih velikana 4/1, issued for KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. and KONČAR Group.

Having reviewed the 2015 annual financial statements of the Company and the consolidated 2015 annual financial 

statements for KONČAR Group submitted by the Management Board, the Supervisory Board concluded that they 

were made in line with the balance existing in the Company business books and that they showed the accurate 

asset and operational condition of the Company. Having provided consent to said reports, they were considered 

affirmed pursuant to the provision of Article 300 d of the Company Act.

The Supervisory Board provided its consent to the annual report of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. and its de-

pendent companies for 2015.

The Management Board of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. submitted a proposal to the Supervisory Board on the 

use of profit earned in 2015. KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. earned net profit of HRK 62,434,471.15, of which 

HRK 3,121,723.56 was allocated to legal reserves (5%) and HRK 28,517,651.59 to statutory reserves.

The Supervisory Board proposed to the General Assembly of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. to pay out the share-

holders’ dividend of HRK 12.00 per share from the retained profit earned in 2015 i.e. HRK 30,795,096.00.

The Supervisory Board consented to the above proposal made by the Management Board on the use of profit and 

proposed the adoption thereof by the General Assembly.

The Supervisory Board submits this report to the General Assembly of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. and pro-

poses the adoption of the proposal on the use of available profit earned in 2015.

Zagreb, 12 April 2016

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Nenad Filipović

THE REPORT BY THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
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1.  The Most Important Performance Indicators 
for the period of 2012 - 2015

2012 2013 2014 plan 2015 2015 Indeks 
5/3

Indeks 
5/4

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Total revenues 2,895,319 2,850,979 2,947,489 3,434,437 3,296,461 112 96

Sales revenues
Croatia 1,226,524 1,265,777 1,350,740 1,920,478 1,742,432 129 91

Export 1,215,034 1,243,322 1,298,016 1,343,009 1,306,642 101 97

Total 2,441,558 2,509,099 2,648,756 3,263,487 3,049,074 115 93

Contracted works
Croatia 1,197,471 1,141,925 2,878,470 1,104,150 1,413,281 49 128

Export 1,237,956 1,535,259 1,194,469 1,755,018 1,548,371 130 88

Total 2,435,427 2,677,184 4,072,939 2,859,168 2,961,652 73 104

Status of contracted works at year end
Croatia 1,004,298 858,993 2,379,665 1,650,704 2,050,514 86 124

Export 1,201,458 1,511,337 1,337,926 1,941,294 1,579,655 118 81

Total 2,205,756 2,370,330 3,717,591 3,591,998 3,630,169 98 101

No.of employees 31 December 3,898 3,780 3,662 3,765 3,666 100 97

Sales per employee 626,4 663,8 723,3 866,8 831,7 115 96

Group’s profit 178,352 163,696 160,096 137,500 151,321 95 110

Minority stakes 27,815 28,584 30,847 28,855 23,669 77 82

Profit attributed to equity holders 150,537 135,112 129,249 108,645 127,652 99 117

Non-current assets 1,500,271 1,491,729 1,506,601 1,521,351 1,503,356 100 99

Current assets 2,025,161 1,969,401 2,395,963 2,092,392 2,134,604 89 102

Pre-paid expenses 5,828 6,000 15,919 11,715 12,078 76 103

Total assets 3,531,260 3,467,130 3,918,483 3,625,458 3,650,038 93 101
Subscribed capital 1,028,848 1,028,848 1,208,895 1,208,895 1,208,895 100 100

Reserves, retained profit, current year profit 804,485 903,430 818,720 884,075 884,185 108 100

Total capital 1,833,333 1,932,278 2,027,615 2,092,970 2,093,080 103 100
Non-controlling interest 234,610 243,230 257,389 269,894 228,414 89 85

Long-term provisions 417,453 338,862 303,663 324,762 297,950 98 92

Long-term liabilities 246,081 206,519 161,908 160,157 143,146 88 89

Short-term liabilities 708,446 658,141 1,092,509 725,152 734,432 67 101

Short-term accruals 91,337 88,100 75,399 52,523 153,016 203 291

Total liabilities 3,531,260 3,467,130 3,918,483 3,625,458 3,650,038 93 101
EBIT 213,420 193,905 189,232 170,797 181,833 96 106

Return on equity 8.2% 7.0% 6.4% 5.2% 6.1% 96 117

Return on sales 6.2% 5.4% 4.9% 3.3% 4.2% 86 126

Earning per share 58.53 52.52 50.25 42.24 49.63 99 117

THE MOST IMPORTANT PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

in 000 HRK
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2. Organization and Management 

ENERGY AND TRANSPORT

POWER PLANT AND ELECTRICAL
TRACTION ENGINEERING

GENERATORS AND MOTORS

HIGH VOLTAGE SWITCHGEAR

MEDIUM VOLTAGE APPARATUS

SWITCHGEAR

DISTRIBUTION AND SPECIAL 
TRANSFORMERS

INDUSTRY AND TRADE

HOUSEHOLD APPLIANCES

SMALL ELECTRICAL MACHINES

LOW VOLTAGE SWITCH. AND 
CIRCUIT BREAKERS

ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING 
INSTITUTE

INFRASTRUCTURE AND
SERVICES

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

RUSSIAN FEDERATION

BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA

SERBIA

POWER TRANSFORMERS

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

INSTRUMENT TRANSFORMERS

ELECTRONICS AND 
INFORMATICS

METAL STRUCTURES

ELECTRIC VEHICLES

ENG. FOR PLANT INSTALLATION 
& COMMISSIONING

RENEWABLE SOURCES

SPECIAL ACTIVITIES

ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT

The activities of KONČAR Group consist of the 

following business areas:

Power and Transport
•  Designing and constructing plants and equipment for 

the production, transport and distribution of electrical 

energy, locomotives, low-floor multiple units, tram-

ways and electrical equipment for stable electric trac-

tion facilities,

Industry
• Electromotor drives, low voltage electric equipment,

Trade
•  Electric household appliances, mass products and low 

voltage electric devices,

Special activities
•  Product research and development and infrastructural 

services.

KONČAR Group consists of KONČAR - Electrical In-
dustry Inc. as the parent company and 17 dependent 
companies in which the parent company exercises pre-
dominant influence (more than 50% of votes at the Gen-
eral Assembly). Some of the companies have preferred 
shares subscribed in addition to the common shares is-
sued. In addition, the parent company exercises minor-
ity management influence (49% of votes at the General 
Assembly) in one (affiliated) company. 

The Group’s companies are legally autonomous entities, 
while the parent company has a supervising role; it pro-
vides the strategic direction and supports them through 
companies’ Supervisory Boards and General Assemblies 
pursuant to the Companies Act, the Statute of KONČAR - 
Electrical Industry Inc. and the statutes of individual com-
panies. Furthermore, the parent company manages a 
part of assets which is not invested in its companies but 
is directly and indirectly in function of the financial sup-
port of placement, products and equipment of depend-
ent companies as a credit / guarantee potential.

KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc.
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in HRK 
subscribed 
capital total

in HRK 
subscribed

captal
total

% 
management
of the parent
31 Dec 2015

% 
ownership

of the parent
31 Dec 2015

Dependent companies

Power Plant and Electric Traction Engineering 50,577,000 50,577,000 100.00 100.00

Generators and Motors 107,927,700 107,927,700 100.00 100.00

High Voltage Switchgear 56,335,140 55,553,340 99.03 98.61

Medium Voltage Apparatus 19,679,700 19,679,700 100.00 100.00

Switchgear 29,018,600 20,321,470 81.70 70.03

Distribution and Special Transformers 76,684,800 39,655,200 67.80 51.71

Instrument Transformers 18,989,100 11,721,900 99.77 61.73

Electronics and Informatics 42,077,040 31,572,060 75.03 75.03

Metal Structures 24,645,600 18,486,600 75.01 75.01

Electric Vehicles 47,026,800 35,288,700 75.04 75.04

Renewable Sources 130,312,400 130,312,400 100.00 100.00

Plant Installation and Commissioning 11,827,500 5,288,100 79.05 44.71

Small Electric Machines 41,641,800 41,641,800 100.00 100.00

Household Appliances 27,553,300 27,553,300 100.00 100.00

Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers 60,499,300 60,499,300 100.00 100.00

Electrical Engineering Institute 40,763,520 40,763,520 100.00 100.00

Infrastructure and Services 49,891,600 49,891,600 100.00 100.00

Affiliated Company

Power Transformers 72,764,000 35,654,400 49.00 49.00

ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT

As the parent company, KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. invoices the dependent  
companies for the following services:

• Fees for using the corporate name, brand and trade mark,

• A part of the costs incurred for joint presentation on fairs,

• A part of the costs for the agencies abroad,

• A part of joint costs for marketing activities,

• Seminars for managers and quality and environment management systems.

An overview including basic information of dependent companies and affiliated companies is shown 
in the continuation.
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MANAGEMENT BOARD

The Supervisory Board appoints and recalls the Chairman of the Board and Board members. The mandate of the 

Chairman of the Board and Board members is five years with an option of reappointment. Pursuant to the Companies 

Act and the Company Statute, the Management Board runs business operations under their personal responsibility. In 

doing so, they are obliged and authorised to take any actions and decisions deemed necessary to manage the Company 

successfully. Supervisory Board’s consent is required to make certain decisions defined by the Statute.

During 2015 KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. was managed by the Management Board consisting of:

Darinko Bago Chairman of the Management Board

Marina Kralj Miliša Board member in charge of Legal, General and HR Affairs

Jozo Miloloža Board member in charge of Finances

Davor Mladina Board member in charge of Industry and Trade

Miroslav Poljak Board member in charge of Corporate Development and ICT

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act and the Statute of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. the General 

Assembly reaches decision on the appointment and recall of the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board is res-

ponsible for appointing and recalling members of the Management Board and for supervising the Company’s operati-

ons. The execution of some considerable transactions (the amount of such transactions is defined by the Regulations 

of the Supervisory Board) and more significant business decisions require Supervisory Board’s consent.

Members of the Supervisory Board

Nenad Filipović Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Jasminka Belačić  Deputy Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board

Boris Draženović Member

Boris Draženović Member

Vicko Ferić Member

Dragan Marčinko Member

Nikola Plavec Member

Petar Mišura Member

Ivan Rujnić Member

Petar Vlaić Member

ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT
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THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Audit Act (Article 28) and the Corporate Governance Code, the Supervisory Board has established the 

Audit Committee. In accordance with the provisions laid down in the Audit Act and the Corporate Governance Code, 

the Audit Committee is in charge of monitoring the financial reporting procedure, it monitors the efficiency of the 

system of control, supervises the conducting of annual financial statements audits, monitors auditors’ independence, 

makes recommendations to the Supervisory Board concerning the selection and to the General Assembly concerning 

the appointment of an audit firm.

The Audit Committee consists of Chairwoman and 4 members:

Jasminka Belačić Chairwoman of the Audit Committee

Boris Draženović Member

Ivan Rujnić Member

Vicko Ferić  Member

THE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

At its session held on 28 September 2012, the Supervisory Board established the Strategic Development Committee. 

The Supervisory Board confers assignments to the Strategic Development Committee for the purpose of tackling 

subjects and activities falling under the remit of the Supervisory Board with a specific emphasis on the long-term 

viability, risk assessment, Group’s strategic priorities, restructuring needs and the development of strategic human 

resource within KONČAR Group.

The Strategic Development Committee consists of the Chairman and 4 members::

Nenad Filipović Chairman of the Strategic Development Committee

Dragan Marčinko Member

Petar Mišura Member

Nikola Plavec Member

Petar Vlaić Member 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLE APPLICATION

3. Corporate Governance Principle Application

Corporate governance principles in KONČAR are based on positive regulations of the Republic of Croatia and the 

adopted international standards. These principles have been publicly disclosed on company’s web pages (www.

koncar.hr) and on the official website of the Zagreb Stock-Exchange (www.zse.hr).

The questionnaire which includes the Zagreb Stock-Exchange Code provisions which the Company applies is avai-

lable at the official web pages of the Zagreb Stock-Exchange.

The adopted Corporate Governance Principles are based on responsible management; they define corporate gover-

nance procedures based on the adopted recognised international standards and the supervision of the operations. 

The underlying purpose is to establish high corporate governance standards and the transparency of operations as 

the foundation for protecting the shareholders, investors and other stakeholders, as well as care for the employees, 

sustainable development and environmental protection.
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4. Market Position

MARKET POSITION

The production programme of KONČAR Group companies is oriented towards the core business activity of electrical 
power and transport. The production capacities are being continuously upgraded through investments into modern 
production technologies and it is important to mention that individual products are designed to meet clients’ deman-
ds (“tailor made”) constituting the Group’s strategic distinction. 

In 2015 the Group contacted new projects in the total value of HRK 2,961.6 million. For the realization in 2015 there 
were new job in the value of 1,171.5 million, while for 2016 and onwards the value of new projects amounts to HRK 
1,790.2 million. 

The status of contracted project (open contracts) at the end of December 2015 amounted to HRK 3,630.2 million. 

Consolidated income from the sales of products and services amounted to HRK 3,049.1 million which is HRK 400.3 
million or 15.1% higher compared to 2014.

Domestic Market

The income from sales on the domestic market amounted to HRK 1,742.4 million (57% of total income from the sales of 
products and services) or HRK 391.7 million or 29% more compared to the previous year. Such increased income are largely 
owed to the realization of the contract with HŽ Putnički prijevoz (HŽ Passenger Transport) related to the delivery of low-floor 
electromotor and diesel-electric trains. The income from the export sales of products and services amounted to HRK 1,306.6 
million (43% of total income from the sales of products and services) which is by 0.7% higher than the achieved in 2014.

In the structure of income from the sales of products and services at the domestic market, to Croatian Railways, 
HŽ Passenger Transport amounted to HRK 639.7 which makes 36.7% of all income generated from the sales of 
products and services on the domestic market.

In 2015 sixteen trains were delivered to HŽ Passenger Transport of which 10 regional and 6 urban-suburban trains. The 
income from the sales of products and services to the Croatian Electricity Company (HEP) in 2015 amounted to HRK 
563.7 million which is by 3.4% less than the achieved income for the same period in 2014. The share of the income from 
the sales of products and service to HEP make 32.3% of the total achieved income on the Croatian market.
The income from the sales and services to trading houses amounted to HRK 266.1 million, whereas the sales to 
the companies from the sector of industry and shipbuilding amounted to HRK 170 million, to Zagreb Electrical Tram 
Company HRK 58.3 million, to INA, THT and Plinacro HRK 36.7 million, to the state and local administration HRK 
58.6 million, and the remaining amount of HRK 8.5 million refers to the companies from the construction sector, HAC 
and HC. The correction for deferred income on the domestic market is negative and amounts to HRK 64.7 million.
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MARKET POSITION

Foreign Market

In the period from January to December 2015 the income from the sales of products and services on the foreign 

market amounted to HRK 1,306.6 million or 0.7% more than the achieved in the same period of the previous year. 

The share of income from the exported sales of products and services makes 43% of the total income from the 

sales of products and services.

Of the total achieved income from the sales of products and services on the foreign market the export to the Euro-

pean Union countries amounted to HRK 774.7 million, which was HRK 61.5 million or 8.6% more than the achieved 

in 2014. The export to the EU countries was 59.3% of the total export. Goods and services in the amount of HRK 

291 million were exported to the Asian countries. The export in the value of HRK 100.8 million was realized to the 

non-EU countries, HRK 75.3 million to the countries in the region (Bosnia and Herzegovina, Macedonia, Serbia), and 

HRK 52.3 million to the USA and Canada. The export to other countries amounted to HRK 12.5 million.

In 2015 the companies of the Group exported their products and services to 90 countries.

Individually, per county, the most significant export was made to Germany, in the amount of HRK 142.2 million, to 

United Arab Emirates HRK 140 million, to Sweden HRK 114 million, to Finland HRK 78.8 million, to Norway HRK 59.4 

million, to Bosnia and Herzegovina HRK 52 million, to the Netherlands HRK 48.3 million. A more significant income 

from the sales of products and services in comparison to the previous year was achieved to Germany, which saw 

the increase of HRK 60.5 million compared to the same period in 2014. It largely relates to the export by KONČAR 

- Distribution and Special Transformers and KONČAR - Metal Structures. 

There was a considerable increase in the export to the markets of United Arab Emirates (the increase of HRK 59 m) 

compared to the previous year. It can be ascribed to the results of the increased export by KONČAR - Distribution 

and Special Transformers and KONČAR - Switchgear. On the Swedish market the export was increased by HRK 36 

million (KONČAR - Distribution and Special Transformers), on the Latvian market the export is higher by HRK 34.8 

million compared to the previous year (KONČAR - Generators and Motors and KONČAR - Distribution and Special 

Transformers).
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Together with good financial results in 2015 a number of facilities in Croatia and abroad 
was realized and contracted.

THE MOST SIGNIFICANT FACILITIES AND PRODUCTS AND NEWLY CONTRACTED PROJECTS

The most important projects realized in 2015:

• Low-floor electric multiple units for HŽ Passenger Transport (10 for regional and 6 for urban-suburban transport),

•  Deliveries of new and revitalized existing generators to Finland, Norway, Sweden, Turkey, Austria, Bosnia and 

Herzegovina and other countries of which the largest project in 2015 was the termination of HPP Binga on the 

Philippines and the third phase of replacement and rehabilitation of HPP Zakučac near Omiš,

•  Excitation system delivered, implemented or contracted in Slovenia, Turkey, Ukraine, New Zealand, Zambia, Bosnia 

and Herzegovina, Macedonia, Finland and India,

• Rehabilitations of substations in Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina and Croatia,

• Remote controlling systems in Bosnia and Herzegovina, Slovenia, Macedonia, Kosovo and Croatia,

•  Distribution and power transformers delivered to 51 countries (on four continents), of which the most significant are 

the markets of Croatia, Sweden, United Arab Emirates and Germany. The largest individual deliveries in 2015 were 

to United Arab Emirates, Italy and transformers for the instalment into low-floor electric multiple units for Croatia,

•  Instrument transformers in 2015 were delivered to about fifty countries (on six continents). The most important 

markets were Poland, Canada and Russia, and the largest individual order was for Canada,

• Switchgears (148 items) for United Arab Emirates,

•  Motors for Austria, the Czech Republic, Denmark, Norway, Germany, the Netherlands and about dozen other countries, 

• Transformers fans for Kuwait, Russia, Turkey, Bulgaria, Italy and Mexico.

The following significant project were contracted in 2015:

• Revitalization of electrical equipment for two hydro power plants in Zambia,

•  Received notification on obtaining the projects (contracts concluded at the beginning of 2016): the construction of 

HPP Vranduk in Bosnia and Herzcegovina, the revitalization of HPP Kamburu in Kenya and the construction of HPP 

Chaparral in Salvador,

•  Delivery of generators for HPP Plave in Slovenia, HPP Korkeakoski in Finland, HPP Moforsen in Sweden,

• Revitalization of HPP Fužine,

• Revitalization of electrical equipment in Thermal Power Plant Zagreb,

• Power transformers for HEP OPS and ODS,

• Reconstruction of substation Kutina.



17

2015
BUSINESS REPORT

MARKET POSITION

2015 Export Countries
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5. Business Results and Financial Position (Balance Sheet) 

For the period between January and December of 2015, KONČAR Group companies achieved the consolidated in-

come from the sale of products and services in the amount of HRK 3,049.1 million, which is 15.1% higher compared 

to the results in the same period in 2014. 

Operating income of HRK 3,181.7 million was recorded, i.e. 12.4% more than in 2014. Operating income from the sale 

of products and services amounted to HRK 3,049.1 million or 95.8% of total operating income. Income from cancelling 

reservations amounted to HRK 67.7 million. Other operating income was recorded in the amount of HRK 64.9 million.

Operating expenses amounted to HRK 3,056.1 million and are 12% higher than in 2014. Material costs under opera-

ting expenses (cost of material and energy, cost of sold goods and other cost) amounted to HRK 2,108.5 million. The 

share of material cost in operating income (corrected by any change in stock) was 66.6% or 1.8% more compared 

to the same period the year before. 

The share of staff costs in operating income (corrected by any change in stock) was 17.9% i.e. 1.4% less than the 

year before.

The difference between operating income and operating expenses resulted in the profit from operating activities 

in the amount of HRK 125.6 million, which is by HRK 21.6 million or 20.9% more than in the period from January - 

December 2014. 

The share of profit from dependent companies amounted to HRK 50.1 million, which is by HRK 12.5 million or 20% 

less compared to the same period the year before.

The negative difference between financial income and expenses amounted to HRK 6.2 million.

Total income for the period January-December 2014 amounted to HRK 3,296.5 million or 11.8% more than in 2014. 

Total expenses recorded in the same period amounted to HRK 3,126.9 million i.e. 12.8% more than in the period 

January-December 2014.

Profit from operating activities amounted to HRK 125.6 million, the share of profit from dependent companies was in 

the amount of HRK 50.1 million, and the negative difference between the financial income and expenses was HRK 

6.2 million making the consolidated profit before tax of HRK 169.5 million. Corporate income tax was HRK 18.2 milli-

on, profit after taxes amounted to HRK 151.3 million, of which HRK 23.7 million was attributed to the non-controlling 

interest (minority interest) and HRK 127.6 million to the shareholders of the parent company.

Of in total 18 KONČAR Group companies, 15 companies had positive business results, while three companies repor-

ted a loss totalling HRK 32 million, of which HRK 26.4 million belongs to the shareholders of the mother company.

The amount of total consolidated assets and resources as of 31 December 2015 was HRK 3,650 million. Compared 

to 31 December 2014, this represented a decrease by HRK 268.4 million or 6.9%. 

In terms of the asset structure, non-current asset amounted to HRK 1,503.4 million and compared to 31 Decem-

ber 2014, there was an increase by HRK 10.6 million. Current asset amounted to HRK 2,134.6 million which was a 

decrease by HRK 275.2 million compared to the end of 2014. Prepaid expenses and accrued receivables (deferred 

expenses) amounted to HRK 12 million and are lower by HRK 3.8 million at end 2015.

In the structure of non-current assets compared to 31 December 2014, intangible assets increased by HRK 9.4 milli-

on. There was a significant increase of intangible assets in the company KONČAR - High Voltage Switchgear in the 

amount of HRK 18 million (development of market competitive gas-isolated, metal-encased facility with the working 

title GIS K8D.10 123 kV). In the same period there was a decrease of share in the amount of HRK 7.4 million by the 

transfer of shares by Kones AG in liquidation to short-term debts. In the majority of dependant companies the value 

of intangible assets was decreased due to the effects of amortization. 

Tangible assets decreased by HRK 2.9 million, financial assets increased by HRK 9.8 million and accounts receivable 

decreased by HRK 5.6 million.
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On 31 December 2015, current assets decreased by HRK 275.2 million compared to 31 December 2014, which 

caused the following changes:

- Inventories decreased by HRK 15.8 million,

- Total current receivables decreased by HRK 174.1 million,

- Financial assets decreased by HRK 40.5 million,

-  At group level, the cash and cash equivalent balance decreased by HRK 44.6 million.

In fund resources on 31 December 2015 the following changes occurred: 

-  Capital, reserves, retained earnings and the profit for the year amounted to HRK 2,093.1 million which is by HRK 

65.5 million more compared to 31 December 2014,

-  Non-controlling (minority interest) amounted to HRK 228.4 million, a decrease of HRK 29 million compared to  

31 December 2014,

- Long-term reservations amounted to HRK 298 million and decreased by HRK 5.7 million,

-  Long-term liabilities amounted to HRK 143.1 million, of which loan liabilities accounted for HRK 143 million. Long-

term liabilities decreased by HRK 18.8 million compared to 31 December 2014.

Current liabilities amounted to HRK 734.4 million, a decrease of HRK 328.2 million compared to 31 December 2014. In 

the structure of short-term liabilities there were significant changes in the position of advances, which decreased by 

HRK 234.8 million (a significant decrease of advances in KONČAR - Electric Vehicles by HRK 186 million as the received 

advance for contracted train delivery with HŽ Passenger Transport which was largely realized in 2015). 

Short-term loan liabilities amounted to HRK 87.9 million, a decrease by HRK 59.2 million compared to 31 December 2014. 

In the structure of funding sources, the subscribed capital, reserves, retained earnings, profit for the year and the equity 

belonging to the non-controlling interest amounted to HRK 2,321.5 million which is by HRK 36.5 million more compared to 

31 December 2014, accounting for 63.6% of total resources. Long-term reservations amounted to HRK 298 million and are 

lower by HRK 5.7 million compared to 31 December 2014, accounting for 8.2% of the total resources. Long-term and short-

term liabilities amounted to HRK 878.1 million, which was HRK 346.4 million less more than at the end of 2014, accounting 

for 24% of total resources. In short-term liabilities, trade liabilities amounted to HRK 367.5 million (HRK 43.9 million less 

compared to end 2014), accounting for 10% of total sources. Total loans (long- and short-term) amounted to HRK 230.8 

million, a decrease of HRK 78 million compared to 31 December 2014. They accounted for 6.3% of total sources.

Long-term funding sources (equity, long-term reservations and long-term liabilities) increased by HRK 736.9 mil-

lion compared to non-current assets and average inventories, which indicates a good maturity structure of funding 

sources. Current assets increased by 2.9 times compared to current liabilities, indicating good liquidity. The consoli-

dated balance sheet shows good financial stability of KONČAR Group.

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 plan 2016

Total Sales and Export Revenue in 2015
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The Review of Operating Performance from January - December 2015 per 
KONČAR Group Companies

in HRK

THE REVIEW OF OPERATING PERFORMANCE FROM JANUARY - DECEMBER 2015 PER KONČAR GROUP COMPANIES

No.of  
employed 

31 Dec 2014

TOTAL REVENUE

Index
4/2

Index
4/3

TOTAL EXPENSES

Index
9/7

Index
9/8

Profit / loss 
before taxes

Corporation 
tax

PROFIT/LOSS AFTER TAXES

Index
16/14

Index
16/15

Subscribed 
capital total

Subscribed 
capital  

of parent

%  
Ownership  

by parent  
31 dec 2015

Share of  
profit/loss 

attributed to 
equity owners

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2014

Plan  
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2014

Plan  
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2014

Plan  
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2015

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

Power Plant and Electric Traction 
Engineering

262 621,956,536 653,606,000 530,919,030 85.4 81.2 609,572,704 648,606,000 524,082,915 86.0 80.8 6,836,115 1,933,645 9,723,449 3,600,000 4,902,470 50.4 136.2 50,577,000 50,577,000 100,0000 4,902,470

Generators and Motors 517 315,950,852 362,614,848 287,083,535 90.9 79.2 290,988,699 340,530,076 263,206,525 90.5 77.3 23,877,010 686,450 24,607,208 21,099,613 23,190,560 94.2 109.9 107,927,700 107,927,700 100,0000 23,190,560

High Voltage Switchgear 131 52,770,919 64,537,317 60,962,999 115.5 94.5 52,379,506 62,194,682 60,461,008 115.4 97.2 501,991 391,413 2,342,635 501,991 128.3 21.4 56,335,140 55,553,340 98,6122 495,025

Medium Voltage Apparatus 81 73,901,980 77,800,000 77,909,584 105.4 100.1 64,134,793 67,190,000 67,315,458 105.0 100.2 10,594,126 2,088,091 7,852,995 8,488,000 8,506,035 108.3 100.2 19,679,700 19,679,700 100,0000 8,506,035

Switchgear 136 90,057,092 85,150,000 60,323,440 67.0 70.8 89,955,089 84,650,000 79,114,292 87.9 93.5 -18,790,852 102,003 500,000 -18,790,852 29,018,600 20,321,470 70,0291 -13,159,068

Distribution and Special Tranformers 492 736,526,342 710,700,000 811,522,767 110.2 114.2 708,776,039 682,800,000 780,553,461 110.1 114.3 30,969,306 904,786 27,259,062 22,320,000 30,064,520 110.3 134.7 76,684,800 39,655,200 51,7119 15,546,947

Instrument Transformers 244 209,362,137 199,849,695 200,344,019 95.7 100.2 190,444,005 183,149,695 186,168,507 97.8 101.6 14,175,512 3,173,688 14,052,791 14,000,000 11,001,824 78.3 78.6 18,989,100 11,721,900 61,7296 6,791,385

Electronics and Informatics 261 140,273,647 170,850,000 182,014,947 129.8 106.5 135,509,564 165,250,000 174,925,379 129.1 105.9 7,089,568 1,141,754 4,764,083 5,300,000 5,947,814 124.8 112.2 42,077,040 31,572,060 75,0339 4,462,879

Metal Structures 297 193,170,653 212,842,394 202,798,710 105.0 95.3 189,143,072 206,785,646 195,744,416 103.5 94.7 7,054,294 1,439,449 3,144,814 4,845,398 5,614,845 178.5 115.9 24,645,600 18,486,600 75,0097 4,211,681

Electric Vehicles 298 152,237,028 727,635,554 636,783,251 418.3 87.5 143,961,238 716,244,554 607,664,101 422.1 84.8 29,119,150 1,221,678 7,139,580 8,388,300 27,897,472 390.7 332.6 47,026,800 35,288,700 75,0396 20,934,138

Renewable Sources 5 22,457,616 26,096,800 29,419,416 131.0 112.7 25,908,329 25,741,470 32,530,321 125.6 126.4 -3,110,905 -3,450,713 355,330 -3,110,905 90.2 130,312,400 130,312,400 100,0000 -3,110,905

Engineering for Power Plant Instal-
lation and Commissioning

117 91,808,935 88,781,000 72,150,252 78.6 81.3 89,537,822 87,025,000 70,884,693 79.2 81.5 1,265,559 360,353 1,653,023 1,371,880 905,206 54.8 66.0 11,827,500 5,288,100 44,7102 404,719

Small Electric Machines 198 95,117,017 94,485,200 104,633,970 110.0 110.7 83,536,280 85,402,000 89,130,517 106.7 104.4 15,503,453 3,271,700 9,075,066 7,173,200 12,231,753 134.8 170.5 41,641,800 41,641,800 100,0000 12,231,753

Household Appliances 70 158,424,991 146,265,000 159,335,965 100.6 108.9 158,019,140 144,265,000 169,460,974 107.2 117.5 -10,125,009 405,851 2,000,000 -10,125,009 27,553,300 27,553,300 100,0000 -10,125,009

LV Swithces and Circuit Breakers 195 54,779,447 57,554,000 51,312,301 93.7 89.2 55,689,365 56,854,000 50,941,711 91.5 89.6 370,590 -909,918 675,000 370,590 -40.7 60,499,300 60,499,300 100,0000 370,590

Electrical Engineering Institute 168 74,524,420 79,836,559 94,050,912 126.2 117.8 70,608,838 77,816,559 84,424,351 119.6 108.5 9,626,561 1,123,335 3,915,582 2,020,000 8,503,226 217.2 421.0 40,763,520 40,763,520 100,0000 8,503,226

Energy and Maintenance 144 57,769,737 58,141,849 59,862,918 103.6 103.0 54,848,620 55,070,322 55,450,795 101.1 100.7 4,412,123 889,713 2,364,271 2,484,289 3,522,410 149.0 141.8 49,891,600 49,891,600 100,0000 3,522,410

Kones AG 15,755,609 15,670,260 85,349

Total Dependant Companies 3.616 3,156,844,958 3,816,746,216 3,621,428,016 114.7 94.9 3,028,683,363 3,689,575,004 3,492,059,424 115.3 94.6 129,368,592 18,234,642 112,175,909 106,963,645 111,133,950 99.1 103.9 835,450,900 746,733,690 87,678,835

Končar Inc. 50 220,729,282 162,727,470 193,271,645 87.6 118.8 131,137,057 84,667,000 130,837,174 99.8 154.5 62,434,471 89,592,225 78,060,470 62,434,471 69.7 80.0 1,208,895,930 100,00 62,434,471

Total Parent And Dependant 
Companies

3.666 3,377,574,240 3,979,473,686 3,814,699,661 112.9 95.9 3,159,820,420 3,774,242,004 3,622,896,598 114.7 96.0 191,803,063 18,234,642 201,768,134 185,024,115 173,568,421 86.0 93.8 2,044,346,830 746,733,690 150,113,306

Decreased by a portion of income earned by dependent companies and the parent from internal relations

Power Transformers* 515 992,349,847 1,071,765,000 848,061,443 85.5 79.1 838,992,148 950,017,159 724,230,328 86.3 76.2 123,831,115 24,936,325 122,611,412 98,183,200 98,894,790 80.7 100.7 72,764,000 35,654,400 49,00005 48,458,448

ELKAKON d.o.o. (DIST 50% 
equity share)

3,092,000 799,466 25,85559 370,388

TBEA (Instrument transformers 
27% equity share) 

40,869,289 4,803,199 11,75250 1,288,901

 

Note: 
*Business results for 1 October 2014 - 30 September 2015

Profit ascribed to the holders of parent’s equity 127,651,294

Profit ascribed to minority interest 23,669,078

Group’s profit 151,320,372
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No.of  
employed 

31 Dec 2014

TOTAL REVENUE

Index
4/2

Index
4/3

TOTAL EXPENSES

Index
9/7

Index
9/8

Profit / loss 
before taxes

Corporation 
tax

PROFIT/LOSS AFTER TAXES

Index
16/14

Index
16/15

Subscribed 
capital total

Subscribed 
capital  

of parent

%  
Ownership  

by parent  
31 dec 2015

Share of  
profit/loss 

attributed to 
equity owners

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2014

Plan  
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2014

Plan  
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2014

Plan  
Jan-Dec 2015

Achieved
Jan-Dec 2015

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

Power Plant and Electric Traction 
Engineering

262 621,956,536 653,606,000 530,919,030 85.4 81.2 609,572,704 648,606,000 524,082,915 86.0 80.8 6,836,115 1,933,645 9,723,449 3,600,000 4,902,470 50.4 136.2 50,577,000 50,577,000 100,0000 4,902,470

Generators and Motors 517 315,950,852 362,614,848 287,083,535 90.9 79.2 290,988,699 340,530,076 263,206,525 90.5 77.3 23,877,010 686,450 24,607,208 21,099,613 23,190,560 94.2 109.9 107,927,700 107,927,700 100,0000 23,190,560

High Voltage Switchgear 131 52,770,919 64,537,317 60,962,999 115.5 94.5 52,379,506 62,194,682 60,461,008 115.4 97.2 501,991 391,413 2,342,635 501,991 128.3 21.4 56,335,140 55,553,340 98,6122 495,025

Medium Voltage Apparatus 81 73,901,980 77,800,000 77,909,584 105.4 100.1 64,134,793 67,190,000 67,315,458 105.0 100.2 10,594,126 2,088,091 7,852,995 8,488,000 8,506,035 108.3 100.2 19,679,700 19,679,700 100,0000 8,506,035

Switchgear 136 90,057,092 85,150,000 60,323,440 67.0 70.8 89,955,089 84,650,000 79,114,292 87.9 93.5 -18,790,852 102,003 500,000 -18,790,852 29,018,600 20,321,470 70,0291 -13,159,068

Distribution and Special Tranformers 492 736,526,342 710,700,000 811,522,767 110.2 114.2 708,776,039 682,800,000 780,553,461 110.1 114.3 30,969,306 904,786 27,259,062 22,320,000 30,064,520 110.3 134.7 76,684,800 39,655,200 51,7119 15,546,947

Instrument Transformers 244 209,362,137 199,849,695 200,344,019 95.7 100.2 190,444,005 183,149,695 186,168,507 97.8 101.6 14,175,512 3,173,688 14,052,791 14,000,000 11,001,824 78.3 78.6 18,989,100 11,721,900 61,7296 6,791,385

Electronics and Informatics 261 140,273,647 170,850,000 182,014,947 129.8 106.5 135,509,564 165,250,000 174,925,379 129.1 105.9 7,089,568 1,141,754 4,764,083 5,300,000 5,947,814 124.8 112.2 42,077,040 31,572,060 75,0339 4,462,879

Metal Structures 297 193,170,653 212,842,394 202,798,710 105.0 95.3 189,143,072 206,785,646 195,744,416 103.5 94.7 7,054,294 1,439,449 3,144,814 4,845,398 5,614,845 178.5 115.9 24,645,600 18,486,600 75,0097 4,211,681

Electric Vehicles 298 152,237,028 727,635,554 636,783,251 418.3 87.5 143,961,238 716,244,554 607,664,101 422.1 84.8 29,119,150 1,221,678 7,139,580 8,388,300 27,897,472 390.7 332.6 47,026,800 35,288,700 75,0396 20,934,138

Renewable Sources 5 22,457,616 26,096,800 29,419,416 131.0 112.7 25,908,329 25,741,470 32,530,321 125.6 126.4 -3,110,905 -3,450,713 355,330 -3,110,905 90.2 130,312,400 130,312,400 100,0000 -3,110,905

Engineering for Power Plant Instal-
lation and Commissioning

117 91,808,935 88,781,000 72,150,252 78.6 81.3 89,537,822 87,025,000 70,884,693 79.2 81.5 1,265,559 360,353 1,653,023 1,371,880 905,206 54.8 66.0 11,827,500 5,288,100 44,7102 404,719

Small Electric Machines 198 95,117,017 94,485,200 104,633,970 110.0 110.7 83,536,280 85,402,000 89,130,517 106.7 104.4 15,503,453 3,271,700 9,075,066 7,173,200 12,231,753 134.8 170.5 41,641,800 41,641,800 100,0000 12,231,753

Household Appliances 70 158,424,991 146,265,000 159,335,965 100.6 108.9 158,019,140 144,265,000 169,460,974 107.2 117.5 -10,125,009 405,851 2,000,000 -10,125,009 27,553,300 27,553,300 100,0000 -10,125,009

LV Swithces and Circuit Breakers 195 54,779,447 57,554,000 51,312,301 93.7 89.2 55,689,365 56,854,000 50,941,711 91.5 89.6 370,590 -909,918 675,000 370,590 -40.7 60,499,300 60,499,300 100,0000 370,590

Electrical Engineering Institute 168 74,524,420 79,836,559 94,050,912 126.2 117.8 70,608,838 77,816,559 84,424,351 119.6 108.5 9,626,561 1,123,335 3,915,582 2,020,000 8,503,226 217.2 421.0 40,763,520 40,763,520 100,0000 8,503,226

Energy and Maintenance 144 57,769,737 58,141,849 59,862,918 103.6 103.0 54,848,620 55,070,322 55,450,795 101.1 100.7 4,412,123 889,713 2,364,271 2,484,289 3,522,410 149.0 141.8 49,891,600 49,891,600 100,0000 3,522,410

Kones AG 15,755,609 15,670,260 85,349

Total Dependant Companies 3.616 3,156,844,958 3,816,746,216 3,621,428,016 114.7 94.9 3,028,683,363 3,689,575,004 3,492,059,424 115.3 94.6 129,368,592 18,234,642 112,175,909 106,963,645 111,133,950 99.1 103.9 835,450,900 746,733,690 87,678,835

Končar Inc. 50 220,729,282 162,727,470 193,271,645 87.6 118.8 131,137,057 84,667,000 130,837,174 99.8 154.5 62,434,471 89,592,225 78,060,470 62,434,471 69.7 80.0 1,208,895,930 100,00 62,434,471

Total Parent And Dependant 
Companies

3.666 3,377,574,240 3,979,473,686 3,814,699,661 112.9 95.9 3,159,820,420 3,774,242,004 3,622,896,598 114.7 96.0 191,803,063 18,234,642 201,768,134 185,024,115 173,568,421 86.0 93.8 2,044,346,830 746,733,690 150,113,306

Decreased by a portion of income earned by dependent companies and the parent from internal relations

Power Transformers* 515 992,349,847 1,071,765,000 848,061,443 85.5 79.1 838,992,148 950,017,159 724,230,328 86.3 76.2 123,831,115 24,936,325 122,611,412 98,183,200 98,894,790 80.7 100.7 72,764,000 35,654,400 49,00005 48,458,448

ELKAKON d.o.o. (DIST 50% 
equity share)

3,092,000 799,466 25,85559 370,388

TBEA (Instrument transformers 
27% equity share) 

40,869,289 4,803,199 11,75250 1,288,901

 

Profit ascribed to the holders of parent’s equity 127,651,294

Profit ascribed to minority interest 23,669,078

Group’s profit 151,320,372
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7. Risk Exposure

The core business of KONČAR is Energy and Transport while the company plans to restructure and separate all other 

business activities. KONČAR’s restructuring of its portfolio is permanent. During 2015, the liquidations of KONČAR 

- Tools and KONČAR Kones AG in Switzerland was finished. The liquidation of KONČAR - Catering Equipment is in 

the final phase and is expected to be finished in the first half of 2016.

6. Restructuring 

The Group is exposed to various market and financial operating conditions. The business environment risk is de-
termined by political, economic and social conditions existing in the markets of companies’ operations. The Group 
monitors the above stated risks and takes measures for mitigating their potential impact on financial stability.

All Group companies regularly monitor and manage their balance sheets, liquidity and capital adequacy as well as 
set measures focused on illiquidity causes prevention or elimination, take measures focused on companies suffi-
cient long-term funding sources in view of the scope and type of their business activity and regularly monitor the 
capital adequacy achievement.

At the Group level, long-term funding sources (capital, long-term provisions and long-term liabilities) exceed its 
non-current assets and an average inventory balance which indicates a sound funding maturity structure. In relation 
to short-term liabilities, current assets are 2.9 times higher, which indicates a sound liquidity of the system. The 
structure of consolidated balance sheet indicates financial soundness of KONČAR Group.

The Group manages the risks that might impact the Group’s business operations by means of monitoring business 
processes and internal risk reports identifying and analysing risk exposure based on its degree and significance.

• Market risk
Market risk emerges as a consequence of potential losses stemming from less-than-favourable economic conditi-
ons and a decline in market demand. 

The Group companies operate domestically and internationally. The Group’s core activity relates to energy and 
transport connected equipment and products. The production scope heavily depends on such investments. Under 
the influence of the global crisis and the instability of geopolitical situations in some parts of the world (was in Syria 
and Iraq, crisis in Ukraine etc.) there is a risk of a decrease and of closing certain markets down and providing sti-
mulus in order to assign works to domicile enterprises. On the power equipment market in 2015, besides volatile 
prices of basic raw material, there was a huge competition pressure on the prices and equipment and profit margin. 
Furthermore, competitiveness of our companies’ products and services has been impacted by the Group’s and our 
customers changed operating conditions. 

Management Boards of individual companies price their products independently.

• Risk on the procurement market 
The prices of main raw materials and materials (copper, tin, steel...) in the last couple of years have been under the 
influence of unpredictable changes (immense growth or fall in short time period). In 2015 there was a disturban-
ce on the market of transformer tin in Europe due to the antidumping process led by the European Commission. 
The disturbance caused the shortage of tin, especially high-quality one. The Group companies working within the 
framework of the transformer programme successfully overcame that disturbance and during 2015 the European 
Commission withdrew the introduction of antidumping prices and introduced minimum prices on the import of tin 
from Japan, China, Korea, Russia and the USA.
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• Technological and development risks
Group companies continuously invest considerable resources into key technologies and strategically important se-
gments of production in order to decrease the risk of technological and developmental lagging behind the competiti-
on. Group companies plan to invest considerable amounts into the development of new products and the innovation 
of existing ones in the future period too.

• Staff risks
Usual staff turnover and changes in personnel structure do not influence significantly the business operations of 
Group companies. Sudden or larger fluctuations of employees with specialist knowledge (e.g. opening the EU 
labour market for Croatian employees) could influence the operation. The companies try to protect themselves by 
continuous investment into education and stimulations to the income of key employees.

• Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital in a way to ensure that it will be able to continue further continuous operations while 
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt to equity balance. The Group manages 
capital and makes appropriate adjustments for the purpose of proper capital structure in accordance with market 
present economic conditions. Group companies can make a decision on the dividends paid to shareholders, on the 
increase / decrease of the share capital, on the sale of assets in order to decrease liabilities etc.

• Currency risk
The official currency of the Group is the Croatian Kuna. However, some transactions executed in foreign exchange 
are being converted to Croatian Kuna, applying the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. The resulting 
exchange gains and losses are being credited or debited against Profit and Loss Account. The companies hedge 
against the foreign currency exchange risk by continuous planning and monitoring of its cash flow, contracting sales 
and procurement in the same currency where possible, adjusting the receipt and outlay dynamism, as well as term 
foreign currency purchases in accordance with the cash receipt and outlay plan. A smaller portion of the companies 
employ financial derivatives to hedge against the financial risk exposure. 

• Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest risk since some loans received are agreed at variable interest rate while most assets do 
not bear interests. Certain companies within the Group hedge against the risk of interest rates payable in foreign currencies.

Apart from an increased market risk due to reduced demand as a consequence of prolonged recession, there were 
no other significant changes as regards the Group’s exposure to financial risk. 

• Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of a counterparty defaulting on its contractual obligations resulting in the financial loss 
to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties thus mitigating the 
risk of financial loss form defaults. The Group uses data and opinions gathered from rating agencies, the Chamber 
of Commerce as well as other publicly available financial information on companies’ financial status and uses its 
own data base to rate its major customers. The Group’s risk exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties 
are continuously monitored. As a principle, contracts are entered into only with creditworthy counterparties when 
appropriate payment insurance instruments are obtained.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by individual characteristics of each customer. The Group 
has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually in terms of its creditwort-
hiness before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are set. The Group establishes an allowance for 
impairment as an estimation of incurred losses in respect of expected losses from receivables and investments.

• Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of the Group not being able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Risk manage-
ment is the responsibility of the Management Boards of Group companies. The Group manages this risk by con-
tinuously monitoring the estimated cash flow, comparing and adjusting it with actual income and expenses. As a 
whole, there was no significant exposure of the Group to liquidity risk.
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The shares of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. have been quoted in the Official Market of the Zagreb Stock-Exchan-

ge. The shares are recognisable under their KOEI-R-A ticker. In keeping with the positive regulations, the Company 

ensures regular access to information on its operations and activities as well as information on facts and circumstan-

ces that may bear influence to the share price (price sensitive information).

The company’s share capital is HRK 1,208,895,930.00 comprising of 2,572,119 ordinary shares with the value of 

HRK 470.00 each.

The Company applies the same conditions to all its shareholders and treats them equally regardless of the number 

of shares in their possession, their country of origin and other properties. The voting rights encompass all of the 

Company’s shareholders in that the number of votes they are entitled to at the General Assembly equals the number 

of shares they have in their possession.

During the course of 2015, the KONČAR - Electrical Industry share price followed the overall market trend. The 

highest price was achieved in January 2015 (HRK 725.99), and the lowest one was recorded in May (HRK 640.01) to 

arrive at an average of HRK 654.92 at the end of 2015. The overall volume generated from trading KONČAR shares 

amounted to HRK 68.2 million, a 5.1% increase compared to the volume traded in 2014. In total, 100,955 shares 

constituted the traded volume in 2014 (6.6% more compared to 2014).

Compared to the previous year, in 2015 the ownership structure of first ten shareholders slightly changed. The share 

of Societe Generale - Splitska banka d.d. (AZ obvezni mirovinski fond) increased by 2.12%, the share of PBZ d.d. 

custodial account was increased by 0.57%, and the share in the ownership of Kristijan Floričić decreased by 0.85%. 

In 2015 the State Office for State Assets Management (DUUDI) transferred 142,298 shares (5.53%) to the Centre 

for Restructuring and Sales (CERP).

On October 2015, KONČAR - Electrical Industry and InterCapital Securities Ltd. signed the Market Making Agree-

ment under which InterCapital Securities Ltd. undertook the obligation of performing market making activities for 

the shares of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. shares, recognizable under their KOEI-R-A ticker, ISIN: HRKOEI-

RA0009, and quoted in the Official Market of the Zagreb Stock-Exchange. 

The market making service includes company share purchase and sale orders pursuant to the Rules of the Zagreb 

Stock Exchange.

The dependant companies KONČAR - Distribution and Special Transformers and KONČAR - Switchgear have been 

included in the Zagreb Stock-Exchange regular market quotation. In 2015 regular and preferred shares of KONČAR - 

Distribution and Special Transformers were being traded, and at the beginning of the year the price of a regular share 

was HRK 1,129, and at the end it was HRK 1,250.

Shares of KONČAR - Switchgear were not traded in 2015. Shares of KONČAR - Instrument Transformers were 

quoted on the Zagreb Stock-Exchange’s Multilateral Trade Platform (MTP). During the course of 2015, the price of 

preferred shares of KONČAR - Instrument Transformers traded ranged from HRK 1,253.02 to HRK 1,548.99.

On 10 December 2015 after the purchase of all shares of KONČAR - Medium Voltage Apparatus by the majority sha-

reholder (KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc.) the trading with the company shares on the Zagreb Stock-Exchange’s 

Multilateral Trade Platform (MTP) ceased.

In 2015 the shares of the companies KONČAR - Electrical Vehicles Inc., KONČAR - Electronics and Informatics 

Inc. and KONČAR - Metal Structures Inc. were quoted on the Zagreb Stock-Exchange’s Multilateral Trade Platform 

(MTP). The said shares were not traded in 2015.

On 31 December 2015 the company had 5,861 treasury stocks, i.e. 0.23% of the company’s equity.

8. Shares 
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Share Price Trend KOEI-R-A in HRK in 2015

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Shareholder Number  
of shares

Ownership 
stake

Number  
of shares

Ownership 
stake

HPB d.d. (Kapitalni fond d.d.) 724.515 28,17 724.515 28,17

Restructuring and Sale Centre CERP / Croatian Pension Insurance Institute (HZMO) 384.628 14,95 384.628 14,95

Restructuring and Sale Centre / Republic of Croatia 142.298 5,53 142.298 5,53

Hypo-Alpe-Adria-Bank d.d. / PBZ Croatia Osiguranje 255.928 9,95 255.928 9,95

Societe Generale - Splitska banka d.d. / Erste Plavi Compulsory Pension Fund 202.149 7,86 202.149 7,86

Societe Generale - Splitska banka d.d. / AZ Compulsory Pension Fund 161.110 6,26 106.438 4,14

State Office for the Management of State Assets / Republic of Croatia 117.982 4,59 117.982 4,59

Floričić Kristijan 60.714 2,36 82.684 3,21

Valamar Riviera 39.791 1,55 39.791 1,55

PBZ d.d. / custodial account 30.208 1,17 27.366 1,06

Other shareholders 446.935 17,38 486.479 18,91

KONČAR d.d. / treasury stock / 5.861 0,23 1.861 0,07

Total 2.572.119 100,00 2.572.119 100,00

Company’s Ownership Structure

HRK

740

720

700

680

660

640

2 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15

2 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
5

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5

2 
A

pr
il 

20
15

2 
M

ay
 2

01
5

2 
Ju

ne
 2

01
5

2 
Ju

ly
 2

01
5

2 
A

ug
us

t 
20

15

2 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

15

2 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5

2 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
15

2 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
15



26 PRODUCT AND PRODUCTION DEVELOPMENT

An integral part of the Group’s long-term business policy is to rely on products made through own development.

The Board of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. manages the development based on the adopted concept of the 

Strategic Development Areas in KONČAR Group. All adopted decisions are in accordance with long-term development 

goals of the Group, the needs for developing new products of the Group, the development of techniques and 

technologies as well as available resources. 

The following strategic development areas are:

• Production of electrical power,

• Substations and electrical power transport,

• Railway vehicles,

• Renewable resources,

• Advanced networks and computer communications,

• Information technologies.

The most important development projects in 2015 were:

•  Low-floor diesel-electric multiple unit was developed for HŽ Passenger Transport and is in the process of type 

testing,

• Development and testing on all components of 145 kV gas-isolated, metal-encased facility K8D.6-N was completed,

• New generation of transformer monitoring system was developed based on own hardware and software solutions,

• Technical solution of the synchronous generator with a cylindrical rotor for small hydro power plants was optimized,

• Energy storage with super-capacitors for railway vehicles was developed,

• A series of voltage transformers of great power with decreased losses was developed.

9. Product and Production Development
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10. Employees

The starting point of KONČAR’s strategic business thinking is that its employees constitute the company’s core 

asset. That coupled with the fact that the entire operation depends on the involvement of each and every employee 

made KONČAR decide to found its competitiveness upon the experience, knowhow and innovativeness of the staff.

KONČAR closed the year 2015 with a total of 3,666 employees, of whom 1058 with university degrees, including 

approximately 71% of technical professionals (47% electrical engineers, 24% mechanical engineers), 16% of 

bachelor degree holders in economics, and the remaining 13% of other professions.

In 2015, KONČAR had 27 PhD/D.Sc. and 50 MSc/MBA degree holders. The average age of KONČAR employees 

stood at 44 in 2015. The average age of the newly employed in 2014 was 31. Highly educated younger workers 

who graduated from the Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computing have been predominantly recruited.

KONČAR has been traditionally securing its highly educated staff by providing scholarships to students of various 

faculties (the Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computing, the Faculty of Mechanical Engineering and Naval 

Architecture). However, considering the problems identified in the educational system and insufficient connection 

between the educational institutions, labour market and economy, the number of scholarship holder decreased. In 

case the obstacles of this method get eliminated (there is no active cooperation of the company in the education 

of students, no knowledge and skills validation of students / scholarship holders) the increase in the number of 

scholarship holder is expected to increase.

Currently 53 employees are completing their doctoral studies while 45 are attending their post-graduate programmes.

Since lifelong learning represents a guarantee of business success, permanent investment into knowledge of its 

employees stands as one of KONČAR’s priorities. This is precisely the reason why there is a pronounced growth 

in the number of staff taking part in various types of training. At the same time, there is an increase in total average 

investments made for training purposes.

KONČAR pays special attention to the selection of its managers, i.e. to the timely recognition of their managerial 

potentials and investments into their development and creating space for further advancement through the educa-

tional programmes within KONČAR academy and its continuous work in the last five years. 

The analysis showed that 49.5% of employees that attended the education in KONČAR academy during their 

education, that is, after the termination of the educational cycle, advanced in their career. 

In 2015 there was a repeated analysis of the Organizational climate in KONČAR Group companies. The results 

analysis and definition of needed activities will be carried out in 2016. The Organizational climate is defined as a 

general psychological atmosphere in the organization which is stable through time and directly influences the pro-

ductivity of employees, and as a consequence, the success of the entire organization. The aim of analysing the 

organizational climate is to identify the areas which influence the satisfaction with work, and those which decrease 

the organization efficiency (and potentially cause unexpected costs in the future).

During 2015, KONČAR has continued its successful collaboration with a series of scientific and educational insti-

tutions. This enabled the recognition, definition and implementation of a number of projects with stakeholders ta-

king part as equal partners by introducing their expertise and fostering the cooperation between the scientific/

educational and business sectors.
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11. Quality and Evnironment

An integral part of KONČAR’s business policy includes reaching client satisfaction through the delivery of high 
quality and reliable products, environmental protection and health and safety of the employees. This policy is being 
met in all of the Group’s companies via the application and certification of their management systems as per the 
international ISO 9001 Quality Management System requirements, ISO 14001 Environmental Management System 
and OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System.

A total of 15 companies have had their quality management systems ISO 9001 certified. The core purpose of the 
system has to do with management of key processes that affect the quality of products or services aimed at re-
aching the client satisfaction. The ISO 9001 certificate, issued by authorised independent certification institutions, 
provides clients with a degree of assurance concerning the capacity of an organisation to meet their demands. More 
and more, and especially during the prequalification process for contracting certain products, buyers audit their co-
unterparties i.e. they carry out on-site verification of the quality of management system functions in order to be sure 
of the Company’s capacity to deliver on their requirements and expectations.

A total of 17 companies have had their quality management systems ISO 14001 certified. By applying this system 
the companies continuously monitor and analyse various aspects of the environment while performing their busi-
ness activities, carrying out their processes, looking into the environmental impact of products and services they 
delivered, and taking adequate measures to mitigate any adverse effects. The ISO 14001 certificate is issued by 
authorised independent certification institutions, which renders assurance to all stakeholders, ranging from central 
governments to local communities, of the company’s responsible behaviour towards the environment.

A total of eight companies have had their occupational health and safety management system OHSAS 18001 certi-
fied. By applying this system, companies have been continuously monitoring and analysing work place hazards and 
conducting measures for the prevention and mitigation of accidents which might lead to the loss of health and life 
as well as the loss of material goods. The OHSAS 18001 Certificate issued by authorized independent certification 
institutions renders assurance to all stakeholders of the Company’s conduct of legal and other measures aimed at 
the provision of safe working environment and work injury protection.

GROUP COMPANIES ISO 9001 ISO 14001 OHSAS 18001 ISO/IEC 27001

KONČAR - Electrical Engineering Institute

KONČAR - Power Transformers

KONČAR - High Voltage Switchgear

KONČAR - Metal Structures

KONČAR - Instrument Transformers

KONČAR - Engineering for Plant Installation and Commissioning

KONČAR - Distribution and Special Transformers

KONČAR - Electric Vehicles

KONČAR - Medium Voltage Apparatuses

KONČAR - Electronics and Informatics

KONČAR - Generators and Motors

KONČAR - Power Plant and Electric Traction Engineering

KONČAR - Small Electrical Machines

KONČAR - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers

KONČAR - Switchgear

KONČAR - Infrastructure and Services

KONČAR - Household Appliances

KONČAR - Renewable Sources
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12. Corporate Social Responsibility

Through the performance of its daily business and production activities, KONČAR complies with the principles of 
socially responsible operation. The starting point is in the fact that the company should take full responsibility which 
goes beyond the sphere of exclusively economic interests. KONČAR carries out and continuously improves the 
activities on the level of the Group which can be found in details in its CSR reports which is being issued tenth year 
in a row and is published on KONČAR’s web page where it is available to all interested stakeholders.

KONČAR is a part of the Global Compact Network (UN Global Treaty), the largest world initiative in the field of cor-
porate social responsibility. KONČAR has been producing its Corporate Social Responsibility Report following the 
Global Compact (GC) principles and the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI 4) guidelines. With this report, KONČAR 
positioned itself amongst a small group of Croatian companies producing such reports. The recognition to KONČAR 
for activities on this area is the election of a KONČAR’s representative for the Chairwoman of the Steering Council 
in Global Compact Croatia at the end of 2015.

The approach to socially responsible operations places a special emphasis on the care for people, environment and all se-
gments related to the protection and conservation of natural resources, as well as the cooperation with the community.

The most significant bearers of the development in every company are its employees, and KONČAR is aware that 
success is achieved only by motivated and educated people. This is the reason why the most important activities 
are related to further improvement of working conditions so a number of activities regarding continuous training of 
employees, prevention of diseases and organized leisure activities were organized, alongside unquestionable regu-
lar income and payments of all legal obligations. For those who have ended their professional careers, the KONČAR 
Pensioners’ Club was established, whereas the Homeland War Veterans Club gathers participants of the Croatian 
Homeland War. They organize joint activities such as the Christmas Futsal Tournament, which was participated by 
25 teams from 12 KONČAR Groups in 2015, hiking, skiing trips etc. 

Environmental protection in production facilities and on sites where the equipment and products are installed is one 
of KONČAR’s priorities. Maximum attention is given to the safety and minimum impact to environment: from the 
control of input raw materials, components, production process as well as finished goods and plants.

KONČAR takes care of the decrease of adverse impacts to environment through many other activities. Therefore, 
the Day of the Planet Earth 2015 was an opportunity for employees volunteering activities “Let’s improve our envi-
ronment” and “Clean your working space of excess papers” in which numerous employees took part.

All forms of activities for children and the young in curriculum and extra-curriculum activities, as well as social and hu-
manitarian support are a part of cooperation with the community which successfully continued during 2015. Celebrating 
KONČAR’s Day the elementary school “Josip Kozarac“ in Soljani, a place in Vukovar-Srijem County was given a donation 
- computer equipment necessary for the education of 150 students from the areas that suffered severe flooding.

Various cultural events and creativity activities of the young are encouraged and supported, as well as the sports activi-
ties of “less commercial” sports clubs. Through various forms of support KONČAR tries to help create quality activities, 
and one of the new ones is the support to KONČAR Chess Club, one of the oldest in Croatia, to open a free of charge 
school of chess for KONČAR employees’ children and offer lectures, socializing and chances to take part in competitions.
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At the Supervisory Board meeting held on 15 December 2015, the Business Plan for 2016 was adopted.

Consolidated Group’s income from the sale of products and services is planned in the amount of HRK 3.1 billion, 

which is 2.4% more compared to 2015. The plan for the domestic market sales was set at HRK 1.6 billion and at 

HRK 1.5 billion for exports. 

The consolidated Group’s profit before tax is planned to reach HRK 178 million; corporate tax is planned at HRK 

22.3 million; profits after tax at HRK 155.7 million; minority stake at HRK 22.1 million, while the portion of the parent 

company’s share in the Group’s profits is planned at HRK 133.6 million. 

The 2016 plan includes contracting new products and services in the amount of HRK 3 billion to reach the planned 

contracted balance at year end of HRK 3.5 billion.

13. Business Plan for 2016
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The development strategy of KONČAR Group is based on the fact that the priority task of the company is to produce 

the most complex products for the end customer in the area of core business, electrical power and transport. This 

includes complex products like high voltage substations, hydro power plants, wind turbines, trams, electric and 

diesel electric trains etc. 

The strategic plan of KONČAR Group for the period 2015 - 2019 is to revise the plan for previous period and is based 

on the following postulates and business orientation:

• Production - individual products of high level of complexity and added value,

•  Product development - own development in cooperation with scientific institutions and the increase of knowledge 

share in products and services,

• Business operations - without strategic partner in the area of power and transport,

• Export increase - the increase of export / domestic market ratio,

•  Human resources management - focused education for own needs, scholarships, professional training and scien-

tific education,

• Synergy - encouragement and optimising common business processes in Group companies,

•  Social responsibility and responsibility towards stakeholders - stronger engagement in all social aspects, especi-

ally activities related to environmental protection,

• Investments - expanding the production capacities of strategic product parts, optimising existing resources,

• Restructuring companies which are not in the area of core business.

In the previous period the Company Management adopted a decision on the initiation of the project “Knowledge 

Management System” which is based on four knowledge management areas that are of interest to KONČAR Group. 

Those are the areas of Human Resources, Business Processes, Market and Intellectual Property and Innovations.

14. Future development strategy

CLOSING REMARK
From the reporting date until the date of adopting financial statements, there were no events which might have 

significantly impacted Company’s 2015 financial reports, whose publication would be required as a consequence.

Zagreb, 24 March 2016

Chairman of the Management Board 
KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. 
Darinko Bago
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Management Board 

Darinko Bago, Chairman of the Management Board
Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 188, +385 1 3667 195, fax: +385 1 3667 196

e-mail: koncar.head@koncar.hr

Marina Kralj Miliša, Member of the Management Board
Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 169, fax: +385 1 3667 192

e-mail: kralj.dd@koncar.hr

Jozo Miloloža, Member of the Management Board
Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 606, fax: +385 1 3666 562

e-mail: koncar.finance@koncar.hr

Miki Huljić, Deputy Member of the Management Board
Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3666 551, fax: +385 1 3666 018

e-mail: miki.huljic@koncar.hr

Davor Mladina, Member of the Management Board
Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 198, fax: +385 1 3667 601

e-mail: koncar.ind.trade@koncar.hr

Miroslav Poljak, Member of the Management Board
Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3666 415, fax: +385 1 3667 179

e-mail: poljak.dd@koncar.hr
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KONČAR - Metal Structures Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3666 560, +385 1 3667 233,  

fax: +385 1 3667 235

e-mail: kmk@koncar-mk.hr 

KONČAR - Electric Vehicles Inc.

Ulica Ante Babaje 1, 10090 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3496 959, +385 1 3496 933,  

fax: +385 1 3496 960

e-mail: info@koncar-kev.hr

KONČAR - Engineering for Plant Installation & 

Commissioning Inc.

Borongajska cesta 81c, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 2355 111 

fax: +385 1 2333 717

e-mail: kmi@koncar-kmi.hr

KONČAR - Renewable Sources Ltd.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3655 348, fax: +385 1 3667 503

e-mail: koncar@koncar-oi.hr

Business area Industry 

KONČAR - Small Electrical Machines Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 273  

fax: +385 1 3667 282

e-mail: info@koncar-mes.hr

Business area Trade

KONČAR - Household Appliances Ltd.

Slavonska avenija 16, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 2484 555, fax: +385 1 2404 102

e-mail: kucanski@koncar-ka.hr

KONČAR - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd.

Borongajska cesta 81c, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 2369 200, +385 1 2334 404  

fax: +385 1 2303 897

e-mail: ivan.jeren@koncar-nsp.hr

Business area  
Energy and Transport 

KONČAR - Power Plant and Electric Traction 

Engineering Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 512, fax: +385 1 3667 515

e-mail: info@koncar-ket.hr

KONČAR - Generators and Motors Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 499, fax: +385 1 3666 564

e-mail: gim@koncar-gim.hr 

KONČAR - High Voltage Switchgear Inc.

Borongajska cesta 81c, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 2322 100, fax: +385 1 2311 303

e-mail: info@koncar-eva.hr

KONČAR - Medium Voltage Apparatus Inc.

Borongajska cesta 81c, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 2380 000, fax: +385 1 2331 058

e-mail: uprava@koncar-easn.hr

KONČAR - Switchgear Inc.

Strojarska cesta 10, 10361 Sesvetski Kraljevec, Croatia

phone: +385 1 2030 500, fax: +385 1 2030 505

e-mail: uprava@koncarsp.hr

KONČAR - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc.

Josipa Mokrovića 8, 10090 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3783 777, fax: +385 1 3794 051

e-mail: info@koncar-dst.hr

KONČAR - Instrument Transformers Inc.

Josipa Mokrovića 10, 10090 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3794 074

fax: + 385 1 3794 040

e-mail: info@koncar-mjt.hr

KONČAR - Electronics and Informatics Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3655 900, fax: +385 1 3655 550

e-mail: inem@koncar-inem.hr
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Representative offices

KONČAR Electrical Industry Inc.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 Note 2015. 2014.

 HRK HRK

Sales 3 3,049,074,117 2,648,756,225

Other operating income 4 132,638,842 182,664,973

Operating income  3,181,712,959 2,831,421,198
    

Changes in inventories (work in progress and finished goods)  (14,793,829) 34,110,042

Cost of materials and energy 5 (1,640,662,224) (1,393,472,795)

Cost of goods sold  (167,474,457) (174,074,312)

Cost of services 6 (375,575,029) (364,312,011)

Staff costs 7 (509,926,132) (492,282,905)

Depreciation and amortization 8 (89,518,168) (89,495,937)

Other costs 9 (132,180,382) (167,771,897)

Impairment losses 10 (32,634,901) (13,848,429)

Provisions 11 (72,093,841) (55,315,803)

Other operating expenses 12 (21,195,559) (10,990,631)

Operating expenses  (3,056,054,522) (2,727,454,678)
    

Operating profit  125,658,437 103,966,520
    

Finance income 13 64,630,909 53,423,921

Finance costs 14 (70,852,069) (43,951,590)

Finance (costs)/income - net  (6,221,160) 9,472,331

Share in profit of investments accounted for using equity method 15 50,117,737 62,643,786
    

Profit before taxation  169,555,014 176,082,637
    

Corporate income tax 16 (18,234,642) (15,985,686)

    

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  151,320,372 160,096,951
   

Other comprehensive income:   

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:   

Gain on available-for-sale financial assets 549,795 - 

Foreign exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (31,058) 153,289

Cash flow hedge  4,734,344 (4,734,344)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  156,573,453 155,515,896
  

Profit for the year attributable to:  

Owners of the Company 127,651,294 129,249,283

Non-controlling interest 23,669,078 30,847,668

Net profit for the period  151,320,372 160,096,951
   

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:   

Owners of the Company 130,630,134 127,185,546

Non-controlling interest 25,943,319 28,330,350

   

Earnings per share   

Basic and diluted earnings per share in HRK 17 49.74 50.29
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

 Note 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

ASSETS
Goodwill 18 7,980,446 7,648,985

Intangible assets 19 53,288,682 44,238,283

Property, plant and equipment 20 1,004,575,879 1,046,731,243

Investment property 21 143,786,056 104,549,243

Investments in associates accounted for using the equity method 22 263,737,081 263,270,174

Financial assets 23 12,393,042 10,968,607

Receivables 24 17,595,561 23,234,086

Non-current assets  1,503,356,747 1,500,640,621
Inventories 29 399,573,719 440,129,180

Financial assets 25 502,669,833 512,675,068

Receivables from related companies 26 85,012,340 90,454,659

Trade receivables and receivables from construction contracts 27 720,175,786 861,192,402

Income tax receivable  16,428,434 17,718,232

Other receivables 28 58,164,982 82,539,693

Cash and cash equivalents 30 346,619,383 391,253,751

Prepaid costs and accrued income 31 12,077,169 15,919,363

Current assets  2,140,721,646 2,411,882,348
Non-current assets held for sale 32 5,960,000 5,960,000

TOTAL ASSETS  3,650,038,393 3,918,482,969
   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   

Share capital 1,208,895,930 1,208,895,930

Share premium  719,579 719,579

Reserves  483,706,422 400,090,992

Retained earnings  272,108,024 288,659,683

Profit for the current year  127,651,294 129,249,283

Equity attributable to owners 2,093,081,249 2,027,615,467

Non-controlling interest  228,414,785 257,389,371

TOTAL EQUITY  33 2,321,496,034 2,285,004,838
Provisions for warranty costs  234,030,916 242,214,327

Other provisions  63,919,619 61,448,509

Provisions 34 297,950,535 303,662,836
Deferred tax liability 137,449 -

Borrowings 35 142,988,558 161,907,630

Non-current liabilities 143,126,007 161,907,630
Liabilities toward related companies 36 18,304,764 40,587,416

Borrowings 37 87,973,492 143,444,866

Derivative hedge instruments 38 - 3,650,393

Trade payables 39 349,049,822 371,071,518

Liabilities under construction contracts 40 23,592,492 29,843,421

Income tax payable  4,471,611 3,547,230

Liabilities for advances received 41 182,349,546 416,855,472

Other liabilities 42 92,302,190 83,508,741

Accrued expenses and deferred income 43 129,421,900 75,398,608

Current liabilities  887,465,817 1,167,907,665
Total liabilities 1,328,542,359 1,633,478,131
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,650,038,393 3,918,482,969
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Note 2015 2014

HRK HRK

Cash flow from operating activities    

Cash receipts from trade accounts receivable  3.284.706.115 2.969.856.248

Cash receipts from insurance compensations  8.624.665 10.421.474

Cash receipts from tax returns  95.553.924 95.258.051

Cash receipts from interest  12.294.036 13.399.516

Other cash receipts  32.677.887 67.239.001

Total cash from operating activities  3.433.856.627 3.156.174.290

Cash payments to trade accounts payable  (2.434.570.686) (2.139.060.318)

Cash payments to employees  (592.725.805) (563.116.563)

Cash payments to insurance companies  (22.123.377) (8.259.572)

Cash payments for interest  (10.608.690) (12.844.527)

Cash payments for taxes  (140.498.545) (145.390.711)

Other cash payments  (121.469.956) (166.918.977)

Total cash used in operating activities  (3.321.997.059) (3.035.590.668)

Net cash flow from operating activities  111.859.568 120.583.622

Cash flow from investing activities    

Receipts from the sale of non-current tangible and intangible assets  11.021.416 3.428.752

Cash receipts from the sale of equity and debt instruments  4.695.685 3.368.778

Receipts from dividends  63.011.096 47.746.396

Total cash from investing activities  78.728.197 54.543.926

Purchase of non-current tangible and intangible assets  (78.152.877) (52.132.404)

Purchase of equity instruments  (69.220.012) (64.974)

Total cash used in investing activities  (147.372.889) (52.197.378)

Net cash flow from investing activities  (68.644.692) 2.346.548

Cash flow from financing activities    

Cash receipts from loans and borrowings  48,575,088 100,526,072

Cash receipts from repayment of term deposits and other financing activities  583,530,839 603,925,768

Cash receipts from the issuance of treasury and debt instruments  6,690 -

Total cash from financing activities  632,112,617 704,451,840

Repayment of principals of borrowings  (121.569.501) (95.429.212)

Dividends paid  (49.352.291) (45.286.601)

Purchase of treasury shares  (2.804.803) -

Cash used for term deposits and other financing activities  (546.235.266) (741.644.882)

Total cash used in financing activities  (719.961.861) (882.360.695)

Net cash flow from financing activities  (87.849.244) (177.908.855)

Total decrease in cash flow  (44.634.368) (54.978.685)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 391.253.751 446.232.436

Cash and cash equivalents at the end for the year 30 346.619.383 391.253.751

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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‘CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Share 
capital

Capital 
reserves

Reserves 
from 

earnings

Reserves 
for treasury 

shares

Treasury 
shares

Retained 
earnings

Profit for 
the year

Non-
controlling 

interest

Total

(in HRK)

As at 1 January 2014 1.028.847.600 719.579 417.141.957 3.237.715 (3.237.715) 350.456.478 135.112.460 243.230.261 2.175.508.335

Transactions with owners:

Restatements - - - - - - 123.189 50.270 173.459

Allocation of profit for 2013. - - 55.204.734 - - 80.030.915 (135.235.649) - - 

Increase in share capital 180.048.330 - (69.848.330) - - (110.200.000) - - - 

Dividend paid - - - - - (30.843.095) - (14.389.710) (45.232.805)

Formation of reserves for 
own shares from retained 
earnings

- - - (1.898.733) - 1.898.733 - - - 

Share-based payments - - - - 1.898.733 - - 1.898.733

Loss of control and change 
in ownership structure

- - - - - (2.795.785) - (62.995) (2.858.780)

180.048.330 - (14.643.596) (1.898.733) 1.898.733 (61.909.232) (135.112.460) (14.402.435) (46.019.393)

Profit for the year - - - - - -  129.249.283   30.847.668 160.096.951

Other comprehensive 
income:

Foreign exchange 
differences on translation of 
foreign operations

- - 40.852 - - 112.437 - - 153.289

Loss on cash flow hedge - - (2.448.221) - - - - (2.286.123) (4.734.344)

Total comprehensive income - - (2.407.369) - - 112.437 129.249.283 28.561.545 155.515.896

As at 31 December 2014 1.208.895.930 719.579 400.090.992 1.338.982 (1.338.982) 288.659.683 129.249.283 257.389.371 2.285.004.838

Transactions with owners:

Allocation of profit for 2014. - - 80.636.580 - - 49.359.247 (129.995.827) - - 

Dividend paid - - - - - (30.843.552) - (18.608.491) (49.452.043)

Formation of reserves for 
own shares from retained 
earnings

- - - 2.804.802 - (2.804.802) - - - 

Purchase of treasury shares - - - - (2.804.802) - - - (2.804.802)

Change in ownership 
structure and loss of control

- - - - - (32.262.552) - (36.550.046) (68.812.598)

Restatements - - - - - - 746.544 240.632 987.176

- - 80.636.580 2.804.802 (2.804.802) (16.551.659) (129.249.283) (54.917.905) (120.082.267)

Profit for the year 127.651.294 23.669.078 151.320.372

Other comprehensive income:

Foreign exchange 
differences on translation of 
foreign operations

- - (19.166) - - - - (11.882) (31.048)

Gain on available for sale 
financial assets

- - 549.795 - - - - - 549.795

Cash flow hwdge - - 2.448.221 - - - - 2.286.123 4.734.344

Total comprehensive income - - 2.978.850 - - - 127.651.294 25.943.319 156.573.463

As at 31 December 2015 1.208.895.930 719.579 483.706.422 4.143.784 (4.143.784) 272.108.024 127.651.294 228.414.785 2.321.496.034

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

1.1. Activities

The main activities of the Končar - Electrical industry Group, Zagreb (“the Group”) include the production of electrical 
machinery and appliances, production of transportation vehicles, machinery and metalworking.

The Group’s principal activities are divided in four main areas:

I.  Energetic and transportation: design and construction of plants for the production, transfer and distribution of 
electrical energy, and related equipment, locomotives, trams, and electrical equipment for stable electric traction 
plants;

II.  Industry: electromotive drivers, electrical equipment of low and high voltage and catering equipment;

III. Trade: electrical household appliances, serial products and electrical low voltage switchgears;

IV. Special activities: research and development of products and infrastructural services.

There are 15 subsidiaries within the Group involved in core business and 2 subsidiaries with special activities, resear-
ch and development of products and infrastructural services.

The Group has two associates in Croatia, and one joint venture in China.

The Group’s Parent company is Končar-Electrical Industry Inc., Zagreb, Fallerovo šetalište 22 (“the Company”). The 
Company is a holding company of all companies in its ownership.

As at 31 December 2014 the Group had 3,666 employees, while as at 31 December 2014 the Group had 3,662 
employees. 

Compensations to the members of the Management and Supervisory Board are presented in Notes 7 and 9 to the finan-
cial statements.

The financial statements are presented in Croatian Kuna (HRK). Stated amounts are rounded to the nearest HRK.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Members of the Supervisory Board:

Nenad Filipović President

Jasminka Belačić Deputy 

Boris Draženović Member

Ivan Rujnić Member

Vicko Ferić Member

Petar Vlaić Member

Dragan Marčinko Member

Petar Mišura Member

Nikola Plavec Member 

Members of the Management Board: 

Darinko Bago President

Marina Kralj Miliša  Member, in charge of legal, 
general and human resource 
activities

Jozo Miloloža Member, in charge of finance

Davor Mladina  Member, in charge of industry 
and trade activities

Miroslav Poljak  Member, in charge of corporate 
development and ICT

Miki Huljić  Deputy Member, in charge for 
finance
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies used for the prepara-

tion of these financial statements are presented below. 

These accounting policies have been consistently ap-

plied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been pre-

pared in accordance with the applicable laws in the Re-

public of Croatia and with the International Financial Re-

porting Standards adopted in the European Union.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group 

have been prepared under the basic principle of ac-

crual accounting, whereby the transaction effects are 

recognised when incurred and recorded in the financial 

statements for the period to which they relate, as well as 

under the going concern assumption.

The financial statements have been prepared on the his-

torical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments 

stated at fair value. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 

with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 

estimates. It also requires management to exercise its 

judgement in the process of applying the Group’s ac-

counting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of 

judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions 

and estimates are significant to the financial statements, 

are disclosed in Note 2.29.

The Group’s financial statements are presented in Cro-

atian kuna (HRK) as the functional and presentation cur-

rency of the Group. As at 31 December 2015, the ex-

change rate for USD 1 and EUR 1 was HRK 6.99 and 

HRK 7.635 (31 December 2014: HRK 6.30 and HRK 

7.66).

New and amended standards, amendments 
and interpretations adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted new and amended standards 

for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 

2015 which were endorsed by the European Union and 

which are relevant for the Group’s financial statements:

•  Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2010 - 2012 Cycle 

comprising changes to seven standards (IFRS 1, 

IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, IAS 16, IAS 28 and IAS 24). 

•  Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2011 - 2013 Cycle 

comprising changes to four standards (IFRS 2, IFRS 

3, IFRS 13 and IAS 40).

The adoption of the improvements did not have any im-

pact on the current period or any prior period and is not 

likely to affect future periods.

Standards, interpretations and amendments 
issued but not yet effective

Certain new standards and interpretations have been 

published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2015 

reporting periods and have not been early adopted by 

the Group. None of these is expected to have significant 

effect on the Group’s financial statements, except for 

the following standards:

a)  IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with custom-

er and associated amendments to various other 

standards (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2018) 

IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of 

revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers con-

struction contracts.

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue 

is recognised when control of a good or service transfers 

to a customer - so the notion of control replaces the ex-

isting notion of risks and rewards.

Key changes to current practice are:

•  Any bundled goods or services that are distinct must 

be separately recognised, and any discounts or rebates 

on the contract price must generally be allocated to the 

separate elements

•  Revenue may be recognised earlier than under current 

standards if the consideration varies for any reasons 

(such as for incentives, rebates, performance fees, roy-

alties, success of an outcome etc) - minimum amounts 

must be recognised if they are not at significant risk of 

reversal) 
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•  The point at which revenue is able to be recognised may 

shift: some revenue which is currently recognised at a 

point in time at the end of a contract may have to be 

recognised over the contract term and vice versa

•  There are new specific rules on licenses, warranties, 

non- refundable upfront fees and, consignment arrange-

ments, to name a few; and

•  As with any new standard, there are also increased dis-

closures.

Entities will have a choice of full retrospective application, 

or prospective application with additional disclosures.

Management is currently assessing the impact of the new 

rules of IFRS 15 and has identified the following areas that 

are likely to be affected:

•  The point of revenue recognition in the case of contract-

ing projects without margin

•  Extended warranties, which will need to be accounted 

for as separate performance obligations, which will de-

lay the recognition of a portion of the revenue

At this stage, the Company is not able to estimate the im-

pact of the new rules on the Group’s financial statements, 

it will make more detailed assessments of the impact over 

the next twelve months. The Management plans to adopt 

the standard on its effective date and when endorsed by 

the European Union.

b)  IFRS 9 Financial instruments and associated amend-

ments to various other standards (effective for an-

nual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and 

derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities and 

introduces new rules for hedge accounting. In December 

2014, the IASB made further changes to the classification 

and measurement rules and also introduced a new im-

pairment model. With these amendments, IFRS 9 is now 

compete. 

Following the changes approved by the IASB in December 

2014, the Company no longer expects any impact from 

the new classification, measurement and derecognition 

rules on the Company’s financial assets and financial lia-

bilities. The Company assessed that the debt instruments 

currently classified as available-for-sale financial assets 

would satisfy the conditions for classification as at fair val-

ue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) based 

on their current business model for these assets. Hence 

there will be no change to the accounting for these as-

sets. The new hedging rules align hedge accounting more 

closely with the group’s risk management practices. As 

a general rule it will be easier to apply hedge accounting 

going forward as the standard introduces a more princi-

ples-based approach. The new standard also introduces 

expanded disclosure requirements and changes in pres-

entation, The new impairment model is an expected credit 

loss (ECL) model which may result in the earlier recogni-

tion of credit losses. The Company has not yet assessed 

how its own hedging arrangements and impairment provi-

sions would be affected by the new rules

The Management plans to adopt the standard on its ef-

fective date and when endorsed by the European Union.

c)  IFRS 16 “Leases” (issued in January 2016 and ef-

fective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2019)

The new standard sets out the principles for the recogni-

tion, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. 

All leases result in the lessee obtaining the right to use an 

asset at the start of the lease and, if lease payments are 

made over time, also obtaining financing. Accordingly, IFRS 

16 eliminates the classification of leases as either operat-

ing leases of finance leases as is required by IAS 17 and, 

instead, introduces a single lessee accounting model. Les-

sees will be required to recognize: a) assets and liabilities 

for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless 

the underlying asset is of low value, and b) depreciation of 

lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in 

the income statement. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward 

the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, 

a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases 

or finance leases, and to account for those two types of 

leases differently. The Company is currently assessing the 

impact of the amendments on its financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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2.2 Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group in-

clude the financial statements of the Parent company and 

the financial statements of the companies controlled by 

the Parent company (subsidiaries). The Group controls an 

entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, vari-

able returns from its involvement with the entity and has 

the ability to affect those returns through its power over 

the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which 

control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidat-

ed from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains 

on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. 

Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies 

of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to en-

sure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries 

without change of control

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with 

non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of con-

trol as equity transactions - that is, as transactions with 

the owners in their capacity as owners. For purchases 

from minority shareholders, the difference between any 

consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the 

carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded 

in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling 

interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries/loss of control over 

subsidiaries 

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained in-

terest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the 

date when control is lost, with the change in carrying 

amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the 

initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently 

accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint 

venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previ-

ously recognised in other comprehensive income in re-

spect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had 

directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This 

may mean that amounts previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.3  Investments in associates and joint 
ventures

Associates

Associated companies are entities in which the Group 

has between 20% and 50% of voting power and in which 

the Group has significant influence, but not control. In the 

consolidated financial statements investments in associ-

ates are accounted for using the equity method of ac-

counting. Under the equity method, the investment is 

initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is 

increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share 

of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of ac-

quisition. The Group’s investment in associates includes 

goodwill identified on acquisition. 

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but 

significant influence is retained, only a proportionate 

share of the amounts previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss 

where appropriate. 

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is rec-

ognised in the income statement, and its share of post-

acquisition movements in other comprehensive income 

is recognised in other comprehensive income with a 

corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the 

investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an as-

sociate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, in-

cluding any other unsecured receivables, the Group does 

not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal 

or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf 

of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether 

there is any objective evidence that the investment in 

the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group 

calculates the amount of impairment as the difference 

between the recoverable amount of the associate and 

its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to 

‘share of profit/(loss) of associates’ in the income state-

ment.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and down-

stream transactions between the group and its associate 

are recognised in the group’s financial statements only 

to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the as-

sociates.
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Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction 

provides evidence of an impairment of the asset trans-

ferred. Accounting policies of associates have been 

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with 

the policies adopted by the Group. Dilution gains and 

losses arising in investments in associates are recog-

nised in the income statement.

Joint arrangements

The group applies IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. 

Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are 

classified as either joint operations or joint ventures de-

pending on the contractual rights and obligations each 

investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint 

arrangements and determined them to be joint ven-

tures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity 

method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint 

ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted 

thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-

acquisition profits or losses and movements in other 

comprehensive income. 

When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals 

or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which in-

cludes any long-term interests that, in substance, form 

part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), 

the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it 

has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of 

the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group 

and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the 

Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses 

are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evi-

dence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

2.4 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by applying 

the acquisition method. The consideration transferred 

for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the 

assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former 

owners of the acquire and the equity interests issued 

by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the 

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a con-

tingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets 

acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed 

in a business combination are measured initially at their 

fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises 

any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acqui-

sition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the 

non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the rec-

ognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and 

represents the excess of the consideration transferred, 

the amount of any non-controlling interest in the ac-

quiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous 

equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of the 

identifiable net assets acquired. 

If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling 

interest recognised and previously held interest meas-

ured at fair value is less than the fair value of the net 

assets of the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain 

purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the in-

come statement.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill ac-

quired in a business combination is allocated to each of 

the CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit 

from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group 

of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the 

lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is 

monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill 

is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or 

more frequently if events or changes in circumstances 

indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the 

CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the recover-

able amount, which is the higher of value in use and the 

fair value less costs of disposal.

Any impairment is recognised immediately as an ex-

pense and is not subsequently reversed.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration re-
ceived or receivable for the sale of goods and services in 
the ordinary course of the Company’s activities. Revenue 
is shown net of value added tax, excise tax, estimated re-
turns, rebates and discounts.

Revenues from the sale of goods and finished products 
are recognized when all of the following conditions have 
been met:

•  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

•  the Group retain neither continuing managerial involve-
ment to the degree usually associated with ownership nor 
effective control over the goods sold;

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

•  it is probable that the economic benefits associated with 
the transactions will flow to the Company; and

•  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect to the trans-
action can be measured reliably.

Income from services is recognized in the period when the 
services have been rendered by the stage of completion 
method. Stage of completion is determined on the basis of 
share of service costs incurred until certain date in the total 
estimated service costs.

2.6 Finance income and costs

Finance income and costs comprise interest on loans calcu-
lated using the effective interest rate method, receivables 
for interest on investments, revenues from dividends, gains 
and losses from exchange rate differences, gains and loss-
es from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in the State-
ment of comprehensive income and are presented in Notes 
14 and 15 in gross amounts (the stated amounts include for-
eign exchange differences from principal activities as well 
as foreign exchange differences from financing activities).

Finance costs comprise interest on loans, changes of fair 
value of financial assets at fair value through the profit and 
loss, impairment losses of financial assets and foreign ex-
change losses. 

2.7 Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be es-

timated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs as-
sociated with the construction contract are recognized 
as revenue and expenses respectively by the reference 
to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the 
end of the reporting period, on the basis of the share of 
costs incurred to that date in total estimated contract 
costs. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive 
payments are included in contract revenue to the extent 
agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot 
be estimated reliably, revenues are recognized only to 
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable 
will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognized as ex-
pense in the period in which are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed 
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized 
as an expense immediately.

2.8 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised 
as assets or liabilities in the lessee’s balance sheet at 
the lower of their fair value at the inception of the lease 
or the present value of the minimum lease payments.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in 
the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance 
costs and reduction of the lease obligations so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining bal-
ance of the liability. Finance costs are charged directly 
to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an ex-
pense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.9 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the ac-
quisition, construction or production of a qualifying as-
set, which is an asset that necessarily takes a substan-
tial period of time for its intended use or sale, is added 
to the cost of that asset until the asset is substantially 
ready for its intended use or sale.
Other borrowing costs are charged to the income state-
ment in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.10 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially converted into 
Croatian kuna by applying the exchange rates prevailing 
on the transaction date. Cash, receivables and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and 
losses arising on translation are included in the income 
statement for the current year.

During the consolidation, assets and liabilities of Group’s 
foreign operations are translated into the Group presen-
tation currency at the exchange rates ruling at the report-
ing date. Revenues and expenses are translated at the 
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the trans-
actions and the exchange differences are recognized in 
other comprehensive income. All foreign exchange gains 
and losses are recognized in the period when the trans-
action occurred.

2.11 Income tax

The parent company as well as domestic subsidiaries 
within the Group state its taxation liabilities in accord-
ance with Croatian law. Corporate income tax for the 
year comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable 
income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the bal-
ance sheet date. 

Deferred taxes arise from temporary differences be-
tween the amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the values presented for the purposes of 
determining the income tax base. Deferred tax assets for 
unused tax losses and unused tax benefits are recognised 
if it is probable that future taxable profit will be realised 
on the basis of which the deferred tax assets will be uti-
lised. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
calculated by applying the corporate tax rate applicable 
to periods when those assets or liabilities will be realised. 

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or ex-
pense in the income statement, except when they relate 
to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which 
case the tax is also recognised directly in equity.

2.12 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share 
for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calcu-
lated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders by the weighted average number of ordi-
nary shares outstanding during the period, less treasury 
shares. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by divid-
ing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharehold-
ers by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period, less treasury shares and 
potential shares based on share options.

2.13 Related-party transactions

The Group, as well as the Parent company, does not 
disclose within related-party transactions the relations 
with other state-owned companies, pursuant to the ex-
emption related to state-owned companies as stated in 
IAS 24.

2.14 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent 
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operat-
ing decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, 
who is responsible for allocating resources and assess-
ing performance of the operating segments, has been 
identified as the Management/Supervisory Board that 
makes strategic decisions.

During the identification of business segments, the Man-
agement mostly follows sales of goods and provision of 
services within certain economic area. Each of these 
business segments are separately managed since they 
are determined on the basis of specific market needs.

Policies of valuation/measurement which the Group 
uses for the segment reporting are the same as those 
used during the preparation of the financial statements. 

Furthermore, assets which cannot be directly attribut-
able to certain business segments remain un-allocated.

There were no changes in the valuation methods used in 
the determination of profit or loss of business segment 
in comparison to previous periods.

2.15  Non-current intangible and tangible 
assets (property, plant and equipment)

Non-current intangible and tangible assets are initially 
carried at cost, which includes the purchase price, in-
cluding import duties and non-refundable tax after de-
ducting trade discounts and rebates, as well as all other 
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to their 
working condition for their intended use.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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Non-current intangible and tangible assets are recog-

nised if it is probable that future economic benefits as-

sociated with the item will flow to the Group, if the cost 

of the asset can be reliably measured, and when the cost 

is higher than HRK 3,500.

After initial recognition, assets are measured at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impair-

ment losses.

Maintenance and repairs, replacements and minor im-

provements are expensed when incurred. In situations 

where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expendi-

tures have resulted in an increase in the future economic 

benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an as-

set beyond its originally assessed standard performance, 

the expenditures are capitalised i.e. included in the carry-

ing value of the asset. Gains or losses on the retirement 

or disposal of fixed assets are included in the income 

statement in the period when incurred.

The depreciation of assets commences when the assets 

are ready for use, i.e. when the assets are at the required 

location and the conditions necessary for use have been 

met. Amortisation and depreciation of assets ceases 

when the assets are classified as held for sale. 

Amortisation and depreciation are charged so as to write 

off the cost of each asset, other than land, advances 

and non-current intangible and tangible assets under 

construction, over their estimated useful lives, using the 

straight line method, as follows:

Depreciation rates (from - to %)

Development expenditure 20%

Concessions, patents, licences, software etc 20%-25%

Other intangible assets 20%

Buildings 1.2% - 7.7%

Plant and equipment 2.9% - 25%

Tools and equipment, transport vehicles 3.4% - 25% 

Other tangible assets 20%

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the carrying amount of its prop-

erty, plant and equipment to determine whether there 

is any indication that those assets have suffered an im-

pairment loss. If any such indication exists, on the basis 

of external and internal sources of information, the re-

coverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 

determine the extent of the impairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 

amount of the individual asset, the Company estimates 

the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (the 

plant or line to which the asset belongs), and then the 

loss is allocated to individual assets within the unit.

During the determination of impairment losses or rever-

sal of impairment loss for an item of property, plant and 

equipment the depreciation rate is not changed, but the 

impairment and useful life of the item are changed.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value 

less costs to sell and value in use.

If the amount of a tangible asset is higher than its recov-

erable amount, the difference is charged to the current 

result (impairment loss on assets).

At each reporting date the Company reviews if there 

are indicators that the previously recognized impairment 

loss should be reversed or decreased.

2.16 Investment property

Investment property (land, buildings) which are in 

Group’s ownership are held for the purpose of earn-

ing rentals or as a potential for issuing guarantees or 

solidarity guarantees for subsidiaries, and also for the 

future capital appreciations for the purpose of future 

sale. Investment property is recognised as non-current 

asset, unless it is intended for sale within the next year, 

in which case the investment property is recognised as 

a current asset. Investment property is initially meas-

ured at cost less accumulated depreciation. The Group 

at least annually reviews residual value and useful life 

of the property. The residual value is an estimated 

amount that the Group would currently obtain from dis-

posal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs 

of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and 

in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. 

Since the Group has estimated that the residual value 

of the property exceeds its carrying value, depreciation 

is not charged until the residual value is reduced to the 

amount below the carrying value.
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2.17 Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale is meas-
ured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell. Non-current assets or disposal groups 
are classified as held for sale when its carrying value will 
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use. This condition is satisfied 
only if the sale is highly probable and the asset is ready 
for sale in its current condition. Assets which are once 
classified as held for sale are no longer depreciated. 

2.18 Financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on 
the trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial 
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery 
of the investment within the time frame established by 
the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair 
value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial 
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, 
which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into following categories:

•  At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - Financial as-
sets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset 
is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. 
Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with 
any resultant gain or loss recognized in profit or loss. 

•  Held to maturity - financial assets with fixed or deter-
minable payments and fixed maturity dates that the 
Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to ma-
turity are classified as held-to-maturity investments. 
Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at amor-
tized cost using the effective interest method less any 
impairment, with revenue recognized on an effective 
yield basis.

•  Available for sale - are non-derivative financial assets 
determined as such or financial assets which cannot 
be included within above determined categories. AFS 
is stated at fair value, gains and losses arising from 
changes in fair value are recognized directly in other 
comprehensive income with the exception of impair-
ment losses, interest calculated using the effective in-
terest method and foreign exchange gains and losses 
on monetary assets, which are recognized directly in 
profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or 
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognized in the other comprehensive 
income is included in profit or loss for the period.

•  Loans and receivables - Trade receivables, loans, and 
other receivables that have fixed or determinable pay-
ments that are not quoted in an active market are clas-
sified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables 
are measured at amortized cost using the effective in-
terest method, less any impairment. Interest income is 
recognized by applying the effective interest rate, ex-
cept for short-term receivables when the recognition 
of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through 
profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of impair-
ment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are 
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment 
resulting from one or more events that occurred after 
the initial recognition of an asset when the event af-
fects the estimated future cash flows from the financial 
asset.

For unlisted shares classified as AFS a significant or pro-
longed decline in the fair value of the shares below its 
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impair-
ment. 

For all other financial assets, including redeemable notes 
classified as AFS and finance lease receivables, objec-
tive evidence of impairment could include:

•  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter-
party; 

•  default or delinquency in interest or principal pay-
ments; or

•  it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bank-
ruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset ex-
pire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and 
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group rec-
ognises its retained interest in the asset and an associ-
ated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group 
retains substantially all the risks and reward ownership 
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to 
recognise the financial asset and financial liability for the 
proceeds received.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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When the Group derecognises a financial asset in its en-
tirety, the difference between the carrying amount and sum 
of consideration received and the consideration receivable 
and cumulative gains (losses), recognised in other compre-
hensive income, is transferred from equity to profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either finan-
cial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance 
of the contractual arrangement.

An equity instrument is any contract that provides evidence 
to a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deduct-
ing all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the 
Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 
issue costs.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares issued.

Capital reserves includes share premium arising from the 
share issue. Incremental costs directly attributable to equity 
transaction (issue of ordinary shares) are accounted for as a 
deduction from equity.

Reserves are stated at nominal amounts representing allo-
cation of retained earnings, especially legal reserves, statu-
tory reserves and other reserves.

Share repurchase (treasury shares)

The consideration paid for the repurchase of the Group’s 
equity share capital (treasury shares), including any directly 
attributable incremental costs related to the repurchase, is 
deducted from equity, until the shares are cancelled or reis-
sued. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares 
and represent a deduction from equity. The purchase of 
treasury shares is recorded at cost, and the sale of treas-
ury shares at the negotiated prices. The gain or loss from 
the sale of treasury share is recognised directly in equity, 
where such ordinary shares are subsequently re issued any 
consideration received, net of any directly attributable incre-
mental transaction costs and related income tax effects, is 
included in equity.

Financial guarantee of a contractual obligation

Financial guarantee of a contractual obligation is initially 
measured at its fair value and subsequently measured at 
the higher of:

•  the contractual amount of liability determined in accord-
ance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets; and

•  the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, 
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with 
the revenue recognition policies (dividend and interest 
revenue).

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and 
loss - Financial liabilities are classified as “at fair value 
through profit or loss” where the financial liability is either 
held for trading or it is designed as “at fair value through 
profit or loss”. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or 
loss recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss rec-
ognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on 
the financial liability. 

Other financial liabilities - including borrowings, are ini-
tially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effec-
tive interest method, with interest expense recognized on 
an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimate fu-
ture cash payments through the expected life of the finan-
cial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only 
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or they expire.

2.19 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net re-
alizable value. Costs of inventories comprise all purchase 
costs, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and con-
dition. 

Semi-finished and finished products include the costs of 
raw materials, labour and overhead expenses allocated on 
the basis of normal capacity. Cost is calculated using the 
weighted average method.

Net realizable value is estimated selling price in an ordinary 
course of the business decreased by estimated comple-
tion costs and estimated selling costs.

In the cases when it is necessary to bring the inventory 
value at its net selling price the Group makes inventory 
value adjustments recognized as an expense in the profit 
and loss for the current year.

Small inventory, packaging and tyres are fully depreciated 
when put into use.
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2.20 Receivables

Receivables are initially measured at fair value. At each 

balance sheet date, receivables, whose collection is ex-

pected within a period of more than one year, are stated 

at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 

less any impairment loss. Current receivables are ini-

tially recognised at their nominal value less correspond-

ing allowances for estimated uncollectible amounts and 

impairment losses.

Receivables are impaired and impairment losses arise 

only if there is objective evidence of impairment result-

ing from one or more events that occurred after the ini-

tial recognition of an asset when the event affects the 

estimated future cash flows from the receivables that 

can be reliably estimated. Receivables are assessed at 

each balance sheet date whether there is objective evi-

dence of their impairment. If there is objective evidence 

of impairment, the impairment loss is measured as the 

difference between the carrying amount and the esti-

mated future cash flows. The carrying value of receiva-

bles is reduced either directly or by using a separate 

allowance account. The loss amount is charged to the 

income statement for the current year.

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash consists of bank demand deposits, cash on hand 

and deposits and securities payable on demand or at 

the latest within a period of three months.

2.22 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or ser-

vices that have been acquired in the ordinary course of 

business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classi-

fied as current liabilities if payment is due within one 

year or less (or in the regular operating cycle of the busi-

ness if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current 

liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair 

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost us-

ing the effective interest method

2.23 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of 

transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequent-

ly stated at amortised cost; any difference between the 

proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 

value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive 

income over the period of the borrowings using the ef-

fective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities, unless 

the Company has an unconditional right to defer set-

tlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting date.

2.24 Government grants 

Government grants are not recognized until there is a 

reasonable assurance that the Group will meet all re-

quirements defined in the subsidy contract and that the 

grant will be received.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the 

Group purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-

term assets, are recognized as deferred income in the 

balance sheet and released in the income statement on 

a systematic and appropriate basis in accordance with 

the useful life of that asset. Government grants are rec-

ognized as income during the period to match related 

costs on a systematic basis.

Government grants received as compensation for ex-

penses or losses already incurred, or for the purpose of 

immediate financial support to the Group without fur-

ther related costs, are recognized in the income state-

ment in the period when received.

2.25 Provisions

Provisions are recognised only when the Group has a 

present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is 

likely that the settlement of the obligation will require an 

outflow of economic benefits and when it is certain that 

the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 

adjusted to reflect the best current estimate.

Provisions are determined for costs of repairs within 

warranty periods, legal claims, restructuring costs, ter-

mination benefits and awards to employees for long-

term employment and retirement.

Provisions for employee benefits for the number of 

years of service and retirement (regular jubilee awards 

and termination benefits) are determined as the pre-

sent value of future cash outflows using a discount rate 

equal to the interest rate on government bonds.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.26 Employee benefits

(i) Defined pension fund contributions

In the normal course of business through salary deduc-
tions, the Group makes payments to mandatory pension 
funds on behalf of its employees as required by law. All 
contributions made to the mandatory pension funds are 
recorded as salary expense when incurred. The Group 
does not have any other pension scheme and conse-
quently, has no other obligations in respect of employee 
pensions.

(ii) Long-term employee benefits

The Group has post-employment benefits to be paid to 
the employees at the end of their employment with the 
Group (either upon retirement, termination or voluntary 
departure). The Group recognises a liability for these 
long-term employee benefits evenly over the period 
the benefit is earned based on actual years of service. 
The long-term employee benefit liability is determined 
using assumptions regarding the likely number of staff 
to whom the benefit will be payable, estimated benefit 
cost and the discount rate.

(iii) Short-term employee benefits - bonuses

A liability for employee benefits is recognised in provi-
sions based on the Group’s formal plan and when past 
practice has created a valid expectation by the Manage-
ment Board/key employees that the bonus will be paid 
and the amount can be determined before the time of 
issuing the financial statements. Liabilities for bonus 
plans are expected to be settled within 12 months of the 
balance sheet date and are measured at the amounts 
expected to be paid when they are settled.

(iv) Share-based payments 

The Parent company operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans. The total amount to be ex-
pensed over the vesting period and the amount that is 
credited to the equity is determined by the reference to 
the fair value of the options granted. The fair value of the 
equity accounted instruments is measured at the grant 
date. At each reporting date, management revises its es-
timate of options which complies with conditions for the 
acquisition of rights and makes necessary adjustments.

2.27 Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements, but only disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements, but only recognised 
when an inflow of economic benefits is virtually certain.

2.28 Events after the balance sheet date

Events after the balance sheet date, which provide ad-
ditional information on the Group’s position at the bal-
ance sheet date (adjusting events), are reflected in the 
consolidated financial statements. Events that are not 
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the finan-
cial statements, if material.

2.29 Significant accounting estimates 

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on his-
torical experience and other factors, including expecta-
tions of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates 
and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting 
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and assump-
tions that have a significant risk of causing a material ad-
justment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below:

a) Impairment of inventories

The Groups performs impairment of inventories for all in-
ventories whose carrying amount exceeds their market 
value, i.e. realisable value, on the basis of direct review 
of inventories and management’s estimation of the slow-
moving inventory, inventory inadequate in technological 
sense, un-functional or inventory which can no longer be 
used in the production or realisable on the market.

b) Provisions for warranty periods

The Group provides warranties for its products for a pe-
riod of 1 - 5 years. Management estimates a provision 
for future warranty fees based on historical information. 
Companies within the Group continuously take actions 
in order to decrease the exposure to contingent liabilities 
on the basis of warranties issued.

c) Estimation of construction contracts costs

The Group companies, which recognize revenues in ac-
cordance with IAS 11 Construction contracts (contracts 
which relate to different accounting periods), use the per-
centage of completion method when recognising its oper-
ating income. Using this method requires an estimation of 
contract costs incurred for work performed to that date, 
compared to the total estimated contract costs (projects).
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2.30 Subsidiaries:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Ownership 
share (%)

Voting rights 
share (%)

Ownership 
share (%)

Voting rights 
share (%)

Consolidated subsidiaries registered in Croatia:

Končar - Household Appliances Ltd., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Small Electrical Machines Inc., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Power Plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Infrastructure and Services Ltd., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Electrical Engineering Institute Inc., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Generators and Motors Ltd., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Renewable Sources Ltd., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Direct ownership 85.27 85,27 85,27 85,27

Indirect ownership 14.73 85.27 14,73 14,73

Končar - Electrical Vehicles Inc., Zagreb 14.73 85.27 75.04 75.04

Končar - Steel Structures Inc., Zagreb 14.73 85.27 75.01 75.01

Končar - Electronics and Informatics Inc., Zagreb 14.73 75.03 75.03 75.03

Končar - Switchgear Inc., Sesvetski Kraljevec 70.03 81.70 70.03 81.70

Končar - Medium Voltage Apparatus Inc., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 41.77 69.87

Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc., Zagreb 61.73 99.77 46.11 72.39

Končar - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc., Zagreb 51.71 67.80 51.71 67.80

Končar - High Voltage Switchgear Inc., Zagreb 98.61 99.03 97.49 98.25

Končar - Engineering for Plant Installation & Commissioning Inc., Zagreb 44.71 79.05 44.71 79.05

Consolidated subsidiary registered abroad:

Kones AG, Zurich, Switzerland - - 100.00 100.00

Non-consolidated subsidiaries:

Konell Ltd., Sofia, Bulgaria* 85.00 85.00 85.00 85.00

Končar-Inženjering Inc., Zagreb* 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Non-consolidated subsidiaries are not consolidated since they are insignificant on the Group level.

* companies in indirect ownership by the Company 

The following are the companies in which the Parent company has a significant non-controlling interest: 

• Končar - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc., Zagreb (KONČAR D&ST d.d.)

• Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc. (KONČAR MT d.d.) and 

• Končar - Engineering for Plant Installation & Commissioning Inc., Zagreb (KONČAR MI d.d.)

These three companies represent 74% of the total amount of the Group’s non-controlling interest at the balance sheet date.

Summary of the stated companies with significant non-controlling interests are presented below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Share in ownership (%) Share in ownership (%)

Associates accounted for by using equity method: 

Končar - Power Transformers Ltd., Zagreb 49,00 49,00

Elkakon Ltd., Zagreb* 50,00 50,00

Joint venture accounted for by using equity method:

TBEA Končar Instrument Transformers Ltd., China * 27,00 27,00

* company in indirect ownership by the Company

Details of investments accounted for using the equity method are presented in Note 22.

Associates:

3. SALES

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Domestic sales 1,632,098,951 1,297,878,613

Foreign sales 1,306,642,875 1,242,311,994

Sales to associates 110,332,291 108,565,618

3,049,074,117 2,648,756,225

Segment information is presented in Note 45.

 KONČAR D&ST Inc. KONČAR MT Inc. KONČAR MI Inc.

 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Statement of comprehensive income

Income 811.522 736.526 200.344 209.362 72.150 91.809

Expenses (780.553) (708.776) (186.168) (190.444) (70.885) (89.538)

Profit before tax 30.969 27.750 14.176 18.918 1.265 2.271

Income tax (905) (491) (3.174) (4.865) (360) (618)

Profit after taxation 30.064 27.259 11.002 14.053 905 1.653

Statement of financial position    

Non-current assets 153.542 163.367 54.350 46.970 9.216 9.335

Current assets 405.224 401.143 120.219 121.302 28.360 28.308

Total assets 558.766 564.510 174.569 168.272 37.576 37.643

Total liabilities 309.171 338.809 83.434 82.646 17.431 17.244

Cash flow    

Cash flow from operating activities 75.673 (12.384) 3.263 29.225 2.981 5.651

Cash flow from investing activities (6.354) (9.310) (8.332) (2.362) (446) (116)

Cash flow from financing activities (57.476) 2.254 (9.075) (14.231) (1.157) (2.662)

Net increase/decrease in cash 11.843 (19.440) (14.144) 12.632 1.378 2.873

Cash at the beginning of the period 33.493 52.933 24.962 12.330 6.950 4.077

Cash at the end of the period 45.336 33.493 10.817 24.962 8.328 6.950
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6. COST OF SERVICES

2015 2014

HRK HRK

External products design and selling services 153,748,404 145,945,064

Maintenance 38,824,105 32,539,854

Costs of telephone, post and transportation 32,173,286 38,052,558

Intellectual and similar services 21,405,345 22,660,633

Entertainment costs 14,103,690 14,486,833

Utilities costs 10,044,544 9,356,306

Costs of research and development 6,740,209 10,301,110

Lease and rentals 5,586,146 4,518,810

Advertising services and trade fairs 5,352,439 5,796,406

Education 4,035,169 5,008,681

Other external costs 83,561,692 75,645,756

375,575,029 364,312,011

4. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Income from the release of provisions (Note 34) 46,654,486 86,154,046

Income from the release of accrued expenses 21,028,334 19,100,092

Income from insurance claims 12,142,468 5,808,246

Income from sale of materials 5,572,792 4,930,417

Income from subsequent rebates, bonuses and similar 3,497,103 1,778,764

Collected receivables previously written off 3,202,490 7,006,727

Rent income 2,803,734 2,556,689

Inventory surpluses 1,665,114 1,035,085

Write-off of liabilities 37,310 6,211,271

Income from recognised legal claim - 12,806,075

Other income 36,035,011 35,277,561

132,638,842 182,664,973

5. COSTS OF MATERIALS AND ENERGY

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Raw materials and supplies 1,578,728,662 1,333,574,071

Energy costs 46,656,504 45,831,834

Small inventory 13,845,799 12,543,218

Spare parts 1,431,259 1,523,672

1,640,662,224 1,393,472,795

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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7. STAFF COSTS

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Net wages and salaries 288,931,225 272,181,773

Taxes and contributions from salaries 147,323,004 149,464,211

Contributions on salaries 73,671,903 69,931,202

Share-based payment options - 705,719

509,926,132 492,282,905

Net wages and salaries in the amount of HRK 288,931,225 (2014: HRK 272.181.773) include compensations to the 
Management Board of the Company and other related companies in the amount of HRK 15,037,579 (2014: HRK 
15,162,812) and accrued bonuses for the Management Board in the amount of 6,496,528 (2014: HRK 6,581,408), 
and are an integral part of staff costs.

Employee benefits (such as transportation to and from work, termination benefits and jubilee awards, business trips) 
in the amount of HRK 68,702 thousand (2013: HRK 74,168 thousand) are presented in Note 9.

8. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 20) 82,314,357 83,352,257

Amortization of intangible assets (note 19) 7,194,008 6,133,877

Depreciation of investment property (note 21) 9,803 9,803

89,518,168 89,495,937

9. OTHER COSTS

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Travelling costs and per diems 43,334,581 45,104,832

Compensations to employees, gifts and supports 25,367,334 29,063,032

Bank charges 20,823,773 18,120,266

Insurance premiums 15,744,656 14,794,808

Compensations to members of the Supervisory Board 6,428,958 6,229,075

Contributions, membership fees and similar duties 2,307,245 3,425,852

Taxes independent the results and similar costs 3,938,413 2,219,675

Sponsorships and donations 1,981,303 2,484,388

Costs of legal claims - 33,817,538

Other 12,254,119 12,512,431

132,180,382 167,771,897
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12. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Penalties, compensations and similar 19,044,446 4,343,784

Inventory shortages 893,884 1,490,749

Receivables write-off - 2,440,201

Other operating expenses 1,257,229 2,715,897

21,195,559 10,990,631

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2015 2014

Impairment losses on non-current assets HRK HRK

Impairment losses on tangible assets 7,947,789 -

Impairment losses on intangible assets 730 -

7,948,519 -
Impairment losses on current assets

Bad debt provision 6,961,016 3,336,201

Inventory provision 17,725,366 10,512,228

24,686,382 13,848,429
32,634,901 13,848,429

11. PROVISIONS

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Provisions for servicing costs within warranty periods non-current (note 34) 48,990,437 44,431,946

Provisions for retirement and jubilee awards (note 34) 9,255,523 5,592,734

Provisions for legal claims (note 34) 1,277,948 645,931

Other non-current and current provisions 12,569,933 4,645,192

72,093,841 55,315,803

Kretanje na dugoročnim rezerviranjima prikazana su u bilješci 34.

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Relations with related parties
Dividend income - 79,912

- 79,912

Relations with unrelated parties
Interest income 12,520,167 17,216,342

Foreign exchange gains 47,729,914 28,785,099

Dividend income 1,787,908 2,484,169

Other finance income 1,272,299 987,933

63,310,288 49,473,543

Unrealised gains 1,320,621 3,870,466

64,630,909 53,423,921

13. FINANCE INCOME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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14. FINANCE COSTS

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Interest, foreign exchange differences, dividends and similar income from relations with unrelated parties
Interest expense 12,277,433 13,150,141

Foreign exchange losses 57,291,698 30,128,494

Other finance costs 883,946 672,955

70,453,077 43,951,590

Unrealised losses
Impairment losses on non-current financial assets 398,992 -

398,992 -

70,852,069 43,951,590

The share in profit of associates in the amount of HRK 50,117,737 (2014: HRK 62,643,786) relates to the share in pro-
fit of the company Končar - Power Transformers Ltd. in which the Group owns a share of 49% in the amount of HRK 
48,458,448 (2014: HRK 60,079,592), to the share in profit of the company Elkakon Ltd. in which the Group indirectly 
owns 50% share in the amount of HRK 370,388 (2014: HRK 739,240) and to the share in profit of a joint venture - the 
company Tbea Končar Instrument Transformers Ltd., China in the amount of HRK 1,288,901 (2014: HRK 1,824,954). 
The above mentioned companies realized a total net profit in 2015 as follows:
- Power Transformers Ltd. HRK 98,894,791 (2014: HRK 122,611,412)
- Elkakon Ltd. HRK 740,775 (2014: HRK 1,478,480)
- Tbea Končar Instrument Transformers Ltd. HRK 4,773,706 (2014: HRK 6,759,088). 

15. SHARE IN PROFIT OF ASSOCIATE/JOINT VENTURE

16. CORPORATE INCOME TAX

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Consolidated profit before tax 169,555,014 176,082,637

Corporate income tax at rate of 20% 33,911,003 35,216,527
Tax effects from:

Consolidation adjustments (1,806,447) (15,637,369)

Tax non-deductible expenses 9,697,655 3,996,733

Tax decreases (9,175,539) (5,161,447)

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax assets (1,648,940) -
Income tax in foreign branches 451,384 354,944

Investment incentives (13,194,474)  (2,783,702)

Income tax 18,234,642 15,985,686

Calculation of corporate income tax liability for the year ended 31 December was as follows:

The Group can carry forward tax losses for companies which incurred losses in 2015 and which had no tax liability 
and from subsidiaries who realized profit in 2015 but had tax losses from previous periods. These tax losses can be 
carried forward for maximum period of 5 years. As at 31 December 2015 unrecognized tax asset on tax losses carried 
forward amounts to HRK 33,061 thousand (31 December 2014: HRK 39,096 thousand).
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17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share
2015 2014

HRK HRK

Net profit attributable to owners of the parent 127,651,294 129,249,283

Weighted average number of shares (decreased by treasury shares) 2,566,258 2,570,258

Earnings per share in HRK 49.74 50.29

Diluted earnings per share for 2015 and 2014 are the same as basic since the Group had no convertible instruments 
or options during both periods.

18. GOODWILL

Goodwill amounting to HRK 7,980,446 (2014. 7,648,985) relates to goodwill recognized in business combinations 
when the companies Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc., Končar - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc and 
Končar - Engineering for Plant Installation & Commissioning Inc have been acquired).

Movement in goodwill during the year was as follows:

Goodwill HRK

As at 1 January 2014 7,646,618

Increase 2,367

As at 31 December 2014 7,648,985

Increase 331,461

As at 31 December 2015 7,980,446

The Company’s management estimates there is no need to impair goodwill at the reporting date since all four three 
companies are profitable and realised income as planned.

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

31 December 2015 - 33.567.215

31 December 2016 22,284,725 22.606.536

31 December 2017 38.115.573 40.081.891

31 December 2018 57.475.666 61.270.532

31 December 2019 20.008.425 22.951.369

31 December 2020 27.423.592 -

165.307.981 180.477.543

Deferred tax asset on the basis of tax losses carried forward has not been recognized in the financial statements due 
to uncertainty of their usage in future periods.

To date, the Tax Authority did not perform a review of the income tax return of the Group companies. In accordance 
with local regulations, the Tax Authority may at any time inspect the Group Companies’ books and records within 
3 years following the year in which the tax liability is reported and may impose additional tax assessments and pe-
nalties. The Group companies’ Management is not aware of any circumstances, which may give rise to a potential 
material liability in this respect.

Gross tax losses expire as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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19. NON-CURRENT INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The gross carrying value of fully amortized intangible assets still in use as at 31 December 2015 amounts to HRK 
62,441 thousand (2014: HRK 62,297 thousand).

Izdaci za 
razvoj

Koncesije, 
licencije, 
softver i  

ostala prava

Ostalo Imovina u 
pripremi

Predujmovi Ukupno

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

Cost

As at 1 January 2014 82.208.776 24.854.520 1.176.211 9.636.809 - 117.876.316

Reclassifications and transfers - - - (431.459) - (431.459)
Transfer from assets under 
construction

1.310.413 1.549.486 - (2.859.899) - -

Additions 4.074.251 1.284.698 304.249 14.825.260 3.200.794 23.689.252

Disposals (12.011.052) (543.865) (2.674) (431.222) (409.322) (13.398.135)

As at 31 December 2014 75.582.388 27.144.839 1.477.786 20.739.489 2.791.472 127.735.974

Reclassifications and transfers (166.338) (294.117) - (18.021) - (478.476)
Transfer from assets under 
construction

31.694.072 1.139.402 - (32.833.474) - -

Additions 1.335.837 621.205 34.940 19.932.048 1.952.746 23.876.776

Disposals (117.303) (98.486) - (2.319.175) (4.744.218) (7.279.182)

As at 31 December 2015 108.328.656 28.512.843 1.512.726 5.500.867 - 143.855.092

      

Accumulated amortisation       

As at 1 January 2014 69.710.671 17.929.535 864.424 - - 88.504.630

Amortisation for the year 3.621.084 2.417.112 95.681 - - 6.133.877

Disposals (10.723.450) (417.366) - - - (11.140.816)

As at 31 December 2014 62.608.305 19.929.281 960.105 - - 83.497.691

Amortisation for the year 4.605.539 2.440.563 147.906 - - 7.194.008

Disposals (27.533) (97.756) - - - (125.289)

As at 31 December 2015 67.186.311 22.272.088 1.108.011 - - 90.566.410

      

Net book amount       

As at 31 December 2014 12.974.083 7.215.558 517.681 20.739.489 2.791.472 44.238.283

As at 31 December 2015 41.142.345 6.240.755 404.715 5.500.867 - 53.288.682
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Zemljište Građevinski 
objekti

Postrojenja  
i oprema

Alati i ured- 
ski inventar

Ostalo Imovina u 
pripremi

Predujmovi Ukupno

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

As at 1 January 2014 160.269.850 966.808.927 978.451.815 361.434.651 2.714.626 15.862.148 14.613.042 2.500.155.059

Transfer from assets under 
construction

- 11.605.545 34.469.169 11.269.231 - (55.510.528) (1.833.417) -

Additions - 824.849 2.360.075 5.799.207 - 83.729.777 18.163.049 110.876.957

Loss of control over companies (2.015.923) (11.711.983) (9.390.450) (11.079.147) - - - (34.197.503)

Sale or disposal (702.258) (10.803.814) (2.616.647) (5.446.233) - - (25.774.973) (45.343.925)

As at 31 December 2014 157.551.669 956.723.524 1.003.273.962 361.977.709 2.714.626 44.081.397 5.167.701 2.531.490.588

Reclassifications 2.389.916 (506.020) (3.581.972) 1.968.243 (114.902) 402.484 (402.485) 155.264

Transfer from assets under 
construction

1.353.030 6.001.450 47.761.536 8.651.307 - (63.767.323) - -

Additions 12.847 4.853.994 8.138.162 6.405.931 - 83.581.076 12.168.180 115.160.190

Transfer - - (4.711.117) 4.711.117 - - - -

Transfer to investment property (11.768.723) (70.597.595) - - - (3.659.820) - (86.026.138)

Sale or disposal (862.066) (225.727) (23.001.639) (7.983.565) (2.154) (3.236.070) (14.724.185) (50.035.406)

As at 31 December 2015 148.676.673 896.249.626 1.027.878.932 375.730.742 2.597.570 57.401.744 2.209.211 2.510.744.498

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2014 - 576.935.522 578.786.332 287.105.010 2.007.992 3.760.872 - 1.448.595.728

Depreciation for the year - 21.859.316 44.047.765 17.433.698 11.478 - - 83.352.257

Additions - (1.286.717) - - - - - (1.286.717)

Sale or disposal - (7.280.286) (5.939.938) (4.974.788) - (346.687) - (18.541.699)

Loss of control over companies - (8.003.309) (8.731.148) (10.625.767) - - - (27.360.224)

As at 31 December 2014 - 582.224.526 608.163.011 288.938.153 2.019.470 3.414.185 - 1.484.759.345

Reclassifications - - (3.557.000) 3.557.000 - - - -

Depreciation for the year - 21.287.159 42.870.364 18.147.923 8.911 - - 82.314.357

Impairment of assets - - 4.843.641 3.143.508 - - - 7.987.149

Additions - 56.018 4.002.938 - - - - 4.058.956

Transfer to investment property - (46.779.522) - - - - - (46.779.522)

Sale or disposal - (140.672) (18.292.729) (7.702.182) (2.153) (33.930) - (26.171.666)

As at 31 December 2015 - 556.647.509 638.030.225 306.084.402 2.026.228 3.380.255 - 1.506.168.619

31 December 2014 157.551.669 374.498.998 395.110.951 73.039.556 695.156 40.667.212 5.167.701 1.046.731.243

31 December 2015 148.676.673 339.602.117 389.848.707 69.646.340 571.342 54.021.489 2.209.211 1.004.575.879

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property in the amount of HRK 143,786,056 (2014: HRK 104,549,243) relates to the investments in 
properties for capital appreciation, intended for future sale. A portion of properties is subject to legal disputes over 
ownership. The residual value of this property estimated by independent evaluators is higher than their carrying 
amount, and it represents the basis for depreciation.

The following table discloses movements in investment property in 2015 and 2014 (during the transfer from to 
investment property, the Company uses the gross presentation principle, i.e. increases the carrying value and 
accumulated depreciation for these assets):

As a collateral for long-term borrowings (Note 35) and short-term borrowings, on assets current value of HRK 494,412 
thousand (2014: 509,816 thousand), (Note 37) mortgages have been registered over the real estates and movables 
of the Group in the amount of HRK 214 ( 2014: HRK 571,5 million) and EUR 43,2 million (2014: EUR 57.2 million).

The cost of the Group’s tangible assets which are fully depreciated and still in use as of 31 December 2015 amounts 
to HRK 704,757 thousand (31 December 2014: HRK 610,940 thousand).

As at 31 December 2015 the Group had no contracted uncompleted investments. 

The carrying value of Group’s assets purchased on finance lease as at 31 December 2015 amounts to HRK 1.7 million 
(31 December 2014: HRK 1.9 million).

 Land Buildings Total

HRK HRK HRK

Cost    

At 1 January 2014 32,676,984 92,860,994 125,537,978

Additions 702,258 10,613,344 11,315,602

At 31 December 2014 33,379,242 103,474,338 136,853,580

Reclassification (transfer from property, plant and equipment) 11,768,723 74,257,415 86,026,138

At 31 December 2015 45,147,965 177,731,753 222,879,718

    

Accumulated depreciation    

At 1 January 2014 - 25,171,035 25,171,035

Additions - 7,123,499 7,123,499

Depreciation charge for the year - 9,803 9,803

At 31 December 2014 - 32,304,337 32,304,337

Reclassification (transfer from property, plant and equipment) - 46,779,522 46,779,522

Depreciation charge for the year - 9,803 9,803

At 31 December 2015 - 79,093,662 79,093,662

Net carrying value    

31 December 2014 33,379,242 71,170,001 104,549,243

31 December 2015 45,147,965 98,638,091 143,786,056

The fair value of investment property determined at the balance sheet date relates to fair value of level 3 since input 
variables are not based on observable market data.
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31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Associates:

Končar - Power Transformers Ltd., Zagreb (49%) 244,722,545 244,722,545

Other associates (indirect subsidiaries):

Elkakon Ltd., Zagreb (50% - indirect) 4,194,161 4,198,513

Joint venture:

Tbea Končar Instrument Transformers, China (27%) 14,820,375 14,349,116

263,737,081 263,270,174

The company Končar-Power Transformers Ltd. is primarily engaged in the production of all types of high efficiency 
power transformers intended for the production, transmission and distribution of electricity. This company is in 
majority ownership of Siemens and represents strategic partnership for the Group.

The company Elkakon produces industrial conductors and is primarily the strategic partner to the subsidiary Končar 
D&ST Inc.

The company Tbea Končar Instrument Transformers, China produces electric transformers, power transformers, 
combined instrument transformers and their components and represents strategic partnership for the Group that 
enables access to new customers and eastern markets.

Summary information for associates are shown in the following table:

Končar - Power Transformers Ltd. Elkakon Ltd.
2015 2014 2015 2014

HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Revenues 871,481 1,001,459 62,038 67,048

Expenses 747,650 (848,102) 61,112 (65,249)

Profit before taxation 123,831 153,357 926 1,799

Corporate income tax (24,936) (30,746) (185) (321)

Net profit for the year 98,895 122,611 741 1,478

 

Non-current assets 196,680 203,909 5,903 5,654

Current assets 825,182 853,587 12,884 14,094

Total assets 1,021,861 1,057,496 18,787 19,748

Total liabilities 423,533 435,451 10,398 11,400

For an associate Končar - Power Transformers Ltd. the financial year begins as at 1 October and ends as at 30 
September.

22. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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Summary information for the joint venture is shown in the following table:

 Tbea Končar Instrument Transformers Ltd.

 2015 2014

 HRK’000 HRK’000

Revenues 203,698 162,506

Expenses (198,064) (153,459)

Profit before taxation 5,634 9,047

Corporate income tax (860) (2,288)

Net profit for the year 4,774 6,759

  

Non-current assets 9,241 12,616

Current assets 218,748 156,120

Total assets 227,989 168,736

Total liabilities 159,936 105,584

Movements in investments in associates during the year were as follows:

Power Transformers Ltd. Elkakon Ltd.

HRK HRK

1 January 2014  244,722,545  3,567,965

Profit of an associate (Note 15) 60,079,592 730,548

Dividend payment by associate (60,079,592) (100,000)

31 December 2014  244,722,545  4,198,513

Profit of an associate (Note 15) 48,458,448 345,648

Dividend payment by associate (48,458,448) (350,000)

31 December 2015 244,722,545 4,194,161

Movements in investment in a joint venture were as follows:

HRK

1 January 2014 9,963,799

Profit of joint venture (Note 15) 1,824,954

Dividend payment by joint venture (854,219)

Increase in value of investment in joint venture in China - partial reversal of impairment loss 3,414,581

31 December 2014 14,349,115

Profit of joint venture (Note 15) 1,288,902

Dividend payment by joint venture (786,593)

Foreign currency from translation of foreign operation through other comprehensive income (31,049)

31 December 2015 14,820,375
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23. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Other subsidiaries (indirect subsidiaries):

Končar-Inženjering Inc., Zagreb 227,787 227,787

Konel Ltd., Bulgaria 62,280 62,280

290,067 290,067

Financial assets available for sale (shares in capital up to 20%):

Novi Fermot Ltd., Donji Kraljevec 1,717,200 1,717,200

Ferokotao Ltd., Donji Kraljevec 1,048,128 1,048,128

Centar proizvodnog strojarstva i analitičarstva Ltd. 60,000 60,000

Pevec d.d. 699,715 -

Bio plinifikacija - 10,000

3,525,043 2,835,328

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Derivative instruments 1,096,865 -

Shares 5,167,870 5,191,669

Impairment of shares (3,121,924) (2,722,855)

3,142,811 2,468,814

Loans granted, deposits and similar 5,421,451 5,346,633

Other financial assets 13,670 27,765

12,393,042 10,968,607

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Receivables on the basis of credit sale

Receivables for apartments sold /i/ 10,834,147 13,545,987

Impairment of receivables for apartments sold (1,941,128) (3,180,752)

Receivables for shares sold /ii/ 6,862,225 10,293,339

Current portion - apartments and shares sold (Note 28) (4.639.556) (5.702.319)

Other receivables 27,503 50,049

11,143,191 15,006,304

Receivables on the basis of foreign sales /iii/ 4,541,607 5,002,565

Current portion of foreign sales (Note 27) (516,092) (445,241)

Loans granted to employees 3,028,498 4,409,133

Current portion of loans grated to employees (note 29) (690,264) (858,287)

Other non-current receivables 88,621 119,612

6,452,370 8,227,782

17,595,561 23,234,086

24. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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/i/ In accordance with the Law on Sale of apartments with Tenancy Rights, the flats owned by the Company were 

sold at an interest rate of 1% per annum with the average maturity of 28 years and indexed. According to this index, 

receivables are increased or decreased, if the exchange rate of EUR is changed for more than 5.1% compared to 

the rate that existed at the signing date of the Sale agreements. Amounts of unpaid annuities in DEM have been 

converted into EUR at fixed rate of 1 EUR =1.95583 DEM. As a collateral the mortgage has been registered over the 

sold apartments.

/ii/ Receivables for sold shares relate to long-term receivable for sold shares in subsidiaries Končar-Electronics 

and Informatics Inc., Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc and Končar - Steel Structures Inc. within the employee’s stock-

ownership program and with instalment payments through 10 years.

/iii/ Receivable on the basis of foreign sales relates to receivable for the sale in Bosnia and Herzegovina from the 

customer TAKRAF from Germany, assigned to KfW Bank, Berlin.

25. INVENTORIES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Raw materials and supplies 338,206,266 294,146,538

Work in progress 107,952,818 116,321,737

Unfinished and semi-finished products 39,866,452 46,483,897

Finished goods 63,566,763 78,550,983

Merchandise 20,405,456 18,605,714

Goods in transit 1,018,852 267,011

Spare parts 135,356 136,585

Small inventory and packaging 3,702,889 3,124,717

Less: Impairment of raw materials and supplies, spare parts, and small 
inventory and packaging

(62,110,156) (50,302,024)

Impairment of work in progress, finished goods and merchandise (14,998,329) (23,403,795)

497,746,367 483,931,363

Advances for inventories

Domestic advances 2,443,527 9,331,367

Advances given to related parties 44,769 -

2,488,296 9,331,367

Foreign advances 2,557,488 19,575,726

Impairment of advances given (122,318) (163,388)

2,435,170 19,412,338

Total advances 4,923,466 28,743,705

502,669,833 512,675,068

Cost of goods sold recognized in the income statement in 2015 amounted to HRK 1,986,632 thousand (2014: HRK 
1,456,653 thousand).
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26. RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES 

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Končar - Power Transformers Ltd., Zagreb 77,431,133 78,586,504

TBEA China 1,914,928 1,955,031

Elkakon Ltd. Zagreb 5,666,279 6,728,401

Konell Ltd. - 3,184,723

85,012,340 90,454,659

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS

Total Undue Due but collectible

< 60 days 60-90 days 90-180 days 180-365 days > 365 days

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2015 686.692.767 607.590.081 56.965.752 7.517.185 5.745.273 7.938.806 935.670

2014 584.156.129 493.986.774 61.525.886 10.662.383 10.582.919 5.264.653 2.133.514

The quality of receivables that are past due but not impaired did not significantly change and they are considered 
collectible. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of each receivables 
category stated above.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Trade receivables (invoiced) /i/ 603,486,715 686,692,767

Receivables under construction contracts (un-invoiced) /ii/ 116,689,071 174,499,635

720,175,786 861,192,402

Domestic customers

Bad debt provision 372,319,659 418,250,410

Total domestic customers (41,546,392) (47,612,063)

Foreign customers 330,773,267 370,638,347

Current portion - foreign sales (Note 24) 375,537,440 416,064,740

Bad debt provision 516,092 445,241

Total foreign customers (103,340,084) (100,455,561)

Total domestic and foreign customers 272,713,448 316,054,420

Ukupno kupci u zemlji i inozemstvu 603,486,715 686,692,767

As at 31 December, the ageing structure of trade receivables was as follows:
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2015 2014

HRK HRK

Balance as at 1 January 148,067,624 160,683,554

Impaired during the year 5,884,688 2,896,855

Collected during the year (3,163,475) (5,155,332)

Written - off during the year (5,462,428) (10,675,625)

Foreign exchange differences (439,933) 318,172

Balance as at 31 December 144,886,476 148,067,624
/ii/ Gross amounts due from customers

Incurred costs plus recognized gains less recognized losses 1,140,854,987 802,047,107

Less invoiced amounts (1,024,165,916) (627,547,472)

116,689,071 174,499,635

Movement in the bad debt allowance was as follows:

The amount of construction contract revenues, which are recognized as revenues in 2015, amount to HRK 
1,089,466 thousand (2014: HRK 575,366 thousand). The total amount of advances received for contracts which are 
not completed as at 31 December 2015 amounts to HRK 88,304 thousand (2014: HRK 349,336 thousand), and total 
amount of retentions for construction contracts amounts to HRK 15,843 thousand (2014: HRK 36,576 thousand).

28. OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Receivables from the state and other institutions

Receivables for value added tax 12.588.497 28.201.336

Receivables from Croatian Health Insurance Fund 647.721 538.928

Other 78.133 37.581

13.314.351 28.777.845

Other current receivables

Receivables for shares sold (due) 10,750,238 10,247,847

Receivables for advances given for services 6,546,747 11,937,091

Receivables from companies that are no longer part of the Group 8,760,765 11,221,376

Receivables for recognised claims 8,292,699 8,292,699

Other 3,024,287 4,758,511

Current portion of receivables for shares sold (Note 24) 3,431,113 4,348,973

Receivables for apartments sold (current portion) (note 24) 1,208,443 1,353,346

Current portion of loans granted to employees (Note 24) 690,264 862,287

Receivables loans granted to employees 29,181 22,244

42,733,737 53,044,374

Potraživanja od zaposlenih

Potraživanja od zaposlenika 2,444,365 1,044,945

Ispravak vrijednosti potraživanja od zaposlenika (327,471) (327,471)

2,116,894 717,474

58,164,982 82,539,693
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29. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Deposits over 3 months 398,936,121 438,529,339

Derivative financial instruments - forward contracts 636,254 297,729

Loans given (7%) - 1,300,000

Other financial assets 1,344 2,112

399,573,719 440,129,180

The contractual interest on deposits over 3 months in commercial banks is set between 0.6% - 2,8% (2014: 0.7% 
- 3,20 %).

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Deposits up to 3 months 116,144,881 187,186,045

Giro accounts 135,287,497 117,297,775

Foreign currency accounts 88,321,943 75,751,860

Cash funds 6,643,570 10,800,400

Cash in hand 215,368 211,547

Short-term securities 191,116 191,116

Less: Impairment (184,992) (184,992)

346,619,383 391,253,751

The contractual interest on deposits over 3 months in commercial banks is set between 0.1% - 1.5% (2014: 0.3% 
- 2.75%). The Company mainly deposits its cash with financial institutions that are part of international banking gro-
ups with an AAA/A/A-1/NEG/B/BB/BBB+ (2014: A/negative/A-1/negative/B/BB) credit rating by Standard & Poor’s.

31. PREPAID EXPENSES AND ACCRUED INCOME

Prepaid expenses and accrued income amounting to HRK 12,077,169 (31 December 2014: HRK 15,919,363) relate 
to paid expenses related to future periods amounting to HRK 11,528,950 (31 December 2014: HRK 15,387,959) and 
accrued income in the amount of HRK 548,219 (31 December 2014: HRK 531,403).

32. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets held for sale as at 31 December 2015 in the amount of HRK 5,960,000 elate to real estate 
owned by the subsidiary Končar Distribution and Special Transformers Inc. acquired in exchange for unsettled 
receivable from the company Elektromaterijal Ltd. in bankruptcy. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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33. EQUITY

Share capital is determined in the nominal value amounting to HRK 1,208,895,930 (31 December 2014: HRK 
1,208,895,930) and consist of 2,572,119 shares at nominal value of HRK 470.

In 2014, the Parent company increased the share capital by the total amount of HRK 180,048,330 from profit 
realised in 2013 in the amount of HRK 110,200,000 and other reserves formed in previous years in the amount of 
HRK 69,848,330. The share capital was increased by increasing the nominal amount of each share from the amount 
of HRK 400.00 by HRK 70.00 to HRK 470.00.

The ownership structure of the Parent company is as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Shareholder Number of 
shares

Ownership 
share %

Number of 
shares

Ownership 
share %

HPB Inc. (Capital fund Inc.) 724,515 28.17 724,515 28.17

Centre for Reconstruction and sale / HZMO 384,628 14.95 384,628 14.95

Centre for Reconstruction and sale / RH 142,298 5.53 142,298 5.53

State office for state property management / CRO 117,982 4.59 117,982 4.59

Societe Generale - Splitska bank / Erste Blue mandatory 
pension fund 202,149 7.86 202,149 7.86

Hypo-Alpe-Adria-Bank/ PBZ Croatia insurance mandatory 
pension fund 255,928 9.95 255,928 9.95

Societe Generale / AZ mandatory pension fund 161,110 6.26 106,438 4.14

VALAMAR RIVIJERA d.d. 39,791 1.55 39,791 1.55

Floričić Kristijan 60,714 2.36 82,682 3.21

Hypo-Alpe-Adria-Bank / Raiffeisen mandatory pension fund 28,491 1.11 29,504 1.15

PBZ d.d. (custodian account) 30,208 1.17 27,366 1.06

Other shareholders 418,444 16.27 456,977 17.77

Končar Inc. (treasury shares) 5,861 0.23 1,861 0.07

2,572,119 100 2,572,119 100

In 2015, the parent Company’s General Assembly reached a decision on the payment of dividends to shareholders in 
the amount of HRK 30,795,096 which is HRK 12.00 per share (2014: HRK 30,843,095 which is HRK 12.00 per share).

The Group has formed legal, statutory and other reserves in line with the Companies Act that are defined on the basis 
of profit distribution in accordance with the General Assembly’s decision. The statutory and other reserves are not 
subject to any restrictions as to their distribution. 
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34. PROVISIONS

Servicing 
during 

warranty 
periods

Court case 
provisions

Jubilee and 
retirement 

rewards

Other Total

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

1 January 2014 250,335,816 58,241,915 28,161,589 2,122,968 338,862,288

Additional provisions 44,431,946 645,931 5,592,734 - 50,670,611

Release of provisions (52,768,533) (21,505,201) (11,380,312) (500,000) (86,154,046)

Other (exchange differences etc.) 215,098 - - 871,711 1,086,809

Loss of control - - (651,852)  (150,974)  (802,826)

31 December 2014 242,214,327 37,382,645 21,722,159 2,343,705 303,662,836

Additional provisions 48,990,437 1,277,948 9,255,523 541,644 60,065,552

Release of provisions (38,182,481) (3,321,838) (4,680,167) (470,000) (46,654,486)

Exchange differences and similar 169,231 - - - 169,231

Transfer to current provisions (19,160,598) - (132,000) - (19,292,598)

31 December 2015 234,030,916 35,338,755 26,165,515 2,415,349 297,950,535

Provisions for servicing during warranty periods

Provisions for servicing during warranty periods relate to estimated costs of possible repairs in warranty periods for 
companies within the Group in the amount of HRK 234,030,916 (31 December 2014: HRK 242,214,327).

Provisions for court cases

Non-current provisions for court cases in the amount of HRK 35,338,755 (2013: HRK 37,382,645) relate to court 
cases in progress initiated against the companies within the Group and estimated costs of legal proceedings. 

Provisions for jubilee awards and termination benefits

Provisions for jubilee awards and termination benefits in the amount of HRK 26,165,515 (2014: HRK 21,722,159) 
relate to regular compensations to employees (regular termination benefits and jubilee awards), and severance 
payments to the Management Board in accordance with the Collective Agreement, to which the Group’s employees 
are entitled. The present value calculation of these provisions is based on the number of employees, the pension 
amount, the number of years of service at the balance sheet date and the discount rate of 4.85% (2014: 5.65%).

Other long-term provisions in the amount of HRK 2,415,349 (as at 31 December 2014: HRK 2,343,705) relate to 
provisions for product testing in the amount of HRK 1,001,994 (31 December 2014: HRK 1,471,994), and other pro-
visions in the amount of HRK 1,413,355 (31 December 2014: HRK 871,711).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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35. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Due to banks 176,600,244 219,016,568

Less: Current portion (Note 37) (33,611,686) (57,108,938)

142,988,558 161,907,630

Borrowings from third parties - 170,000

Less: Current portion (Note 37) - (170,000)

- -

142,988,558 161,907,630

Changes in borrowings from banks were as follows:

HRK

1 January 2014 206,349,645

New borrowings 14,069,394

Repayment of borrowings (1,879,914)

Foreign exchange differences 477,443

Less: current portion (57,108,938)

31 December 2014 161,907,630

New borrowings 18,729,549

Repayment of borrowings 3,615,868

Foreign exchange differences (421,067)

Less: current portion (33,611,686)

31 December 2015 142,988,558

Long-term bank borrowings mature as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Within 1 year 33,611,686 57,108,938

From 1 to 2 years 15,158,289 16,300,917

From 2 to 5 years 92,885,868 93,217,185

More than 5 years 34,944,401 52,389,528

Less: current portion (33,611,686) (57,108,938)

142,988,558 161,907,630

Significant long-term arrangements between banks and the companies within the Končar Group were as follows: 



44 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Name of the 
company

Creditor Loan purpose Loan amount Interest rate Maturity Collateral for the loan

Renewable 
Sources Ltd.

HBOR Financing of project 
"Vjetroelektrana 
Pometeno brdo“. 

EUR 9,480,936 4% 21.12.2022. Bills of exchange, 
debentures, endorsed 
insurance policies, 
mortgages, cessions, 
pledge agreement on 
project accounts

Renewable 
Sources Ltd.

ZABA Financing of project 
"Vjetroelektrana 
Pometeno brdo“. 

EUR 2,100,000 3m 
EURIBOR-a 
+ 4% per 
annum

21.12.2022. Bills of exchange, 
debentures, endorsed 
insurance policies, 
mortgages, cessions, 
pledge agreement on 
project accounts

Power 
transformers 
Ltd.

ZGB d.d. Financing of 
investment

HRK 2,257,491 4,2% 
fixed

31.03.2022. 3 blank accepted bills 
of exchange

Power 
transformers 
Ltd.

ZGB d.d. Financing of 
investment

HRK 4,056,213 3,0% 
variable

30.09.2022. 3 blank accepted bills 
of exchange

Distribution 
and Special 
Transformers 
Inc.

RBA & 
CBRD

Financing 
construction 
and equipment 
for laboratries, 
and production, 
warehouse and 
administrative 
facilities

EUR 
5,999,292.84 

4% 30.06.2022. Mortage over 
that company's 
property, 4 blank 
bills of exchange, 1 
debenture

Končar 
Electric 
Vehicles Inc.

HBOR Loan from credit 
programme for 
financing permanent 
working capital 
needs

Up to HRK 
28 million

5.5% 
variable 

31.05.2019. Mortgage over that 
company's property 
in the amount of 
EUR 28 million, 
4 blank accepted 
bills of exchange, 1 
debenture

Household 
Appliances 
Ltd

Erste&Staier-
markische  
SLeasing 

Invetment in 
property, plants and 
equipment

EUR 33,069.96 6.99% 02/09/19 1  debentures

Household 
Appliances 
Ltd

VB leasing Invetment in 
property, plants and 
equipment

EUR 21,850.9 6.82% 15/02/20 1  debentures

Low Voltage 
Switches 
and Circuit 
Breakers Ltd

Partner  
banka 

Credit for invetments EUR 1,169,938 4% 31.8.2017. Mortagage over 
company's property

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Končar - Power transformers Ltd., Zagreb: 14,779,560 37,296,017

Elkakon Ltd. 3,525,204 3,291,399

18,304,764 40,587,416

36. LIABILITIES TOWARD RELATED PARTIES (ASSOCIATES)

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Liabilities to banks and other financial institutions 54,361,806 86,165,928

Plus: Current portion (Note 35) 33,611,686 57,108,938

Current portion of borrowings from third parties - 170,000

87,973,492 143,444,866

Changes in liabilities toward banks during the year were as follows:

37. CURRENT LIABILITIES TOWARD BANKS (BORROWINGS) AND OTHER LOANS

HRK

1 January 2014 93,865,601

New borrowings 97,772,112

Repayment of borrowings (104,202,151)

Foreign exchange differences 38,416

Loss of control over companies (1,308,050)

Plus: current portion of long-term borrowings 57,108,938

31 December 2014 143,274,866

New borrowings 29,845,539

Repayment of borrowings (117,953,633)

Foreign exchange differences (804,966)

Plus: current portion of long-term borrowings 33,611,686

31 December 2015 87,973,492

Significant short-term arrangements between banks and the companies within the Končar Group were as follows:
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Name of the 
company

Creditor Loan purpose Loan 
amount

Interest rate Maturity Collateral for the loan

Power 
transformers 
Ltd.

PBZ d.d. Financing of 
working capital: 
a) Obligation to 
supplier,
b)obligation 
to financial 
institutions,
c) other-payroll

HRK 
1,125,000

2.8% 30.09.2016. 2 blank accepted bills of 
exchange, 2  debentures

Power 
transformers 
Ltd.

PBZ d.d. Financing of 
working capital: 
a) Obligation to 
supplier,
b)obligation 
to financial 
institutions,
c) other-payroll

HRK 
1,687,500

3.58% variable 30.09.2016. 2 blank accepted bills of 
exchange, 2  debentures

Power 
transformers 
Ltd.

PBZ d.d. Financing of 
working capital: 
a) Obligation to 
supplier,
B)obligation 
to financial 
institutions,
c) other-payroll

HRK 
312,500

1.8% 30.03.2016. 2 blank accepted bills of 
exchange, 2  debentures

Power 
transformers 
Ltd.

PBZ d.d. Financing of 
working capital: 
a) Obligation to 
supplier,
b)obligation 
to financial 
institutions,
c) other-payroll

HRK 
312,500

4.4%  variable 30.03.2016. 2 blank accepted bills of 
exchange, 2  debentures

Končar 
Household 
Appliances Ltd.

PBZ & 
CBRD

Financing of 
working capital

HRK 
15 million

Interest rate 
on PBZ share 
is equal to the 
yield on MF 
treasury bills 
+ 3.3% per 
annum, and on 
CBRD share 
2.8% per annum

30.09.2016. 1 blank accepted bill of 
exchange of that company 
and Končar - Electrical 
Industry Inc., and 1 
debenture of that company 
and Končar Electrical 
Industry Inc., per shares of 
PBZ and CBRD separately

Household 
Appliances Ltd

ZABA Financing of 
working capital

EUR 
350,000

5.5% 31.12.2016. 3 blank accepted bills of 
exchange, 1  debentures

Switchgear Inc ZABA Financing of 
bussines

HRK 
3,200,000

4% 22.01.2016. letter of credit Dubai

Switchgear Inc ZABA Financing of 
bussines

HRK 
10,000,000

4.2% 30.06.2016. 3 blank accepted bills of 
exchange

Low Voltage 
Switches and 
Circuit Breakers 
Ltd

PABA Credit for 
invetments

EUR 
1,559,920

4% 30.11.2016. Mortagage over company's 
property

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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38. OSTALE KRATKOROČNE FINANCIJSKE OBVEZE

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Derivative financial instruments - forward contracts - 3,650,393

Total Undue Due

< 60 days 60-90 days 90-180 days 180-365 days > 365 days

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2015 349,049,822 308,931,316 33,987,939 1,142,852 1,788,734 2,005,524 1,193,457

2014 371,071,518 325,912,958 38,231,758 4,328,171 1,044,605 287,553 1,266,473

39. TRADE PAYABLES 

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Domestic suppliers 226,103,138 261,072,310

Foreign suppliers 122,236,859 105,481,238

Liabilities for un-invoiced goods 709,825 4,517,970

349,049,822 371,071,518

At 31 December, the ageing structure of trade payables was as follows:

40. GROSS AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Invoiced in the year under contracts 350,417,561 229,143,439

Less costs incurred plus recognized profits less the sum 
of recognized losses (326,825,069) (199,300,018)

23,592,492 29,843,421

41. LIABILITIES FOR ADVANCES RECEIVED

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

From domestic customers 75,819,993 270,092,969

From foreign customers 106,529,553 146,762,503

182,349,546 416,855,472
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group is exposed in its business to market (interest and foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Certain companies within the Group use derivative financial instruments as a protection from these risks. The 

Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise 

the adverse effects on the Group’s financial statements. The risk management policies relating to current and non-

current financial assets, current and non-current receivables, cash management as well as debts and liabilities can 

be summarised as follows:

43. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Deferred income 88,526,740 44,497,975

Current provisions 33,675,459 21,882,839

Accrued expenses 7,219,701 8,544,754

Other - 473,040

129,421,900 75,398,608

42. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Liabilities to the state and other institutions

Liability for value added tax 12,164,097 8,550,709

Liabilities for contributions on and from salary and taxes and surtaxes 38,278,894 37,020,618

50,442,991 45,571,327

Current other liabilities

Interest payable 1,638,257 2,195,927

Liabilities to shareholders 547,066 515,804

Other liabilities 4,807,472 982,634

6,992,795 3,694,365

Current liabilities toward employees  

Net salaries 29,919,957 29,022,605

Liabilities for severance pay 37,300 26,000

Liabilities toward Management Boards of companies for bonuses 4,654,646 4,754,240

Other liabilities 254,501 440,204

34,866,404 34,243,049

92,302,190 83,508,741

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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b) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis 
of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial 
asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 to these financial statements.

The accounting policies for financial instruments are applied on the following items in the balance sheet:

Loans and 
receivables

Assets at fair 
value through 
profit or loss

Available- 
for-sale assets

Total assets 
classified 

under IAS 39

31 December 2015 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000

Long-term financial assets 5,726 1,958 4,709 12,393

Non-current receivables 17,596 - - 17,596

Current financial assets 398,938 636 - 399,574
Trade receivables, receivables from 
related parties and other receivables 

724,686 - - 724,686

Cash and cash equivalents 339,975 6,664 -  346,619 

1,486,921 9,238 4,709 1,500,868

a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to sharehol-
ders through the optimisation of the debt to equity balance. 

The Group manages its capital and makes the necessary adjustments in accordance with the economic conditions in the 
market and risk features of its assets. In order to adjust or maintain the capital structure, the Group may decide to pay 
dividends to owners, increase/decrease the share capital, sell assets to reduce liabilities etc. The objectives, policies and 
processes have not been changed during the periods ending 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014. The Group mo-
nitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, which is calculated as follows.

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Financial liabilities 230,962 305,352

Decrease for cash and cash equivalents (deposits) (346,619) (391,254)

Net debt - -

Loans and 
receivables

Assets at fair 
value through 
profit or loss

Available- 
for-sale assets

Total assets 
classified 

under IAS 39

31 December 2014 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000

Long-term financial assets 5,347 2,469 3,153 10,969

Non-current receivables 23,234 - - 23,234

Current financial assets 439,831 298 - 440,129
Trade receivables, receivables from related 
parties and other receivables 

818,254 - - 818,254

Cash and cash equivalents 380,454 10,800 - 391,254

1,667,120 13,567 3,153 1,683,840
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31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000

Assets

Listed shares 1,599  -  - 1,599

Investments in unlisted shares 507  - 398 905

Fair value of the derivative financial instruments -  1,733 - 1,733

Available for sale financial assets - - 2,765 2,765

Cash funds 6,644  -  - 6,644

8,750  1,733 3,163  13,646

All of the Group’s liabilities have been classified as “At amortized cost”. The Group does not have liabilities which 
are classified as Liabilities at “Fair value through Profit and Loss”.

Fair value of financial instruments

The following table represents financial assets and liabilities valued at fair value in the Statement of financial position 
according to the fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into 3 levels depending on 
the input variables used in measuring the fair value of financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels:

 Level 1: quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities traded on active markets

 Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

 Level 3: inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data 

The level within which financial assets/liabilities are stated are classified based on the lowest level of significant in-
puts used in measuring fair value. Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial 
position are grouped within the fair value hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000

Assets

Listed shares 1,749 - - 1,749

Investments in unlisted shares - - 797 797

Fair value of the derivative financial instruments - 298 - 298

Available for sale financial assets - - 2,765 2,765

Cash funds 10,800 - - 10,800

12,549 298 3,562 16,409

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined as follows:

•  the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid 
markets is determined with reference to quote market price:

•  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) is determined in 
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices for obser-
vable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments;

•  the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, use 
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for 
non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives.

The Group used the following methods and assumptions during its financial asset fair value estimation:

-  Receivables and deposits with banks - for assets due within three months and cash funds, the carrying amount 
approximates their fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. For long-term assets, the contracted 
interest rates do not significantly deviate from the current market rates and, accordingly, their fair value approxima-
tes their carrying amount.

-  Borrowings - current liability fair value approximates their carrying amount due to the short maturities of these instru-
ments. The Management Board believes that their fair value does not significantly differ from their carrying amount.

-  Other financial instruments - financial instruments that are not valued at fair value are trade receivables, other re-
ceivables, trade payables and other current liabilities. The historical accounting value of receivables and liabilities, 
including provisions, that are in line with the usual terms of business, is approximately equal to their fair value.

c) Financial risk 

The Group monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal risk re-
ports, which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency 
risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the change in market prices, such as the change in foreign currencies and interest rates, 
would influence the Group’s result or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is managing and controlling the exposure to this risk within acceptable parameters, thus, optimizing returns.

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the market risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and 
interest rates.

There were no significant changes to the Group’s exposure to market risk or the manner in which it manages and 
measures the risk.

a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to this risk through sales, purchase and loans stated in foreign currency which is not the 
Group’s functional currency. Foreign currencies to which the Group is mostly exposed are EUR and USD. 

Group companies are exposed to foreign currency risk through sales, purchase and short-term deposits denominated 
in foreign currencies. Certain companies within the Group make agreements for the purpose of hedging this risk.
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2015
Effect on profit before tax

2014
Effect on profit before tax

HRK’000 HRK’000

EUR -1% (2014: +1%) (4,162) 3,413

USD +11% (2014: +14%) 619 5,176

Other currencies 785 3,392

31 December 2015 EUR USD Other 
currencies

Total 
foreign 

currencies 

HRK Total

HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK’000

Trade receivables and receivables from related parties 228,193 7,377 43,041 278,611 409,888 688,499

Derivative instruments 1,733 - - 1,733 - 1,733

Other receivables 4,026 93 - 4,119 49,663 53,782

Deposits over 3 months 390,642 2,517 7,110 400,269 4,088 404,357

Cash and cash equivalents 139,845 18,689 112,560 271,094 75,525 346,619

764,439 28,676 162,711 955,826 539,164  1,494,990

Trade payables and liabilities to related parties (273,084) (547) (5,353) (278,984) (88,371) (367,355)

Derivative financial instruments - - - - - -

Other liabilities - - - - (6,993) (6,993)

Borrowings (146,559) - - (146,559) (84,403) (230,962)

(419,643) (547) (5,353) (425,543) (179,767) (605,310)

31 December 2014 EUR USD Other 
currencies

Total 
foreign 

currencies 

HRK Total

HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK’000

Trade receivables and receivables from related parties 269,347 43,050 14,831 327,228 449,920 777,148

Other receivables 24,332 360 258 24,950 80,499 105,449

Deposits over 3 months 408,216 2,520 29,393 440,129 - 440,129

Cash and cash equivalents 266,545 1,189 8,003 275,737 115,517 391,254

968,440 47,119 52,485 1,068,044 645,936 1,713,980

Trade payables and liabilities to related parties (114,479) (2,351) (6,814) (123,644) (288,015) (411,659)

Derivative financial instruments (3,650) - - (3,650) - (3,650)

Other liabilities - - - - (3,694) (3,694)

Borrowings (196,428) - - (196,428) (108,925) (305,353)

(314,557) (2,351) (6,814) (323,722) (400,634) (724,356)

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

In the above tables, receivables for apartments sold are not included in the amounts in EUR because of a contractual 
clause on the increase/decrease in receivables if the change in EUR currency rate is more than 5.1% compared to 
the currency rate that existed at the time of concluding the contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2015, if the Croatian kuna weakened against the Euro by -1% (2014: strengthened by 1%) and stren-
gthened against the USD by 11% (2014: strengthened by14%) and changes in other currencies the recalculation of 
profit before tax for the year would have increased / (decreased) as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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2015 Increase/decrease in percentage Effect on income before taxes
HRK’000

HRK +1% (940)

HRK -1% 940

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining suffi-
cient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss form defaults. The Group uses 
data and opinions of specialised rating companies, the Chamber of Commerce and other publicly available financial 
information on financial positions of companies and uses its own trading records to rate its major customers. The 
Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of 
transaction concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. 

Trade and other receivables - the Group’s exposure to credit risk is affected by the individual characteristics of each 
customer. The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for 
creditworthiness before determining payment and delivery terms and conditions. The Group establishes an allowan-
ce for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables and 
investments. The ageing structure of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is presented in Note 27.

2014 Increase/decrease in percentage Effect on income before taxes
HRK’000

HRK +1% (1,743)

HRK -1% 1,743

This analysis assumes that all other variables, interest rates especially, remain unchanged.

Opposite currency change in kuna against the above currencies at the reporting date would have had the equal but 
opposite effect on the profit before tax, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

b) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest risk since a portion of borrowings is agreed at variable interest rates while the ma-
jority of assets is non-interest bearing. Certain companies within the Group contract hedge against interest rate risk 
stated in foreign currencies.

The following table shows sensitivity of changes in interest rates relating to Group’s loans as of 31 December, with 
the assumptions that all other variables are constant, on income before taxes.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group companies will not be able to meet their financial obligations as they fall 
due. Liquidity risk management is the responsibility of the Management Boards of the Group companies, while the 
Company’s Management Board has built a quality frame for monitoring current, middle and long-term financing and 
all liquidity risk requirements. 

The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring the anticipated and actual cash flow based on the ma-
turity of financial assets and liabilities. The following table presents the maturity of financial liabilities of the Group 
at 31 December in accordance with contracted undiscounted payments:

Carrying 
amount

Contracted
cash flows

0 - 3
months

3 - 12
months

2 - 5
years

Over 5
years

31 December 2015 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK’000

Current trade payables and liabilities to related parties 367,355 367,355 245,737 103,848 17,770 -

Other current liabilities 6,993 6,993 2,482 4,511 -

Interest-bearing liabilities 230,962 235,848 25,909 65,263 109,410 35,266

605,310 610,196 274,128 173,622 127,180 35,266

Carrying 
amount

Contracted
cash flows

0 - 3
months

3 - 12
months

2 - 5
years

Over 5
years

31 December 2014 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK’000

Current trade payables and liabilities to related parties 411,658 411,658 384,094 27,564 - -

Other current liabilities 3,694 3,694 3,694 - - -

Derivative instruments 3,650 3,650 - 3,650 - -

Interest-bearing liabilities 305,353 341,700 54,594 105,2211 139,328 42,557

724,356 760,702 442,382 136,435 139,328 42,557

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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45. SEGMENT REPORTING

2015 Industry Energy and 
transport

Trade Special 
activities

Company Eliminations Group

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

Sales 93,117,569 2,609,954,508 202,194,929 32,804,400 670,420  - 2,938,741,826

Sales to related companies 7,568,543 399,725,179 4,212,652 96,645,073 54,855,647  (452,674,803) 110,332,291

Other operating income 2,136,503 99,314,608 3,522,533 21,347,564 6,708,796 (391,162) 132,638,842

Total operating income 102,822,615 3,108,994,295 209,930,114 150,797,037 62,234,863  (453,065,965) 3,181,712,959

Total operating expenses  (87,851,991) (2,985,279,193) (218,304,674) (137,087,167)  (78,533,294)  (451,001,797)  (3,056,054,522)

Operating profit/loss 14,970,624 123,715,102 (8,374,560) 13,709,870  (16,298,431) (2,064,168) 125,658,437

Financial result 532,828  (14,134,227)  (1,379,859) 328,814 78,732,902  (20,183,881) 43,896,577

Profit/loss before taxation  15,503,452 109,580,875  (9,754,419) 14,038,684 62,434,471  (22,248,049) 169,555,014

Corporate income tax  (3,271,700)  (12,949,894) -  (2,013,048) - -  (18,234,642)

Net profit/loss for the year  12,231,752  96,630,981  (9,754,419)  12,025,636  62,434,471  (22,248,049)  151,320,372 

Non-controlling interest 23,669,678

Profit of the Parent company owner 127,651,294

Non-current assets 28,251,570 768,824,034 45,813,157 67,961,603 1,233,449,878  (640,943,495) 1,503,356,747

Current assets 75,968,991 1,618,921,151 73,159,783 152,960,778 392,917,245  (167,246,304) 2,146,681,644

Total assets 104,220,561 2,387,745,185 118,972,940 220,922,381 1,626,367,123  (774,761,839) 3,683,466,351

Total liabilities 15,187,152 1,346,906,541 44,991,309 37,081,306 53,962,359  (169,586,307) 1,328,542,360

2014 Industry Energy and 
transport

Trade Special 
activities

Company Eliminations Group

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

Sales 84,105,603 2,224,053,411 193,175,833 37,746,471 1,109,289 - 2,540,190,607

Sales to related companies 7,836,074 329,501,475 4,876,376 88,226,063 52,516,643  (374,391,013) 108,565,618

Other operating income 1,777,418 111,434,882 14,491,168 19,674,679 35,284,035 2,791 182,664,973

Total operating income 93,719,095 2,664,989,768 212,543,377 145,647,213 88,909,967  (374,388,222) 2,831,421,198

Total operating expenses  (83,154,208) (2,553,760,741) (211,844,018) (139,863,007) (116,220,137)  377,387,433 (2,727,454,678)

Operating profit/loss 10,564,887 111,229,027 699,359 5,784,206  (27,310,170) 2,999,211 103,966,520

Financial result 1,015,850  (1,066,150)  (1,203,426) 1,137,842 116,902,395  (44,670,394) 72,116,117

Profit/loss before taxation  11,580,737 110,162,877  (504,067) 6,922,048 89,592,225  (41,671,183) 176,082,637

Corporate income tax  (2,505,671)  (12,923,169)  -  (556,846)  -  - (15,985,686)

Net profit/loss for the year  9,075,066  97,239,708  (504,067)  6,365,202  89,592,225 (41,671,183) 160,096,951 

Non-controlling interest 30,847,668

Profit of the Parent company owner 129,249,283

Non-current assets 26,033,287 750,168,762 57,791,217 66,774,640 1,170,656,945  (570,784,230) 1,500,640,621

Current assets 68,317,360 1,880,890,353 75,697,670 143,185,408 421,531,160  (171,779,603) 2,417,842,348

Total assets 94,350,647 2,631,059,115 133,488,887 209,960,048 1,592,188,105  (742,563,833) 3,918,482,969

Total liabilities 13,011,458 1,666,230,820 50,302,632 29,445,456 48,569,914  (174,082,149) 1,633,478,131
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46. OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Off-balance sheet items of the Group amounting to HRK 2,092 million (2014: HRK 2,609 million) mostly relate to the 

issued collateral (guarantees, bills of exchange, promissory notes), solidary/subsidiary guarantees, liabilities toward the 

state for apartments sold (65%) and similar.

47. CONTINGENCIES

Several court cases have been initiated against the subsidiaries (labour cases) and the Parent company which are 

currently in process. The most significant court cases are initiated against the Parent company in the amount of HRK 

31,800 thousand (2014.: HRK 31.800 thousand), increased by legal penalty interest, As at 31 December 2015 the 

Parent company recognized the provision in the amount of HRK 32,100 thousand (principal plus interest) for these 

court cases. 

48. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s contractual commitments on the basis of unfinished construction projects as at 31 December 2015 amo-

unted to HRK 3,630 million (31 December 2014: HRK 3,718 million).

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

After the reporting date and up to the date of approval of the financial statements, there were no events that could 

significantly affect the annual financial statements of the Company for 2015, which should be disclosed.

2015 2014

HRK'000 % HRK'000 %

Croatia 1,742,432 57.2% 1,350,740 51.0%

Countries in European Union 774,672 25.4% 713,096 26.9%

2,517,104 82.6% 2,063,836 77.9%
Bosnia and Herzegovina, Macedonia, 
Serbia and Montenegro 75,312 2.5% 123,865 4.7%

Other European countries 100,846 3.3% 35,922 1.4%

Asia 290,950 9.5% 180,836 6.8%

America and Australia 52,308 1.7% 45,263 1.7%

Other countries 12,554 0.4% 199,034 7.5%

531,970 17.4% 584,920 22.1%

3,049,074 100.0% 2,648,756 100%

Sales by regions:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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50. PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements set out on the previous pages were prepared and approved by the Company’s 
Management Board on 24 March 2016.

Signed on behalf of the Management Board:

Darinko Bago,

President of the Management Board
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes 2015 2014

 HRK HRK

Sales 4 54,957,694 52,721,824

Other operating income 5 7,277,169 36,188,142

Operating income 62,234,863 88,909,966

Cost of materials and energy 6 (6,310,421) (5,804,109)

Cost of services 7 (30,783,552) (30,237,407)

Staff costs 8 (24,073,938) (25,730,039)

Depreciation and amortization 15, 16 (8,980,945) (11,670,006)

Other costs 9 (6,475,313) (41,759,988)

Impairment losses 10 (1,076,383) (733,080)

Provisions 11 (832,742) (285,508)

Operating expenses (78,533,294) (116,220,137)

Operating loss (16,298,431) (27,310,171)

Dividend income from associates 48,458,448 60,079,592

Finance income 82,578,334 71,739,724

Finance costs (52,303,880) (14,916,921)

Finance income - net 12 78,732,902 116,902,395

Profit before taxation 62,434,471 89,592,224

Corporate income tax 13 - -

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 62,434,471 89,592,224

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:

Translation of foreign operations - 158,252

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 62,434,471 89,750,476

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (HRK) 14 24.33 34.86
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

ASSETS  HRK HRK

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 15 1,007,436 782,436

Property, plant and equipment 16 207,098,692 214,839,110

Investment property 17 143,071,230 136,936,351

Investments in subsidiaries 18 798,122,323 729,235,265

Investments in associates 19 67,722,257 67,722,257

Financial assets 20 1,258,796 1,576,791

Receivables 21 15,169,144 19,564,066

 1,233,449,878 1,170,656,276

Current assets

Financial assets 26 241,267,485 282,277,794

Receivables from related companies 22 63,903,714 69,576,420

Trade receivables 23 537,550 899,247

Prepaid corporate income tax 6,335,954 10,502,684

Other receivables 24 34,392,924 38,561,043

Loans granted to related parties 25 30,075,456 6,250,000

Cash at bank and in hand 27 8,431,842 5,212,190

Prepaid costs and accrued income 7,972,320 8,252,451

 392,917,245 421,531,829

TOTAL ASSETS  1,626,367,123 1,592,188,105

  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  

Share capital 1,208,895,930 1,208,895,930

Share premium  719,579 719,579

Other reserves  294,106,743 235,357,615

Retained earnings  6,248,041 9,052,844

Profit of the year  62,434,471 89,592,224

28 1,572,404,764 1,543,618,192

  

Non-current provisions 29 34,443,923 36,276,734

Current liabilities  

Liabilities to related companies 30 12,356,500 3,682,023

Trade payables 31 903,616 1,365,439

Other current liabilities 32 5,760,262 7,245,717

Provisions 29 498,058 -

 19,518,436 12,293,179

Total liabilities 53,962,359 48,569,913

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,626,367,123 1,592,188,105
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Notes 2015 2014

HRK HRK

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash receipts from trade receivables 66,333,442 71,046,381

Cash receipts from interest 7,892,860 7,441,843

Cash receipts from prepaid corporate income tax 6,681,194 -

Other cash receipts 7,763,256 22,871,536

Total cash receipts from operating activities 88,670,752 101,359,760

Cash payments to trade payables (50,196,354) (53,055,832)

Cash payments to employees (24,588,743) (23,271,134)

Cash payments for interest (809) (1,644)

Cash payments for taxes (10,996,271) (13,427,708)

Other cash payments (8,894,663) (58,214,828)

Total cash payments for operating activities (94,676,840) (147,971,146)

Net cash flow used in operating activities (6,006,088) (46,611,386)

Cash flow from investing activities

Receipts from the sale of non-current tangible and intangible assets 11,758,202 2,387,049

Cash receipts from the sale of financial instruments 4,695,685 3,368,778

Receipts from dividends 99,082,339 72,752,923

Purchase of non-current tangible and intangible assets (3,845,022) (10,532,534)

Investments in subsidiaries (94,644,512) (26,997,974)

Purchase of treasury shares (2,804,803) -

Net cash from investing activities 14,241,889 40,978,242

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash receipts from loans and borrowings 6,621,218 58,704,791

Cash receipts from deposits 282,412,251 181,866,231

Other cash receipts from financing activities 6,648,159 -

Dividends paid (30,735,901) (30,875,795)

Deposits placed (240,836,420) (305,737,055)

Other cash outflows for financing activities (29,125,456) (8,325,000)

Net cash used in financing activities (5,016,149) (104,366,828)

Total decrease in cash flow 3,219,652 (109,999,972)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 5,212,190 115,212,162

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 27 8,431,842 5,212,190

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

 
Share 

capital
Share 

premium
Other 

reserves 
Reserves 

for treasury 
shares

Treasury 
shares

Retained 
earnings

Profit for 
the year

Total

 HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

As at 1 January 2014 1,028,847,600 719,579 273,420,895 3,237,715 (3,237,715) 37,997,206 141,826,798 1,482,812,078

Transactions with owners:

Allocation of profit to 
reserves

- - 31,626,798 - - - (31,626,798) -

Increase in share capital 
(note 28)

180,048,330 - (69,848,330) - - - (110,200,000) -

Dividends (note 28) - - - - - (30,843,095) - (30,843,095)

Release of reserves for 
treasury shares to retained 
earnings

- - - (1,898,733) - 1,898,733 - -

Share-based payments - - - 1,898,733 - - 1,898,733

180,048,330 - (38,221,532) (1,898,733) 1,898,733 (28,944,362) (141,826,798) (28,944,362)

Profit for the year - - - - - 89,592,224 89,592,224

Other comprehensive 
income:
FX differences from 
translating foreign 
operations (note 28)

- - 158,252 - - - - 158,252

Total comprehensive income - - 158,252 - - - 89,592,224 89,750,476

As at 31 December 2014 1,208,895,930 719,579 235,357,615 1,338,982 (1,338,982) 9,052,844 89,592,224 1,543,618,192

Transactions with owners:

Allocation of profit to 
reserves (note 28)

- - 58,749,128 - - - (58,749,128) -

Dividends (note 28) - - - - - - (30,843,096) (30,843,096)

Formation of reserves for 
treasury shares from retained 
earnings

- - - 2,804,803 - (2,804,803) - -

Purchase of treasury shares - - - - (2,804,803) - - (2,804,803)

58,749,128 2,804,803 (2,804,803) (2,804,803) (89,592,224) (33,647,899)

Profit for the year 62,434,471 62,434,471

Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income - - - - - - 62,434,471 -

As at 31 December 2015 1,208,895,930 719,579 294,106,743 4,143,785 (4,143,785) 6,248,041 62,434,471 1,572,404,764

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

Končar-Electrical Industry Inc, Zagreb, Fallerovo šetalište 22, is the parent company of the Končar-Electrical Industry 

Group (the Končar Group). As the parent company, it prepares consolidated financial statements which are presented 

and audited separately. These separate financial statements represent the Company as a separate entity. The main 

activities of the Company are managing owned subsidiaries and associates.

As at 31 December 2015 the Company had 50 employees, while as at 31 December 2014 the Company had 51 

employees.

The structure of employees is as follows:
 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

PhD 1 1

Master’s degree 12 12

University degree 24 25

College 7 7

Secondary school 5 5

Primary school + training on the job 1 1

 50 51

Members of the Supervisory Board: 
Nenad Filipović President

Jasminka Belačić Deputy

Boris Draženović Member

Ivan Rujnić Member

Vicko Ferić Member

Petar Vlaić Member

Dragan Marčinko Member 

Petar Mišura Member 

Nikola Plavec Member  

Members of the Management Board: 
Darinko Bago President

Marina Kralj Miliša Member, in charge of legal, general and human resource activities

Jozo Miloloža Member, in charge of finance

Davor Mladina Member, in charge of IT and trade activities

Miroslav Poljak Member, in charge of corporate development and ICT

Miki Huljić Deputy Member, in charge of finance

The remuneration paid to members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board is disclosed in notes 8 and 9 

to the financial statements.  

The financial statements are stated in Croatian Kuna (HRK). The stated amounts are rounded to the nearest HRK.

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the prepa-

ration of these financial statements are set out below. 

These policies have been consistently applied to all the 

years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1. Basis for preparation

The financial statements of the Company are prepared 

in accordance with the applicable laws in the Republic 

of Croatia and with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards endorsed for use in the European Union (IFRS). 

The financial statements have been prepared under the 

historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation 

of certain financial instruments that are carried at fair val-

ue. The financial statements are prepared on the accrual 

basis and on a going concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 

IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting esti-

mates. It also requires management to exercise its judge-

ment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting 

policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement 

or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates 

are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed 

in Note 3.

The financial statements are denominated in Croatian Kuna 

(HRK) as the Company’s functional and reporting curren-

cy. At 31 December 2014, the exchange rate for USD 1 

and EUR 1 was HRK 6.99 and HRK 7.635, respectively (31 

December 2014: HRK 6.30 and HRK 7.66 respectively).

The Company has issued these separate financial state-

ments in accordance with Croatian regulations. The Com-

pany has also prepared consolidated financial statements 

in accordance with IFRS for the Company and its subsidi-

aries (the Group), which were approved by the Manage-

ment Board on 24 March 2016.

New and amended standards adopted by the 
Company 

The Company has adopted new and amended standards 

for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 

2015 which were endorsed by the European Union and 

which are relevant for the Company’s financial statements:

•  Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2010 - 2012 Cycle 
comprising changes to seven standards (IFRS 1, 
IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, IAS 16, IAS 28 and IAS 24). 

•  Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2011 - 2013 Cycle 
comprising changes to four standards (IFRS 2, IFRS 
3, IFRS 13 and IAS 40).

The adoption of the improvements did not have any im-

pact on the current period or any prior period and is not 

likely to affect future periods.

Standards, amendments and interpretations 
issued but not yet effective

Certain new standards and interpretations have been pub-

lished that are not mandatory for 31 December 2015 re-

porting periods and have not been early adopted by the 

Company. None of these is expected to have significant 

effect on the Company’s financial statements, except for 

the following standards:

IFRS 9 Financial instruments and associated amendments 

to various other standards (effective for annual periods be-

ginning on o rafter 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and 

derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities and 

introduces new rules for hedge accounting. In December 

2014, the IASB made further changes to the classification 

and measurement rules and also introduced a new im-

pairment model. With these amendments, IFRS 9 is now 

compete. 

Following the changes approved by the IASB in July 2014, 

the Company no longer expects any impact from the new 

classification, measurement and derecognition rules on 

the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities. The 

Company assessed that the debt instruments currently 

classified as available-for-sale financial assets would sat-

isfy the conditions for classification as at fair value through 

other comprehensive income (FVOCI) based on their cur-

rent business model for these assets. Hence there will be 

no change to the accounting for these assets. The new 

standard also introduces expanded disclosure require-

ments and changes in presentation, The new impairment 

model is an expected credit loss (ECL) model which may 

result in the earlier recognition of credit losses. The Com-

pany has not yet assessed how its own hedging arrange-

ments and impairment provisions would be affected by 

the new rules.
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The Management plans to adopt the standard on its ef-

fective date and when endorsed by the European Union.

IFRS 16 “Leases” (issued in January 2016 and effec-
tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Janu-
ary 2019)

The new standard sets out the principles for the rec-

ognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 

leases. All leases result in the lessee obtaining the right 

to use an asset at the start of the lease and, if lease pay-

ments are made over time, also obtaining financing. Ac-

cordingly, IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases 

as either operating leases of finance leases as is required 

by IAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee ac-

counting model. Lessees will be required to recognize: 

a) assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 

than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low 

value, and b) depreciation of lease assets separately 

from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. 

IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor account-

ing requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor contin-

ues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance 

leases, and to account for those two types of leases dif-

ferently. The Company is currently assessing the impact 

of the amendments on its financial statements.

a) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration 

received or receivable for the sale of goods and services 

in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities. Reve-

nue is shown, net of value-added tax, estimated returns, 

rebates and discounts. 

Revenue from services is recognized in the accounting 

period in which the services are rendered, using the per-

centage of completion method. Revenues from fees and 

rent charged to related companies are recognized in the 

period when rendered, on the basis of contracted terms 

with related companies.

Dividend income from subsidiaries and associates is 

recognized when the right to receive payment is estab-

lished, within Finance income and cost, note 12.

b) Finance income and cost

Finance income and cost comprises interest income on 

loans and borrowings using the effective interest meth-

od, interest income on funds invested, dividend income, 

foreign currency losses and gains, gains and losses from 

changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss. 

Foreign exchange gains/losses are recognized in the 

Statement of comprehensive income and note 12 in 

gross amounts (amounts include exchange differences 

from operations as well from financing activities).

Interest income is recognized as it accrues in profit or 

loss, using the effective interest method. 

c) Taxation

The Company provides for taxation liabilities in accord-

ance with Croatian law. Corporate tax for the year com-

prises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable 

income for the year, adjusted for amounts which are not 

included in the tax base or tax deductible expenses. Cor-

porate tax is calculated by using tax rates enacted at the 

balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differ-

ences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabili-

ties in the financial statements and the values presented 

for the purposes of determining the income tax base. A 

deferred tax asset for unused tax losses and unused tax 

credits is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 

future taxable profit will be realised on the basis of which 

the deferred tax assets will be utilised. Deferred tax as-

sets and liabilities are calculated using the tax rate ap-

plicable to the taxable profit in the years in which these 

assets or liabilities will be realised. 

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the Statement 

of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it 

relates to items recognized in other comprehensive in-

come or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also 

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 

equity, respectively.

d) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic earnings per share data 

for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calcu-

lated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the Company by the weighted average 

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the prof-

it or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by weighted 

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 

period less potential shares which arise from options.

e) Dividend distribution

Dividends are recognized in the Statement of changes 

in equity and recognized as a liability in the period when 

declared by the shareholders.

f) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are initially converted into 

Croatian kuna by applying the exchange rates prevailing 

on the transaction date. Cash, receivables and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at 

the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Foreign 

exchange losses and gains arising on translation are in-

cluded in profit or loss for the current year.

g)  Non-current intangible and tangible 
assets (property, plant and equipment)

Non-current intangible and tangible assets are initially 

recognized at cost which includes the purchase price, 

import duties and non-refundable taxes after discounts 

and rebates, as well as all other costs directly attribut-

able to bringing the assets into working condition for 

their intended use.

Non-current intangible and tangible assets are recog-

nized when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the item will flow to the Company and 

the cost of the item can be measured reliably, and when 

the cost is higher than HRK 3,500.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the assets are stat-

ed at historical cost less depreciation (or amortization) 

and any accumulated impairment losses.

Maintenance and repairs, replacements and improve-

ments of minor scale are expensed as incurred. When 

it is clear that expenses incurred resulted in an increase 

in expected future economic benefits to be derived from 

the use of an item of non-current intangible or tangible 

assets in excess of the originally assessed standard per-

formance of the asset, they are capitalised, i.e. added to 

the carrying amount of the asset. Gains or losses on the 

retirement or disposal of non-current asset are included 

in the income statement in the period when incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation start when the assets 

are available and ready for use, i.e. when they are ap-

propriately located and in the right conditions needed 

for their intended use. Depreciation and amortisation 

cease when the assets are fully depreciated or when 

the assets are classified as held for sale. Depreciation 

and amortisation are provided on a straight-line basis for 

each asset, except for land and non-current intangible 

and tangible assets under construction and advances, 

over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line 

method, as follows:

Depreciation/amortization rate (from - to %)

Intangible assets 20

Buildings 1.2 - 7.7

Plant and equipment 7.5 - 50

Tools, fittings and vehicles 5.6 - 25

Other assets 20

Impairment of property, plant and 
equipment

The Company reviews the carrying amount of its prop-

erty, plant and equipment to determine whether there is 

any indication that those assets have suffered an impair-

ment loss. If any such indication exists, based on inter-

nal and external sources of information, the recoverable 

amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine 

the extent of the impairment loss (if any). 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 

amount of the individual asset, the Company estimates 

the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 

(plant or line to which the asset belongs), and then the 

loss is allocated to individual assets within the unit. 

When determining impairment losses or reversal of im-

pairment losses for an item of property, plant and equip-

ment the depreciation rate is not changed but the useful 

life of an item is changed.

The recoverable amount is determined as higher of an 

asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. 

If the amount of tangible assets exceeds the recoverable 

amount, the difference is charged to the operating result 

(impairment loss). .

Prior impairments of assets are reviewed for possible 

reversal or decrease at each reporting date.
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h) Investment property

Investment property (land, buildings) owned by the 

Company is held for the purpose of earning rentals or 

as a potential for issuing guarantees or solidarity guar-

antees for subsidiaries, and to increase the value of the 

property with the intention of future sales. Investment 

property is recognised as a long-term investment, un-

less it is intended for sale within the next year, in which 

case it is recognised as a current asset. Investment prop-

erty is initially measured at cost reduced by accumulated 

depreciation. The Company at least annually reviews the 

residual value and useful life of the property. The residual 

value is an estimated amount that the Company would 

gain selling the asset now, after reducing the estimated 

cost of sales, if assumed the asset is close to or at the 

end of its useful life. Since the Company has estimated 

that the residual value of the property exceeds its carry-

ing value, depreciation is not charged until the residual 

value is reduced to the amount below the carrying value.

i) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the 

terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are 

classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised 

as assets or liabilities in the lessee’s balance sheet at the 

lower of their fair value at the inception of the lease or 

the present value of the minimum lease payments. The 

corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the bal-

ance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance 

charges and reduction of the lease obligations so as to 

achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining bal-

ance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly 

to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

j) Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

Investments are recognized and derecognized on the 

trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset 

is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the 

investment within the timeframe established by the mar-

ket concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, 

plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets 

classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are 

initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following 
categories:

•  At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - financial as-

sets either held for trading or designated as at FVTPL 

at initial recognition. Financial assets at FVTPL are stat-

ed at fair value, with any gain or loss arising recognized 

in profit or loss. 

•  Held-to-maturity - financial assets with fixed or deter-

minable payments and fixed maturity dates for which 

there is a positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. 

Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at amor-

tized cost using the effective interest method less any 

impairment, with revenue recognized on an effective 

yield basis.

•  Available for sale (AFS) - non-derivative financial assets 

which is designated as such or it cannot be included in 

any of the above mentioned categories. AFS is stated 

at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in 

fair value are recognized directly in other comprehen-

sive income, in the investment’s revaluation reserve 

with the exception of impairment losses, interest cal-

culated using the effective interest method and for-

eign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, 

which are recognized directly in profit or loss. Where 

the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be 

impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recog-

nized in the other comprehensive income in revaluation 

reserves from investments, is included in profit or loss 

for the period.

•  Loans and receivables - trade receivables, loans, and 

other receivables with fixed or determinable payments 

that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and re-

ceivables are measured at amortized cost using the ef-

fective interest method, less any impairment. Interest 

income is recognized by applying the effective interest 

rate, except for current receivables when the recogni-

tion of interest would be immaterial.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Impairment of financial assets 

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are as-

sessed for indicators of impairment at each balance 

sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there 

is objective evidence of impairment resulting from one 

or more events that occurred after the initial recognition 

of an asset when the event affects the estimated future 

cash flows from the financial asset.

For unlisted shares classified as AFS a significant or pro-

longed decline in the fair value of the security below its 

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impair-

ment.

For all other financial assets, including redeemable 

notes classifies as AFS and finance lease receivables, 

objective evidence of impairment could include:

•  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter-

party; or

•  Default or delinquency in interest or principal pay-

ments; or 

•  It becoming probable that the borrower will enter 

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

De-recognition of financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset only 

when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and sub-

stantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 

asset to another entity. If the Company neither trans-

fers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership and continues to control the transferred 

asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in 

the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may 

have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all 

the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 

financial asset, the Company continues to recognise 

the financial asset and financial liability for the pro-

ceeds received.

When the Company derecognises (writes off) all fi-

nancial assets, the difference between the book value 

and the sum of received compensations and claims for 

compensations and cumulative profit (loss), recognised 

within other comprehensive income, transfers from eq-

uity to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either finan-

cial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance 

of the contractual arrangement. 

An equity instruments is any contract that evidences a 

residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group 

are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue 

costs.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Share capital represents the nominal amount of issued 

shares.

Capital reserves include a premium at the issuance of 

shares. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 

ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.

Reserves are stated at nominal amounts defined in the al-

location of earnings, especially legal reserves, statutory re-

serves and other reserves.

Share capital repurchase (treasury shares)

The consideration paid for the repurchase of the Company’s 

equity share capital (treasury shares), including any directly 

attributable incremental costs related to the repurchase, is 

deducted from equity, until the shares are cancelled or reis-

sued. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares 

and represent a deduction from equity where such ordi-

nary shares are subsequently re issued any consideration 

received, net of any directly attributable incremental trans-

action costs and related income tax effects, is included in 

equity. 

Financial guarantee contract liabilities 

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially 

at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the 

higher of:

•  the amount of the obligation under the contract, as deter-

mined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent 

Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

•  the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, 

cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with 

the revenue recognition policies (dividend and interest 

revenue).
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 

- financial liabilities either held for trading or are classi-

fied as such at initial recognition. They are measured at 

their fair value, while the gains/losses relating to them 

are recognized in the income statement. The net gain/

loss recognized in the income statement includes any 

interest paid on the financial liability. 

Other financial liabilities - they include borrowings that 

are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction 

cost. They are subsequently measured at amortized 

cost using the effective interest method, with an inter-

est expense recognized on an effective yield basis. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculat-

ing the amortized cost of a financial liability and of al-

locating interest expense over the relevant period. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 

the estimate future cash payments over the expected 

life of the financial instrument, or, where appropriate, a 

shorter period.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, 

and only when, the Company’s obligations are dis-

charged, cancelled or they expire.

k)  Investments in subsidiaries and 
associates

Subsidiaries are entities in which the Company has con-

trol, i.e. when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable 

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the 

ability to affect those returns through its power over the 

entity.

Associates are entities in which the Company exercises 

significant influence, but not control, which generally in-

volves a share between 20% and 50%.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are present-

ed using the cost method. If there are indicators of im-

pairment, the recoverable amount of the investment is 

estimated. The difference between the investment and 

the recoverable amount is recognised in the statement 

of comprehensive income as a loss or gain (reversal of 

the previously recorded loss). 

l) Receivables

Receivables are initially measured at fair value. At 

each reporting date, receivables, whose collection is 

expected in the period longer than one year, are stat-

ed at amortized cost by using the effective interest 

rate method decreased by the impairment loss. Cur-

rent receivables are stated at the initially recognized 

nominal amount decreased by the appropriate value 

adjustment for estimated uncollectible amounts and 

impairment losses.

The value of the receivables is decreased and impair-

ment losses are incurred if and only if there is objec-

tive evidence on the impairment as a result of one or 

more events which happened after the initial recogni-

tion when this event influences the estimated future 

cash flows for receivables which can be reliably esti-

mated. At each reporting date the Company estimates 

if there is objective evidence on the impairment of a 

certain receivable. If objective evidence on the impair-

ment exists, the impairment loss is measured as a 

difference between the carrying value and estimated 

future cash flows. The carrying value of receivables 

is decreased directly or by the usage of the separate 

value adjustment account. The impairment loss is rec-

ognized as an expense in the Statement of compre-

hensive income.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank deposits, 

cash on hand, demand deposits and securities or col-

lectible within 3 months.

n) Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or ser-

vices that have been acquired in the ordinary course of 

business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classi-

fied as current liabilities if payment is due within one 

year or less (or in the regular operating cycle of the busi-

ness if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current 

liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair 

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost us-

ing the effective interest method.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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o) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of 

transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequent-

ly stated at amortised cost; any difference between the 

proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 

value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive 

income over the period of the borrowings using the ef-

fective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities, unless 

the Company has an unconditional right to defer set-

tlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting date.

p) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a 

present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

a past event, it is probable that the Company will be 

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 

can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions 

are re-evaluated at every balance sheet date and adjust-

ed according to the latest best estimates.

Provisions are determined for warranties, costs of legal 

proceedings in progress, restructuring costs, termina-

tion benefits and awards to employees for long-term 

employment and retirement.

Provisions for awards to employees for long-term em-

ployment and retirement (regular jubilee awards and 

severance payments) are determined as the present 

value of future cash outflows using the government 

bond interest rate as the discount rate.

The newly formed provisions and income from the re-

versal of provisions are stated on a gross basis (Notes 

5 and 9). 

q) Employee benefits

(i)  Defined pension fund contributions

In the normal course of business through salary deductions, 

the Company makes payments to mandatory pension funds 

on behalf of its employees as required by law. All contribu-

tions made to the mandatory pension funds are recorded 

as salary expense when incurred. The Company does not 

have any other pension scheme and consequently, has no 

other obligations in respect of employee pensions.

(ii) Long-term employee benefits

The Company has post-employment benefits to be paid 

to the employees at the end of their employment with 

the Company (either upon retirement, termination or 

voluntary departure). The Company recognises a liabil-

ity for these long-term employee benefits evenly over 

the period the benefit is earned based on actual years 

of service. The long-term employee benefit liability is 

determined using assumptions regarding the likely num-

ber of staff to whom the benefit will be payable, esti-

mated benefit cost and the discount rate.

(iii) Short-term employee benefits - bonus plans

A liability for employee benefits is recognized in provi-

sions based on the Company’s formal plan and when 

past practice has created a valid expectation by the 

Management Board/key employees that they will re-

ceive a bonus and the amount can be determined be-

fore the time of issuing the financial statements. For 

liability for bonuses it is expected that it will be settled 

within 12 months from the balance sheet date, and the 

liability is recognized in the amount expected to be paid.

(iii) Share-based payments

The Company has a plan for share-based payments to 

the members of the Management Board which are set-

tled with equity instruments of the Company. The total 

amount that is recognized a as cost and the correspond-

ing increase in equity are measured at the fair-value ba-

sis of given equity instruments granted. The fair value of 

those equity instruments is measured on the grant date. 

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its esti-

mate of options which complies with conditions for the 

acquisition of rights and makes necessary adjustments.

r) Subsequent events

Post-year-end events that provide additional informa-

tion about the Company’s position at the balance sheet 

date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial 

statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting 

events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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4. SALES
2015 2014

HRK HRK

Fees charged to related parties 30,855,647 28,516,642

Rent charged to related parties 24,000,000 24,000,000

Fees charged to unrelated parties 102,047 205,182

54,957,694 52,721,824

3.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 
AND ESTIMATES 

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expec-
tations of future events that are believed to be reason-
able under the circumstances. The Company makes 
estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The 
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom 
equal the related actual results. The estimates and as-
sumptions that have a significant risk of causing a mate-
rial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed 
below:

a) Residual value of investment property

The Company reviews at least annually the residual val-
ue and useful life of the property. The Company has esti-
mated that the residual value of the property exceeds its 
carrying value, and therefore depreciation is not charged 
until the residual value is reduced to the amount below 
the accounting value.

b) Impairment tests for investments in subsidiaries

At each reporting date the Company estimates whether 
the impairment indicators exists, which indicate that 

investments in subsidiaries could be impaired and es-
timates the recoverable amount of those investments.

For the purpose of impairment tests, the DCF method is 
used which is based on the assumptions that the enti-
ty’s value represents the present value of its future cash 
flows. When using the DCF method, the objectivity of 
calculations mostly depends on the reality of medium-
term business plans and the discounted rate used in dis-
counting future cash flows as well as the calculation of 
the terminal value of entities.

The entity’s residual value is calculated under the as-
sumption that, following the business plan period (after 
2020), the entity will achieve stable cash flows equal to 
cash flows estimated for 2020.

Determining the discount rate depends on the interest 
rate for risk-free placements (government bonds) and 
the rate which reflects the risk premium depending on 
the entity’s specifics, market position and technical ca-
pabilities.

c) Legal claims and disputes

Provisions for legal claims and disputes are recognized 
based on Management’s best estimate of probable loss-
es after consultation with legal counsel. 

5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2015 2014

HRK HRK

Release of provisions and dispute resolutions (note 29) 2,167,495 33,883,539

Net income from the asset disposal 3,567,900 285,648

Rent income 518,373 892,556

Refunds for value added tax 84,582 476,382

Income from subventions and insurance claims 197,902 82,309

Other income 740,917 567,708

7,277,169 36,188,142

Notes to the Financial Statements
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6. COST OF MATERIALS AND ENERGY

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Cost of energy 5,926,210 5,299,995

Cost of raw materials 292,819 380,324

Small inventory 91,392 123,790

6,310,421 5,804,109

7. COST OF SERVICES

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Intellectual services 5,076,461 4,349,712

Maintenance 4,011,558 3,928,757

Utilities 3,610,693 3,583,403

Security services 3,377,592 1,922,708

Supervisory services and property management at Sesvetski 
Kraljevec, Samobor, Jankomir, Zlatar

2,880,000 2,880,000

Cleaning services 2,361,587 2,438,991

Entertainment 1,405,355 1,563,093

Lawyer and audit services 193,952 1,347,662

Advertising services and fair costs 838,947 1,348,403

Graphical services 824,292 1,092,873

Telephone cost, postal services and transport 757,757 902,003

Education and training services 857,124 898,064

Rent services and leases 962,248 805,546

Other services 3,625,986 3,176,192

30,783,552 30,237,407

8. STAFF COSTS

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Net wages and salaries 11,482,227 11,665,897

Costs of taxes and contributions from salaries 9,151,231 9,889,715

Contributions on salaries 3,440,480 3,468,708

Share-based payments - 705,719

24,073,938 25,730,039
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Net wages and salaries in the amount of HRK 11,482,227 (2014: in the amount of HRK 11,665,897) include compen-
sations to the Management Board consisting of their salaries in the amount of HRK 3,348,633 (2014 in the amount 
of HRK 3,400,135) and accrued bonuses in the amount of HRK 1,600,000 (2014 in the amount of HRK 1,836,000), 
and are an integral part of staff costs.

Contributions to the Pension fund in 2015 amounted to HRK 2,917,527 (2014: HRK 2,876,721).

Compensations to employees (business trip compensations, travel to and from work, jubilee awards and similar) in 
the amount of HRK 730 thousand (2014: HRK 1,005 thousand) are presented in note 9.

9. OTHER COSTS

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Costs of legal claims - 33,817,538

Sponsorships and donations 1,435,302 1,840,806

Compensations to members of the Supervisory Board 1,929,508 1,438,579

Work agreements and copyrights 630,837 1,427,708

Taxes and contributions independent of the results and similar costs 502,816 1,015,237

Insurance premiums 904,924 907,708

Travelling costs and per-diems 551,580 792,698

Compensations to employees, gifts and support 178,046 212,006

Membership fees and similar expenses 101,166 90,703

Bank charges and payment transaction expenses 99,533 68,983

Public notary, court dues, enforcements 92,699 67,083

Other 48,902 80,939

6,475,313 41,759,988

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Bad debt provision (note 24) 1,076,383 733,080

1,076,383 733,080

11. PROVISIONS

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Provisions for regular retirement and jubilee awards (note 29) 334,684 285,508

Provision for unused vacation (note 29) 498,058 -

832,742 285,508

Notes to the Financial Statements
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12. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Finance income -

From relations with associates

Dividend income 48,458,448 60,079,592

From relations with subsidiaries

Dividend income 64,218,857 49,221,016

Interest income from loans granted 1,122,076 784,727

65,340,933 50,005,743

From relations with unrelated parties

Interest income on deposits 4,763,133 7,189,797

Interest income from sale of shares to employees 849,103 932,314

Interest income - other 732,050 451,629

Foreign exchange gains on foreign currency deposits 4,765,657 4,682,994

Foreign exchange gains - other 4,723,047 1,272,913

Dividend income 83,790 33,749

Other - 65,847

15,916,780 14,629,243

Unrealized gains 1,320,621 7,104,738

131,036,782 131,819,316

Finance costs

From relations with unrelated parties

Foreign exchange losses on foreign currency deposits (6,577,507) (4,204,430)

Foreign exchange losses on loans granted for the sale of apartments (706,582) (685,067)

Foreign exchange losses - other (496,255) (83,540)

(7,780,344) (4,973,037)

Impairment of shares in subsidiaries (43,666,340) (9,940,647)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial asset (398,992) -

(44,065,332) (9,940,647)

Other finance costs (458,204) (3,237)

(52,303,880) (14,916,321)

Finance income - net 78,732,902 116,902,395

At the reporting date the Company made an impairment test of shares in subsidiaries and recognized an impairment 
loss in the amount of HRK 43.7 million (2014: HRK 9,9 million).
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13. CORPORATE INCOME TAX

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Profit before tax 62,434,471 89,592,224

Corporate income tax at 20% 12,486,894 17,918,445

Tax effects of:

Tax non-deductible expenses 9,359,083 2,447,242

Income not subject to tax (22,816,343) (23,287,819)

Government subsidies for education (117,206) (128,899)

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognized 1,087,572 3,051,031

Corporate income tax - -

The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets in the total amount of HRK 11,136,409 (2014: 10,048,837) due 
to the uncertainty of its usage within the period of five years (the Company as a holding mainly realises non-taxable 
revenue (dividends). 

Gross tax losses expire as follows:

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share 2015 2014

HRK HRK

Net profit for the year 62,434,471 89,592,224

Weighted average number of shares (decreased by treasury shares) 2,566,258 2,570,258

Earnings per share in HRK 24.33 34.86

Diluted earnings per share for 2015 and 2014 are the same as basic earnings per share, as the Company had no 
convertible instruments or options during both periods.

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Within five years 5,437,862 15,255,154

Within four years 15,255,154 34,989,035

Within three years 34,989,035 -

55,682,051 50,244,189

To date, the Tax Authority did not perform a review of the income tax return of the Company. In accordance with 
local regulations, the Tax Authority may at any time inspect the Companies’ books and records within 3 years fol-
lowing the year in which the tax liability is reported and may impose additional tax assessments and penalties. The 
Company’s Management is not aware of any circumstances, which may give rise to a potential material liability in 
this respect.

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015



79NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Electrical Industry Inc.
2015

15. NON-CURRENT INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Concessions, 
patents, licences, 

software and other 
rights

Other Total

HRK HRK HRK

Cost

As at 1 January 2014 718,629 653,207 1,371,836

Additions 532,436 - 532,436

As at 31 December 2014 1,251,065 653,207 1,904,272

Additions 225,000 - 225,000

As at 31 December 2015 1,476,065 653,207 2,129,272

Accumulated amortization

As at 1 January 2014 468,629 653,207 1,121,836

Amortization for the year - - -

As at 31 December 2014 468,629 653,207 1,121,836

Amortization for the year - - -

As at 31 December 2015 468,629 653,207 1,121,836

Net carrying value

31 December 2014 782,436 - 782,436

31 December 2015 1,007,436 - 1,007,436

The gross carrying value of fully amortized intangible assets still in use as at 31 December 2015 amounts to HRK 
1,122 thousand (2014: HRK 1,122 thousand).
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land Buildings Plant & 
equipment

 Tools, 
fittings and 

transpor-
tation 

equipment

Other Assets 
under 

construction

Advance 
payments

Total

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

Cost

As at 1 January 2014 75,233,935 286,756,364 51,677,146 5,221,008 63,376 524,204 20,657,025 440,133,058

Transfer - 3,176,360 756,266 522,514 - (4,455,140) - -

Additions 8,922,328 63,227,502 - - - 7,279,586 7,443,704 86,873,120

Disposals (9,624,586) (74,031,316) (212,706) (682,712) - - (27,626,068) (112,177,388)

As at 31 December 2014 74,531,677 279,128,910 52,220,706 5,060,810 63,376 3,348,650 474,661 414,828,790

Transfer - 2,494,080 505,002 45,063 - (3,044,145) - -

Additions 12,847 172,065 4,023,950 - - 12,417,260 75,242 16,701,364

Disposals (350,005) - (20,143,373) (111,682) - - (549,903) (21,158,963)

Transfer to investment property - (2,475,059) - - (3,659,820) - (6,134,879)

As at 31 December 2015 74,194,519 279,319,996 36,602,285 4,994,191 63,376 9,061,945 - 404,236,312

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2014 - 164,098,536 30,799,938 2,736,104 - - - 197,634,578

Depreciation for the year - 7,012,296 3,557,162 1,100,548 - - - 11,670,006

Additions - 45,492,805 - - - - - 45,492,805

Disposals - (54,059,808) (210,443) (537,458) - - - (54,807,709)

As at 31 December 2014 - 162,543,829 34,146,657 3,299,194 - - - 199,989,683

Depreciation for the year - 5,472,217 2,635,129 873,599 - - - 8,980,945

Additions - 56,018 4,002,938 - - - - 4,058,956

Disposals - (34,247) (15,825,141) (32,574) - - - (15,891,962)

As at 31 December 2015 - 168,037,817 24,959,583 4,140,219 - - - 197,137,619

Net carrying value

31 December 2014 74,531,677 116,585,081 18,074,049 1,761,616 63,376 3,348,650 474,661 214,839,110

31 December 2015 74,194,519 111,282,179 11,642,702 853,971 63,376 9,061,945 - 207,098,692

The gross carrying value of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment, still in use as at 31 December 2015 
amounts to HRK 43,761 thousand (31 December 2014: HRK 34,906 thousand).

A mortgage is registered over land with a carrying value of HRK 44,917 thousand (31 December 2014: HRK 45,254 
thousand) and business facilities with a carrying value of HRK 67,153 thousand (31 December 2014: HRK 67,830 
thousand) as collateral for the subsidiaries’ obligations.

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property (located in Osijek, Sesvetski Kraljevec, Samobor, Požega-Zvečevo, Zagreb and Zlatar) in the 

amount of HRK 143,071,230 (2014: HRK 136,936,351) relates to investment property for capital appreciation in-

tended for future sale. Part of the assets are subject to court proceedings due to ownership issues. The fair value of 

this property estimated by independent evaluators is higher than their carrying value, and accordingly, depreciation 

is not charged to this property.

The following table discloses movements in investment property in 2015 and 2014 (during the transfer from to invest-

ment property, the Company uses the gross presentation principle, i.e. increases the carrying value and accumulated 

depreciation for these assets):

Land Buildings Total

HRK HRK HRK

Cost

As at 1 January 2014 35,523,379 97,001,990 132,525,369

Additions 9,624,586 73,840,846 83,465,432

As at 31 December 2014 45,147,965 170,842,836 215,990,801

Additions - 6,134,879 6,134,879

As at 31 December 2015 45,147,965 176,977,715 222,125,680

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2014 - 25,151,429 25,151,429

Additions - 53,903,021 53,903,021

As at 31 December 2014 - 79,054,450 79,054,450

Additions - - -

As at 31 December 2015 - 79,054,450 79,054,450

Net carrying vale

31 December 2014 45,147,965 91,788,386 136,936,351

31 December 2015 45,147,965 97,923,265 143,071,230

The fair value of investment property at the reporting date relates to fair value level 3 since the input variables are not 
based on observable market data.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Investments in domestic subsidiaries

Končar - Infrastructure and Services Ltd, Zagreb 56,691,318 56,691,318

Končar - Electrical Engineering Institute Inc, Zagreb 60,936,110 60,936,110

Končar - Electronics and Informatics Inc, Zagreb 42,424,053 38,709,694

Končar - Small Electrical Machines Inc, Zagreb 48,600,512 48,600,512

Končar - Generators and Motors Inc, Zagreb 116,347,127 94,761,587

Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc, Zagreb 30,228,943 14,441,743

Končar - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc, Zagreb 58,962,301 58,962,301

Končar - Medium Voltage Apparatus Inc, Zagreb 65,576,811 12,212,808

Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 36,409,158 36,409,158

Končar - Switchgear Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 28,647,123 28,647,123

Končar - Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 147,966,970 147,966,970

Končar - High Voltage Switchgear Inc, Zagreb 96,598,157 71,104,847

Končar - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd, Zgb 81,432,641 81,432,641

Končar - Engineering for Plant Installation and Commissioning Inc, Zagreb 6,908,942 6,908,942

Končar - Power Plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc, Zagreb 51,773,266 51,773,266

Končar - Renewable Sources Ltd, Zagreb 111,120,000 111,120,000

Končar - Steel Structures Inc, Zagreb 16,703,123 16,703,123

Impairment of investments (259,204,232) (215,537,893)

798,122,323 721,844,250

Investment in foreign subsidiary

KONES AG in bankruptcy, Zurich, Switzerland - 7,391,016

- 7,391,016

798,122,323 729,235,265

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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Investments in associates in the amount of HRK 67,722,257 (31 December 2014: HRK 67,722,257) relate to the in-
vestment in the company Končar - Power Transformers Ltd, Zagreb (Company holds a 49% stake in the share capital 
of this company).

The summary data of associates are disclosed in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Ownership 
share 
(%)

Voting 
rights share 

(%)

Ownership 
share 
(%)

Voting 
rights share 

(%)

Domestic subsidiaries

Končar - Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Small Electrical Machines Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Power Plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Infrastructure and Services Ltd, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Electrical Engineering Institute Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd, Zgb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Generators and Motors Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar - Renewable Sources Ltd, Zagreb 85.27 85.27 85.27 85.27

Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 75.04 75.04 75.04 75.04

Končar - Steel Structures Inc, Zagreb 75.01 75.01 75.01 75.01

Končar - Electronics and Informatics Inc, Zagreb 75.03 75.03 75.03 75.03

Končar - Switchgear Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 70.03 81.70 70.03 81.70

Končar - Medium Voltage Apparatus Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 41.77 69.87

Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc, Zagreb 61.73 99.77 46.11 72.39

Končar - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc, Zagreb 51.71 67.80 51.71 67.80

Končar - High Voltage Switchgear Inc, Zagreb 98.61 99.03 97.49 98.23

Končar - Engineering for Plant Installation and 
Commissioning Inc, Zagreb

44.71 79.05 44.71 79.05

Foreign subsidiary

Kones AG, Zurich, Switzerland - - 100.00 100.00

At the balance sheet date, the Company recognized an impairment loss for investments in subsidiaries at the report-
ing date on the basis of impairment tests performed (note 12).

Summary data for related companies with significant non-controlling interest are disclosed in the Company’s con-
solidated financial statements.

Shares in ownership and voting rights as at 31 December were as follows:
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21. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Receivables on the basis of credit sales

Receivables for apartments sold /i/ 10,834,147 12,628,127

Impairment of receivables for apartments sold (1,941,128) (3,180,752)

Current portion (note 24) (1,208,443) (1,353,346)

7,684,576 8,094,029

Receivables for shares sold /ii/ 6,862,225 11,211,199

Current portion (note 24) (3,431,113) (4,348,973)

3,431,112 6,862,226

Other loans receivable 27,503 50,049

Other financial assets 438 438

Receivable on the basis of foreign sales /iii/ 4,541,607 5,002,565

Current portion (note 23) (516,092) (445,241)

15,169,144 19,564,066

/i/ In accordance with the Law on the Sale of Apartments with Tenancy Rights, the apartments owned by the Com-
pany were sold at an interest rate of 1% per annum with the average maturity of 28 years and indexed. According to 
this index, receivables increase/decrease if the EUR exchange rate changes more than 5.1% compared to the rate 
that existed at the signing date of the Sale agreements. Amounts of unpaid annuities in DEM have been converted 
in EUR at a fixed rate of EUR 1 = DEM 1.95583. As collateral, the mortgage over the sold apartments has been 
registered. 

/ii/ Receivables for shares sold relate to non-current receivables for sold shares of related companies Končar-
Electronics and Informatics Inc, Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc. and Končar - Steel Structures Inc. within the em-
ployee share ownership plan that includes instalment payments over 10 years. 

/iii/ Receivable on the basis of foreign sales relates to the sales in Bosnia and Herzegovina to customer Takraf, Ger-
many assigned to KfW bank. 

20. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Available-for-sale financial assets

Shares in Tesla Savings Bank 3,500,010 3,500,010

Impairment of shares in Tesla Savings Bank (3,101,924) (2,702,932)

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Shares in Zagrebačka banka d.d., Zagreb 860,710 779,713

1,258,796 1,576,791

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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22. RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED COMPANIES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Trade receivables HRK HRK

Domestic subsidiaries

Končar - Infrastructure and Services Ltd, Zagreb 5,811,404 1,875,000

Končar - Electrical Engineering Institute Inc, Zagreb 279,932 186,836

Končar - Electronics and Informatics Inc, Zagreb 296,520 97,002

Končar - Small Electrical Machines Inc., Zagreb 339,893 328,879

Končar - Generators and Motors Inc, Zagreb 607,545 774,907

Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc, Zagreb 950,275 605,740

Končar - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc, Zagreb 1,124,630 1,077,728

Končar - Medium Voltage Apparatus Inc, Zagreb 113,831 122,863

Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 1,271,552 1,034,100

Končar - Switchgear Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 1,373,803 745,247

Končar - Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 357,932 -

Končar - High Voltage Switchgear Inc, Zagreb 194,688 271,780

Končar - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd, Zagreb 132,189 255,774

Končar - Engineering for Plant Installation and Commissioning Inc 109,033 197,512

Končar - Power Plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc, Zagreb 731,272 498,918

Končar - Steel Structures Inc, Zagreb 445,855 284,270

Končar - Renewable Sources Ltd, Zagreb 468,001 484,648

Associates

Končar - Power Transformers Ltd, Zagreb 49,141,403 60,716,722

63,749,758 69,557,926

Interest receivable (total) 153,956 18,494

63,903,714 69,576,420

Total Undue and 
collectible

Due but collectible

< 60 days 60-90 
days

90-180 
days

180-365 
days

> 365 days

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2015 63,903,714 61,613,964 1,031,434 272,234 296,676 689,406 -

2014 69,576,420 68,577,525 680,595 60,355 257,945 - -

For receivables which are past due at the reporting date, for which the Company has not made a provision, there has 
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned 
above.

As at 31 December, the ageing structure of receivables from related parties was as follows:
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December, the ageing structure of trade receivables was as follows:

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Receivables from companies no longer within Končar group /i/ 9,837,148 14,013,687

Impairment of above receivables (1,076,383) (2,792,311)

Receivables for shares sold (due) 10,750,238 10,247,847

Current portion of non-current receivables (note 21) 3,431,113 4,348,973

Receivable for claims recognised 8,292,699 8,292,699

Interest receivables on bank deposits 667,006 2,355,264

Receivables for apartments sold 1,208,443 1,353,346

Receivables for prepaid value added tax 1,016,069 476,382

Other receivables 126,481 93,191

34,252,814 38,389,078

Total Undue and 
collectible

Due but collectible

< 60 days 60-90 
days

90-180 
days

180-365 
days

> 365 days

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2015 21,458 13,670 7,788 - - - -

2014 477,131 237,165 216,841 - - - 23,125

For receivables which are past due at the reporting date, for which the Company has not made a provision, there 
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above.

The movement in the allowance for bad debts was as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Domestic customers 21,458 477,131

Bad debt provision - (23,125)

Domestic customers, net 21,458 454,006

Foreign customers (current portion, note 21) 516,092 445,241

537,550 899,247

2015 2014

HRK HRK

Balance as at 1 January 23,125 -

Collected in the current year (23,125) -

Impaired in the current year - 23,125

Balance as at 31 December - 23,125

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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25. LOANS GRANTED TO RELATED PARTIES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Končar- High Voltage Switchgear Inc, Zagreb 8,000,000 -

 Končar-Renewable Sources Ltd, Zagreb 20,075,456 4,250,000

Končar-Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 2,000,000 2,000,000

30,075,456 6,250,000

Loans granted to related parties are repayable within one year bearing an annual interest rate of 7% (secured by blank 
bills of exchange and debentures).

26. LOANS AND DEPOSITS

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Deposits over 3 months 241.267.485 280.977.794

Loans receivable - 1.300.000

241.267.485 282.277.794

Deposits over 3 months are related to deposits placed in a commercial bank bearing an annual interest rate in the 
range from 0.70% to 1.70% (2014: 0.70% to 3.20%).

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Balance at gyro accounts in HRK 8,140,122 4,727,409

Balance at accounts in foreign currency 270,290 459,318

Petty cash - HRK 27 9,982

Petty cash - foreign currencies 21,403 15,481

8,431,842 5,212,190

28. EQUITY
Share capital is determined in the nominal value of HRK 1,208,895,930 (as at 31 December 2014: HRK 1,208,895,930) 
and includes 2,572,119 shares at the nominal value of HRK 470 per share (2014: the same). In 2014, the Company 
increased its share capital by the total amount of HRK 180,048,330 by the reinvestment of the profit realised in 2013 
in the amount of HRK 110,079,111 (reinvested earnings), and by the amount of HRK 69,969,219 from the other re-
serves formed in previous years. The increase in share capital was carried out by increasing the nominal value of the 
shares by HRK 70 per share, from HRK 400 to HRK 470 respectively.

/i/ The recoverable amount of receivables from companies which are no longer part of the Končar group (Končar-
Alati and Končar-Ugostiteljska oprema) is determined on the basis of the estimated value of the net assets of those 
companies. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of each class of receivable 
mentioned above.
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The Company’s ownership structure is as follows:
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Shareholder Number of 
shares

Ownership 
share %

Number of 
shares

Ownership 
share %

1. HPB d.d. (Kapitalni fond Inc.) 724,515 28.17 724,515 28.17

2. State office for state property management 
/ Croatian pension fund

384,628 14.95 384,628 14.95

3. Restructuring and sale centre / Croatia 142,298 5.53 142,298 5.53

4. State office for state property management 
/ Croatia

117,982 4.59 117,982 4.59

5. SOCIETE GENERALE - Splitska bank Inc. / 
Erste Plavi mandatory pension fund 

202,149 7.86 202,149 7.86

6. HYPO ALPE ADRIA BANK d.d./PBZ Croatia 
Osiguranje OMF

255,928 9.95 255,928 9.95

7. Societe Generale Bank/ AZ OMF 161,110 6.26 106,438 4.14

8. Valamar Rivijera d.d. 39,791 1.55 39,791 1.55

9. Florinčić Kristijan 60,714 2.36 82,682 3.21

10. Hypo Alpe Adria Bank/RBA OMF 28,491 1.11 29,504 1.15

11. PBZ d.d. (custodian account) 30,208 1.17 27,366 1.06

12. Other shareholders 418,444 16.27 456,977 17.77

13. KONČAR Inc. (treasury shares) 5,861 0.23 1,861 0.07

2,572,119 100.00 2,572,119 100.00

On 21 December 2010, ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Official market at the Zagreb Stock Ex-
change under the name KOEI-R-A in accordance with the resolution of the Zagreb Stock Exchange Management from 
20 December 2010.

In 2015, the Company’s General Assembly reached a decision on the payment of dividends to shareholders in the 
amount of HRK 30,795,096 which is HRK 12,00 per share (2014: HRK 30,843,096 which is HRK 12,00 per share). 

The Company states legal, statutory and other reserves in accordance with the Company’s Act made on the basis 
of profit distribution according to the General Assembly’s resolutions. Statutory and other reserves are distributable. 
The movement in these reserves in 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Legal 
reserves

Statutory 
reserves

Other 
reserves

Total

HRK HRK HRK HRK

1 January 2014 23,454,999 138,879,053 111,086,843 273,420,895

Allocation of 2013 profit 7,091,340 24,656,347 - 31,747,687

Share capital increase - - (69,969,219) (69,969,219)

FX differences from translating foreign operations - - 158,252 158,252

31 December 2014 30,546,339 163,535,400 41,275,876 235,357,615

Allocation of 2014 profit 4,479,611 54,269,518 - 58,749,128

31 December 2015 35,025,950 217,684,029 41,396,764 294,106,743

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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30. CURRENT LIABILITIES TO RELATED PARTIES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Končar - Infrastructure and Services Ltd, Zagreb 11,880,808 3,542,516

Končar - Electronics and Informatics Inc, Zagreb 110,964 -

Končar - Power Plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc, Zagreb 352,310 2,807

Končar - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd., Zagreb 12,418 -

Končar - Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb - 136,700

12,356,500 3,682,023

29. PROVISIONS
Legal court 

cases
Retirement 
and jubilee 

rewards

Unused 
vacation

Total

HRK HRK HRK HRK

1 January 2014 55,344,959 1,723,731 - 57,068,690

Additional provisions - 285,508 - 285,508

Release of provisions (21,077,464) - - (21,077,464)

31 December 2014 34,267,495 2,009,239 - 36,276,734

Additional provisions - 334,684 498,058 832,742

Release of provisions (2,167,495) - - (2,167,495)

31 December 2015 32,100,000 2,343,923 498,058 34,941,981

Provisions mature as follows:

Within 12 months - - 498,058 498,058

More than 12 months 32,100,00 2,343,923 - 34,443,923

Provisions for legal claims

Long-term provisions for legal claims in the amount of HRK 32,100,000 (2014: in the amount of HRK 34,267,495) re-
late to legal cases in progress initiated against the Company in Croatia in the amount of HRK 31,800,000 (2014: HRK 
31,800,000) and for the estimated costs of legal proceedings in the amount of HRK 300,000 (2014: HRK 2,467,495).

Provisions for long-term employee benefits (termination benefits and jubilee awards)

The non-current portion of provisions for termination benefits and jubilee rewards in the amount of HRK 2,344 
thousand (2014: HRK 2,009 thousand) comprises the estimated amount of long-term employee benefits relating to 
termination benefits and jubilee awards in accordance with the Collective agreement to which the employees are 
entitled to receive at the moment of employment termination (during the retirement or dismissal). The net present 
value of the provision is calculated on the basis of the number of employees, amount of benefit, years of service 
within the Company at the balance sheet date and the discount rate of 4.85% (2014: 5.65%).

Current provisions

Provisions for unused vacation in the amount of HRK 498 thousand relates to employee benefit for unused vacation 
days related to 2015.



90 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT,
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2015

As at 31 December, the ageing structure of trade payables was as follows:

Total Undue Due

< 60 days 60-90 
days

90-180 
days

180-365 
days

> 365 days

HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2015  903,616 902,167 1,449 - - - -

2014 1,365,439 1,218,706 146,733 - - - -

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Liabilities toward employees

Liabilities for net salaries 664,403 673,863

Bonus accruals 1,600,000 1,836,000

2,264,403 2,509,863

Liabilities for taxes, contributions and similar

Liabilities for taxes 1,696,849 1,935,998

Liabilities for value added tax - 1,073,740

Liabilities for contributions 1,214,047 1,209,340

2,910,896 4,219,078

Other liabilities

Liabilities toward state for apartments sold 1,946 76,308

Liabilities for dividends 429,642 322,447

Other liabilities 153,375 118,021

584,963 516,776

5,760,262 7,245,717

32. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

31. TRADE PAYABLES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Dobavljači u zemlji 843.013 1.071.928

Dobavljači u inozemstvu 60.603 293.511

903.616 1.365.439

Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Subsidiarity guarantee (Zagrebačka banka d.d.) 563,850,871 861,989,012

Corporative guarantees / Končar Inc. 132,685,051 150,601,520

Corporative guarantees / other banks 2,481,390 8,719,934

Apartments sold (65%) 23,677,933 25,636,064

Bills of exchange 28,075,456 7,550,000

Debentures 2,000,000 10,200,000

752,770,701 1,064,696,530

Several domestic legal cases are initiated against the Company and as at 31 December 2015 the Company recognized a 
provision in the amount of HRK 32,100 thousand (2014: HRK 34,267 thousand) for these legal claims. The Management 
Board does not expect additional costs to arise from other court cases.

Total guarantees issued by the Company as disclosed in the above table include performance guarantees amounting to 
HRK 431,145 thousand (2014: HRK 701,658 thousand).

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2015 Operating activities Financial activities

Receivables Liabilities Revenues Expenses Receivables Revenues

Company HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Končar - Infrastructure and Services Ltd. 5.811 11.881 24.505 12.865 - -

Končar - Household Appliances Ltd. 358 - 1.149 42 2.011 136

Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc. 1.271 - 5.061 180 - -

Končar - High Voltage Switchgear Inc. 195 - 544 - 8.027 147

Končar - Generators and Motors Inc. 608 - 2.769 - - -

Končar - Power Plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc. Zagreb 730 352 3.084 2.650 - -

Končar - Steel Structures Inc. 445 - 1.351 - - -

Končar - Switchgear Inc. 1.374 - 778 - - -

Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc. 950 - 1.659 - - -

Končar - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd. 132 12 654 124 - -

Končar - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc. 1.125 - 5.461 - - -

Končar - Electrical Engineering Institute Inc. 280 - 877 81 - -

Končar - Small Electrical Machines Inc. 340 - 868 - - -

Končar - Engineering for Plant Installation and Commissioning Inc. 109 - 510 - - -

Končar - Electronics and Informatics Inc. 297 111 1.093 1.717 - -

Končar - Medium Voltage Apparatus Inc. 114 - 560 - - -

Končar - Power Transformers Ltd. 683 - 1.883 - - -

Končar - Renewable Sources Ltd. 468 - 2.051 - 20.191 839

15.290 12.356 54.857 17.659 30.229 1.122

The transactions presented in the table do not include receivables and dividend income. Dividend income is reco-
gnized in the amount of HRK 109,761 thousand (2014: HRK 109,335 thousand).

Parties are considered to be related if one party has control over the other party, if they are under common control 
or under significant influence or are part of a joint arrangement. Related parties include companies within the Končar 
Group - subsidiaries and an associate. All intercompany transactions are based on the usual business terms (pur-
chase of goods and sale of products and provision of services).
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2014 Operating activities Financial activities

Receivables Liabilities Revenues Expenses Receivables Revenues

Company HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Končar - Infrastructure and Services Ltd. 1,875 3,542 24,498 11,326 - -

Končar - Household Appliances Ltd. - 137 1,007 793 2,017 161

Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc. 1,034 - 3,043 180 - 546

Končar - High Voltage Switchgear Inc. 272 - 474 - - -

Končar - Generators and Motors Inc. 775 - 3,122 - - -

Končar - Power Plant and Electric Traction 
Engineering Inc. Zagreb

499 3 3,263 1,988 - -

Končar - Steel Structures Inc. 284 - 1,314 - - 15

Končar - Switchgear Inc. 745 - 751 - - -

Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc. 606 - 1,760 - - -

Končar - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit 
Breakers Ltd.

256 - 681 123 - -

Končar - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc. 1,078 - 4,473 12 - -

Končar - Electrical Engineering Institute Inc. 187 - 734 56 - -

Končar - Small Electrical Machines Inc. 329 - 816 - - -

Končar - Engineering for Plant Installation and 
Commissioning Inc.

198 - 526 - - -

Končar - Electronics and Informatics Inc. 97 - 818 1,473 - -

Končar - Medium Voltage Apparatus Inc. 123 - 568 - - -

Končar - Power Transformers Ltd. 637 - 2,624 - - -

Končar - Renewable Sources Ltd. 485 - 2,044 - 4,252 63

9,480 3,682 52,516 15,951 6,269 785

The transactions presented in the table do not include receivables and dividend income.

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed in its business to market (foreign currency) and credit risk.

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments. The Company’s overall risk management program fo-
cuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s 
financial statements. The risk management policies related to current and non-current financial assets, current and 
non-current receivables, management of cash, debt and liabilities may be summarised as follows:  

a) Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the 
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt to equity balance.

The Company manages its capital and makes the necessary adjustments in accordance with the economic condi-
tions in the market and risk features of its assets. In order to adjust or maintain the capital structure, the Company 
may decide to pay dividends to owners, increase/decrease the share capital, sell assets to reduce liabilities etc. 
The objectives, policies and processes have not been changed during the periods ending 31 December 2014 and 
31 December 2013. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, which is calculated as follows: 
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b) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis 
of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of financial 
assets, financial liabilities and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.

Accounting policies for financial instruments are applied on the following items in the Statement of financial position:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

HRK HRK

Long-term borrowings - -

Short-term borrowings - -

Less: cash and cash equivalents (deposits) (8,432) (5,212)

Net debt - -

Capital 1,572,405 1,543,618

Gearing ratio - -

31 December 2015 Loans and 
receivables

Fair value 
through 

P&L

Available 
for sale

Assets 
under 

IAS 39

HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000

Non-current financial assets and receivables 15,169 861 398 16,428

Current financial assets 271,343 - - 271,343

Trade and other current receivables 97,679 - - 97,679

Cash and cash equivalents 8,432 - - 8,432

392,623 861 398 393,882

31 December 2014 Loans and 
receivables

Fair value 
through 

P&L

Available 
for sale

Assets 
under 

IAS 39

HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000

Non-current financial assets and receivables 19,564 780 797 21,141

Current financial assets 288,528 - - 288,528

Trade and other current receivables 108,388 - - 108,388

Cash and cash equivalents 5,212 - - 5,212

421,692 780 797 423,269

All of the Company’s liabilities have been classified as “At amortized cost“. The Company has no liabilities that have 

been classified as “Liabilities at fair value through profit and loss”. 



94 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT,
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2015

Fair value of financial instruments 

The following table represents financial assets and liabilities valued at fair value in the Statement of financial position 

according to the fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities in three levels, depending 

on the significance of input variables used in the measurement of their fair values. The fair value hierarchy has the 

following levels:

• level 1:  quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities traded on active markets

• level 2:  input variables that do not represent the above stated prices from level 1 but are visible for assets or liabili-

ties, be it directly (like prices) or indirectly (derived from prices for example)

• level 3:  input variables for assets or liabilities which are not based on observable market data. 

The level within which a financial asset/liability is classified is based on the lowest level of a significant input variable 

used in the fair value measurement. Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the Statement of financial 

position are grouped within the hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000

Assets

Listed securities 861 - - 861

Unlisted securities - - 398 398

861 - 398 1,259

31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000

Assets

Listed securities 780 - - 780

Unlisted securities - - 797 797

780 - 797 1,577

The Company used the following methods and assumptions during its financial asset fair value estimation:

Receivables and bank deposits 

For assets due within three months, the accounting value is approximate to their fair value due to the short-term 

nature of the assets. For longer term assets, the contracted interest rates do not significantly deviate from the cur-

rent market rates and their fair value is, therefore, approximate to their accounting value.

Liabilities per loans received

The current liability fair value is approximate to their accounting value due to the short-term nature of these instru-

ments. The Management Board believes that their fair value does not differ significantly from their accounting value. 

Other financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments that are not valued at fair value are trade receivables, other receivables, trade 

payables and other current liabilities. The historical accounting value of receivables and liabilities, including provi-

sions that are in line with the usual terms of business is approximately equal to their fair value.

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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c) Financial risk

The Company’s Management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company 

through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by the degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include 

market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow 

interest rate risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the change in market prices, as the change of foreign currencies and interest rates, would 

influence the Company’s result of the value of its financial instruments. The goal of market risk management is ma-

naging and controlling the exposure to this risk within acceptable parameters, thus, optimizing returns.

The Company’s activities are primarily exposed to the foreign currency exchange rate risk.

There have been no significant changes to the Company’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it ma-

nages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk management

The Company is exposed to this risk through the sale and purchase of funds stated in foreign currency which is not the 

Company’s functional currency. Foreign currencies to which the Company is mostly exposed are EUR, USD and CHF. 

The Company exposes itself to foreign currency risk through sales, purchasing and depositing of funds denominated 

in foreign currencies. 

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

31 December 2015. EUR CHF Other 
currencies

Total 
foreign 

currencies

HRK Total

000’ HRK 000’ HRK 000’ HRK 000’ HRK 000’ HRK 000’ HRK

Non-current receivables 4,025 - - 4,025 11,144 15,169

Trade receivables 516 - - 516 21 537

Current financial assets 241,267 - - 241,267 - 241,267

Cash and cash equivalents 251 6 35 292 8,140 8,432

Trade payables (61) - - (61) - (61)

245,998 6 35 246,039 19,305 265,344

31 December 2014 EUR CHF Other 
currencies

Total 
foreign 

currencies

HRK Total

000’ HRK 000’ HRK 000’ HRK 000’ HRK 000’ HRK 000’ HRK

Non-current receivables 4,557 - - 4,557 15,007 19,564

Trade receivables 445 - - 445 454 899

Current financial assets 264,321 16,657 - 280,978 1,300 282,278

Cash and cash equivalents 452 8 15 475 4,737 5,212

Trade payables (293) - - (293) - (293)

269,482 16,665 15 286,162 21,498 307,660
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In the above tables, receivables for apartments sold are not included in the amounts in EUR because of a contractual 
clause on the increase/decrease in receivables if the change in EUR currency rate is more than 5.1% compared to 
the currency rate that existed at the time of concluding the contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The changing of the HRK in relation to EUR for 1% (2014: strengthening od 1%), the strengthening in relation to 
of CHF by 11% (2014: 2%) at the date of reporting would increase/(decrease) the profit before tax by the following 
amounts:

2015
Effect on income before taxes

2014
Effect on income before taxes

HRK’000 HRK’000

EUR (2,461) 2,300

CHF 1 (105)

This analysis assumes that all other, variables, interest rates especially, remain unchanged.

A strengthening/(weakening) of HRK against the above currencies for the same average % at the reporting date 

would have had the equal but opposite effect on the profit before tax, with assumption that all other variables remain 

constant.

b) Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk since it has no interest-bearing liabilities.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial 

loss for the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and 

obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 

The Company uses information gathered from specialized credit agencies and the Croatian Chamber of Economy, 

as well as other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The 

Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value 

of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

Trade and other receivables 

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The 

demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which 

customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. The Company has established a credit policy under which 

each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before standard payment and delivery terms and 

conditions are offered. The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incu-

rred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments. The age structure of trade receivables (related 

and unrelated) which are past due but are considered collectable are shown in the notes 22 and 23.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Risk 

management is the responsibility of the Management Board which has built a quality frame for monitoring current, 

middle and long-term financing and all requirements related to liquidity risk. The Company manages this risk by 

constantly monitoring estimated and actual cash flow and comparing it with the maturity of financial assets and 

liabilities.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Carrying 
value

Contracted 
cash flows

0 - 12
Months 

1 - 2
Years

2 - 5
Years

Više od 5
Years

31 December 2015 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK’000

Trade and other payables 13,845 13,845 13,845 - - -

13,845 13,845 13,845

Carrying 
value

Contracted 
cash flows

0 - 12
Months 

1 - 2
Years

2 - 5
Years

Više od 5
Years

31 December 2014 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK'000 HRK’000

Trade and other payables 5,564 5,564 5,564 - - -

5,564 5,564 5,564 - - -

The following table shows the maturity of the Company’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2015 and 2014 accor-

ding to the contracted undiscounted payments:

36. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After the reporting date and until the approval date of these financial statements there were no events that would 

significantly influence the financial statements of the Company for 2015, and that should, consequently, be disclosed.

37. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented on the pages above were authorised for issue by the Company’s Management 

Board on 23 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf.

Darinko Bago

President of the Management Board
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